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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
BRRE
41.2% increase from 2014
BRZZ—MOF FFH41.2%

HKS 78 #

1.20

7T

EARNINGS PER SHARE
SRER
216% increase from 2014
BT —JUF FFA216%

HKS & ¥

5.21

7T

REVENUE Wt A
21.9% increase from 2014

BT —PNF FF21.9%

HKS &

5,013

million B&JT

2015 HIGHLIGHTS
“E-HFERE

TOTAL EQUITY #&#Ex
18.7% increase from 2014

BZF—MOF FH18.7%

HK$ 7B

8,399

million &7t

PROFIT FORTHE YEAR
FERF
202% increase from 2014
BT —F FFH202%

HK$ /&1

1,590

million B&JT

CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL-HOLDINGS LIMITED

NET ASSETS PER SHARE
BREEFE
16.4% increase from 2014

BT —F FF716.4%

HK$ 7B

26.3

7T

TOTAL EMPLOYEE NUMBERS
HWETAH
2014: 3,300

3,500

full time staff 288 T
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

SEGMENT REVENUE
2ERA
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March
for the last five years.

T RETEREEREGRAR(ARR D KAMBRAR(SHE ARERNBERFABE=A=+—"RILFEZHEE
mal  EERHEMMBERTE -

2015

Financial Information (HK$ million) S1#& % (8% BAE T) —E-FHEF
Total assets BEE 15,329 13,926 12,796 10,692 8,595
Total liabilities oY= 6,930 6,849 6,585 5,274 3,716
Total equity by 8,399 7,077 6,211 5,318 4,879
Non-controlling interests R E 510 463 390 324 399
Shareholders' funds REES 7,889 6,614 5,821 4,994 4,480

Share capital A

—in number (million) -8B (BER) 300 293 281 278 278

- in value (HK$1.25 per share) —YE(BRER1.25 ) 375 366 352 347 347
Revenue WA 5,013 4,113 4,189 3,850 3,491
Profit attributable to equity holders AR RIRRFERS B A

of the Company FEER T 1,537 470 1,012 658 798
Per Share Basis (HK$) BRFAE(EY)
Earnings - basic BF|—EAK 5.21 1.65 3.64 2.37 2.87
Dividends [Ees) 1.20 0.85 0.85 0.95 1.15
Net assets value EEYE

—excluding non-controlling interests ~ — NEIEIEIEIRAERS 26.3 22.6 20.7 18.0 16.1

2015 2014
—E-1fF —ENE
HK$ million

AEBET

HK$ million
ARERT

Segment Revenue* 2 ERA

Construction and engineering RE M TR 4,684 3,697
Insurance and investment R RIEE 154 318
Property LES 1,111 1,043
Food and beverage BER 700 659
Others Hi 2,893 2,944
Total HE 9,542 8,661

Segment Profit/(Loss)* 8RR (BB

Construction and engineering A A T2 318 293
Insurance and investment R RIEE 50 62
Property {UES 1,576 407
Food and beverage 28 26 22
Others Hith (140) (42)
Total k] 1,830 742

* Included share of revenue/results of associates and joint ventures

BREMEBEARRABREZERARE

HitBBEEMERAT | % 2015 5



CORPORATE INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Dr KO Chan Gock, William

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles

Professor POON Chung Kwong

SECRETARY
Mr MUI Chin Leung

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
Berkadia Commercial Mortgage LLC
Chong Hing Bank Limited

DBS Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

SOLICITORS
Appleby
Robertsons

REGISTERED OFFICE
Canon's Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2318 1818

Facsimile: (852) 2757 5138
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG
Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 25

ADR DEPOSITARY BANK

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
P.O. Box 30170

College Station, TX77842-3170
Stock Symbol: CHVLY

WEBSITE

http://www.chevalier.com

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of Results
Interim Results
Final Results

Book Close Dates
Interim Dividend
Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting 27 August 2015

Payment of Dividends

Interim dividend of
HK$0.20 per share
(with scrip option)

Special dividend of
HK$0.50 per share
(with scrip option)

Final dividend of
HK$0.50 per share
(with scrip option)

27 November 2014
25 June 2015

16 to 19 December 2014
24 to 27 August 2015
Special and Final Dividends 7 to 10 September 2015

9 February 2015

30 October 2015

30 October 2015

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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TERBERE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda
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(;HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

Despite the uncertainties in the global market, the Group had
achieved a positive development during the financial year under
review. Apart from the continuous growth of our business segments,
the gain generated from the disposal of a subsidiary holding a
property in Kowloon Bay boosted the profit of the Group to the
record, even taken into consideration the non-cash impairment
loss in respect of the available-for-sale investment of fresh produce
supply business in Australia as a result of its unsatisfactory operation
performance and weakening of Australian dollar.

With the land development effort led by HKSAR Government
aiming at providing more public and private housing units in meeting
with solid demand, prospects of the construction and engineering
business of the Group in Hong Kong will be promising. Although
back log of the construction and engineering business of the Group
maintains a healthy situation, shortage of both skillful and non-skillful
labors and professionals remain challenge in Hong Kong and Macau
markets. The Group will continue to take a vigilant approach in
tendering contracts so as to strike a balance between costs escalation
and profit margin.

Mainland China economy is expected to experience varying degrees
of growth slowdown. The continuing growth slowdown in Mainland
China has occurred against an ongoing correction in the housing
sector and rising concerns about the high level of local government
debt. With the administrative control measures such as purchase
restrictions are expected to be lifted and there may be further interest
rate cut in the coming year, coping with the change to consumption-
led economy and strong desire to current living condition
improvement and demand for the quality residential property, those
will act as strong drivers for the sale of the Group's properties
projects in Changchun and Chengdu. After the acquisition of further
interest in Chengdu properties project, the Group will adopt a
cautious approach to the sale of the residential properties in that area
and looking for the rebound of the Mainland China’s property market.
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The beginning of the rate hiking cycle will not have much impact
on the Group's US senior housing business as most of our senior
housing facilities were financed with fixed mortgages rate guaranteed
by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development. Given
the increasing in ageing population and steady growth rate of
healthcare expenditures, the Group’'s senior housing business
has promising prospects in the US. While the Group is looking for
potential partner in expanding the senior housing business in Asia
with an advantage of increasing demand of quality elderly health care
services, the Group is also studying the feasibility of a potential spin-
off and separate listing of the senior housing business on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Looking forward, the Group expects the global market will remain
challenging and economic growth is likely to remain moderate. As
the investment market is still volatile, the Group will slowly rebalance
the portfolio to ensure the Group’s exposure can be managed with
cautious. With our financial strength and healthy balance sheet, the
Group is positioned and will continue to adopt a vigilant strategy to
explore business opportunities in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
overseas.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all those who contributed to the Group’s success
during the past financial year, including our stakeholders, customers
and business partners. In addition, | would also extend my gratitude
to our staff for their hard work and dedication that make the Group
enable to meet the challenges in a rapid changing marketplace.

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R

The Group's consolidated revenue increased by 21.9%, from
HK$4,113 million in 2013/14 to HK$5,013 million for the year
ended 31 March 2015. Major contributor of the increase was the
construction and engineering segment. Total segment revenue,
which included the Group's share of revenue of associates and joint
ventures, grew to HK$9,542 million from HK$8,661 million, a 10.2%
increase over last financial year.

After taking up the one-off gain resulting from the sale of a property
via the disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary, offsetting by an
impairment loss in respect of the available-for-sale investment
in fresh produce supply business in Australia, profit for the year
ended 31 March 2015 boosted 202.3% from HK$526 million in
2013/14 to HK$1,590 million. Profit attributable to equity holders
for the year ended 31 March 2015 reached HK$1,537 million (2014:
HK$470 million) and earnings per share amounted to HK$5.21 (2014:
HK$1.65).

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

The construction and engineering segment'’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2015 recorded an increase of 26.7% to HK$4,684
million (2014: HK$3,696 million). The increase in revenue was due
to the significant increase in revenue captured in performing the
contracts from building construction and electrical and mechanical
engineering in Hong Kong and Macau, and also the steady growth
in lift and escalator contracts of the Group's associates. In line with
the improvement in revenue, profit of this segment also increased by
8.5% from HK$293 million in 2013/14 to HK$318 million in 2014/15.

The booming construction market in Hong Kong and the rapid
development of casinos and integrated resorts in Macau gave
numerous opportunities on business growth for the construction and
engineering segment. Although the building construction division
secured a number of contracts during the year under review, it
continued to face keen operating environment in the construction
industry. In response to rising material and labour costs, the division
will continue implementing measures to control costs and enhance
operation efficiency.

The electrical and mechanical engineering division developed steadily
and continued to allocate its substantial resources in Macau market.
With its proven track record, the division has secured another major
contract from a Macau casino and hotel developer during the year
under review. While the growth of visitor arrivals in Macau is cooling
off and the casino and hotel business has been facing challenging
moment since 2014, certain new casinos and hotels development are
still in progress in the next few years. Despite the healthy back log
currently with the division, the Group is prudent about its electrical
and mechanical engineering business in Macau and will rebalance its
resources allocation to both Macau and Hong Kong markets in the
years to come.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Working progress for the contracts awarded by the HKSAR
Government and CLP to the environmental engineering division
was satisfactory. With the professional experience in environmental
engineering field, the division will continue to explore opportunities
arising from the Integrated Waste Management Facilities projects.
Stylish kitchen cabinets provided by the building supplies division
experienced a stable development during the year. With the strong
market demand for luxury residential properties from the prestige
property developers, this division will continually cooperate with
potential partners and explore business opportunities.

Due to the sustainable development of construction industry in
Hong Kong, the aluminium windows and curtain walls division has
maintained a stable contribution during the year. In meeting with the
market growth for the aluminium works, the production center of this
division has enhanced its efficiency and capacity by adding advanced
equipment. Its business in Australia further developed with several
contracts secured. The Group is optimistic about the prospects of
this division in the coming year.

With the launch of new generation lift and escalator equipment
powered by green technology, the lift and escalator division, the
Group's associates, has achieved sustainable business growth in
Hong Kong, China, Singapore and Macau during the financial year.
Sizable contracts were secured in Hong Kong and from Housing &
Development Board in Singapore. Following the completion of new
installation projects, the division is well positioned to provide repair
and maintenance services in meeting with the needs of its customers
and generating sustainable growth to its maintenance division.

As at 31 March 2015, the total value of the outstanding construction
and engineering contracts in hand of the Group's subsidiaries
amounted to HK$5,850 million. Major contracts are:

1. Construction of the superstructure works at TL117 Tseung
Kwan O, N.T.;
2. Construction of the property development at Long Ping

Station, Yuen Long, N.T.;

3. Electrical and mechanical works for the Wynn Palace in
Macau;

4. Expansion of Tai Po Water Treatment Works Stream |1, Tai Po,
N.T.;

5. Design, supply and installation of curtain walls for Area 66 D1,

Tseung Kwan O, N.T.; and

6. Supply of prestigious “Manhattan” kitchen cabinets for the
property development at TPTL 200, Tai Po, N.T. and Lee Tung
Street, Wanchai, H.K.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN R DT

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

Revenue of the insurance and investment segment dropped by
51.6% from HK$318 million in 2013/14 to HK$154 million in 2014/15,
mainly due to the absence of significant employees’ compensation
insurance contracts this year. Segment profit also dropped from
HK$61.7 million to HK$50.3 million when compared with last
year. The decrease in profit was caused by the reduction in gain
on securities investment after a scale down of equity securities
investments and the higher amount of impairment loss on available-
for-sales investments in this financial year.

Insurance underwriting has always been a fiercely competitive
business and insurance business has not been immune to the
conditions that prevailed in this sector during the year. The Group
will continue to adopt prudential underwriting approach and keep its
operation at a competitive level in running the insurance business.

The Group’'s investment performance in the year was relatively
steady for the focus on asset classes with lower volatility. Given
the increase in investment flow into the global equity market as a
result of monetary easing implemented by central banks across the
globe, the slower-than-expected recovery in US and continuous loss
of growth momentum from the economic data published by the
People’s Republic of China government, the Group will rebalance the
investment portfolio and be cautious with the downside risks.

PROPERTY

The property segment’s revenue had increased slightly by 6.4% from
HK$1,044 million in 2013/14 to HK$1,111 million for the year under
review. In addition to the increase in the Group’s revenue from the
disposals of properties for sale in Hong Kong, the steady growth in
senior housing, cold storage and logistics and property management
businesses contributed to maintain the segment revenue’s stability.
The segment’s profit recorded a significant growth from HK$407
million in 2013/14 to HK$1,576 million in 2014/15. The booster of
the segment profit was primarily due to the gain of HK$1,248 million
recorded from the disposal of Chevalier Engineering Service Centre
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, offsetting
partially by written down of HK$118 million on amount due from a
joint venture in property development projects.

Over 71,000 sg. m. (equal to 75% of residential units) contracted
sales of Phase | was recorded in the Group’s “Chevalier City” project
in Changchun. The project is situated at Luyuan District in which
the Group has 96% interest. Construction of Phase Il has been
commenced and is currently in the foundation stage. The Group
expects Phase Il of Chevalier City will be ready for pre-sale by the
end of 2015/16 financial year.

18% of residential units and 10% of villas in Phase | of “Chateau
Ermitas” situated at Shuangliu County, Chengdu were sold as of
31 March 2015. To control and increase in the involvement in the
business development and operation planning in the sale of the
Chengdu properties, the Group acquired all the interest of the project
company from its joint venture partner, the completion of which took
place in April 2015. The Group thus currently owns all the equity
interest in “Chateau Ermitas” project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Senior housing business continued to show improvement in its
operations. In addition to the 15 senior housing facilities, the Group
switched two more properties from the floating rate mortgage loans
to fixed rate long maturity loans. The move strengthens further the
Group's cash flow position and ability to cope with potential rising
interest rate in the future. Given the Group is positive to the senior
housing industry, it will continue to work closely with the operators to
enhance value of its existing properties and make further acquisitions
as opportunities arise.

Both cold storage and logistics and property management businesses
remained stable and generated steady revenue and contribution
to the Group. The cold storage and logistics operation continually
achieved satisfactory business growth with the overall occupancy
rate over 90%. The Group will look for opportunities in expanding the
business scope and network globally.

During the year under review, a portfolio of over 30,000,000 sq.
ft. residential, commercial and industrial properties was under the
professional management of the Group’s property management arm
in Hong Kong.

FOOD & BEVERAGE

Despite the keen competition of restaurant and bar business and
challenging operating environment, including the Occupy Central
movement earlier in the year under review, Cafe Deco Group had
been able to continue the momentum from the first half of the
financial year and the segment, including the Group's share of
revenue of associates, recorded total segment revenue of HK$700
million, a 6.2% increase from previous year (2014: HK$659 million).
The segment profit had been increased by 15.7%, from HK$22.3
million in 2013/14 to HK$25.8 million. Though the performance of
new outlets is outstanding, the one-off pre-operating costs of new
outlets offset the profit.

During the year, Cafe Deco Group had added two Berliner outlets and
one Cafe Deco Pizzeria outlet. In response to the demands of the
market, Cafe Deco Group will continue to expand scalable concepts,
such as Berliner and Cafe Deco Pizzeria in Hong Kong. In addition,
Cafe Deco Group has established a partnership with Fauchon, a
leading force in contemporary French culinary culture, and opened
the first Fauchon workshop and retail corner at our Cafe Deco Peak
outlet.

Furthermore, the operation of the centralised food processing facility
will allow Cafe Deco Group to have more control on the food quality
as well as to expand the distribution business under its umbrella.
Cafe Deco Group will continue to look for expanding their range of
premium products to add to their distribution business going forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OTHERS

The segment’s revenue was dropped by 1.7%, from HK$2,944
million in 2013/14 to HK$2,893 million. Despite the strong
performance of car dealership business of the Group’s associates in
Chengdu, the unsatisfactory performance of fresh produce supply
business in Australia eroded the revenue from this segment.

Compared with last financial year, the segment result slumped from
a loss of HK$41.6 million to a loss of HK$140 million, mainly due to
the impairment loss of HK$193 million in respect of the available-
for-sale investment in fresh produce supply business in Australia,
partially offset by an increase in share of profit generated from car
dealership business of the Group's associates. With the opening of
two new shops in Chengdu and the implementation of effective cost
control measures, revenue and profit of car dealership business are
expected to have steady growth in the coming year.

In Canada, the performance of two automobile dealerships, Action
Honda and Aurora Chrysler, was satisfactory during the year under
review. Total revenue of Action Honda and Aurora Chrysler exceeded
CAD32 million and CAD19 million respectively.

In Chengdu, a total of 13 4S shops are operated by a group of
associates, in which the Group has 40% equity interest, in different
cities of Sichuan province under car dealership business. There were
over 15,000 units of car sales reaching turnover exceeding RMB2,200
million during the year.

Intense market competition and high operating costs still existed
in the Group's information technology businesses that consist of
notebook computers, network solutions and copiers businesses.
The management has adopted cautious approach in operating the
businesses during the year under review.

Fresh produce supply business in Australia operating by the Group's
associates continued to underperform during the year under review.
After the management change in September 2014, the business
unit responded with a restructuring on multiple fronts, including
the disposal of the hydroponic tomato business and the wholesale
operations in New South Wales, Victoria, Queensland and West
Australia. As a result, the business unit has put its focus on its
potato business, which already is the largest fresh potato grower
in Australia. With the streamlining of business lines, the business
complexity and corresponding overheads have been reduced
significantly.

The weakening of the Australian dollar, which depreciated
approximately 15% against Hong Kong dollar during the year
under review, contributed also to the impairment of the Group's
investments in fresh produce supply business. As such, the Group
will closely monitor the trend and continue the hedging of the
position to minimise foreign currency exposure.

14 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Jmf

Lt

DERABR=-T—= —FEEK29.441F
TR A1 7% 2B 828.93BTL - BREAEER
RN E AR 2 AERIBEHRIAR
) (BB T R EY I R RIS RIR R NI
RIS Z D FHUWA »

N

ik F— AP BRFEE - pEEEREE4,160
BILEREEAEIA0ETER  FEHA
RN RIEM R EEBN A HEEE 2 IRE
BRI BRI A HE1.9318 7T - MED HAER
PR A8 N T > SEEE AR I B TR B AG 5 F) 8 AN B
HEH o BE = RCED M T IR AR Ok M E e B X
BRI HIFE b - AR IR ER 2 WA KR
FIBHR R FE A FBEER

REEF A - e KW E R BRI Action
Honda M Aurora ChryslerZ I8 32 48 - Action
Honda M Aurora Chrysler 82248 A 2 Bl 2 38
Jn#3,2008 7T & AN#EE1,9008 7T ©

REBER K EFEAA0% RIENT L N TIEE
ZHABEREBEBEN)IARNZERT A LK
Z13[84S)E o FNE 815,000 55E - &
BB AREE22 00187T ©

AEEERAMZER(BEELEEN - B4
R R 2 EI R ) R R SRR T 5 e 5
RSB EERA - REBEFR - BERED
REUE RIS R L ET -

REIBEFER - KB QREE RN
HEREDHERBDARERRRE - R=
T-MENABREEBEER  XKHMIEA
LAES - BROEKERNESR LN
BELE  HZMEE  BLTHERAAKX
MEH LB R - RFHBFIRBENFR
EX  WERARMNZANHEHRER
fHE - ZBHEMERAERNAERXCE
BEEBRRRAERD -

REBFEEAR  RITEHELEEERED
16% - TREBUNE B E ¥ i R IE M B TS
TEHIRERIE - Fit - NEE/E )RR
MERES  TeMEETE  UERER
DINERR



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue
Revenue of the Group increased by 21.9% or HK$900 million from
HK$4,113 million in 2013/14 to HK$5,013 million in 2014/15. The
increase was mainly contributed by construction and engineering
business.

Gross profit

Gross profit increased from HK$1,067 million in 2013/14 to HK$1,213
million in 2014/15 with gross profit margin decreased from 25.9% to
24.2%.

Other income, net

Net other income of HK$155 million was noted for the year ended
31 March 2015 (2014: HK$118 million). The increase was mainly
resulted from the increase in interest income of HK$37.9 million from
an associate (2014: nil).

Other gains, net

Net other gains of HK$957 million were recorded for the year ended
31 March 2015 (2014: HK$175 million). The significant increase was
primarily attributed to the gain on disposal of Chevalier Engineering
Service Centre through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
of HK$1,248 million (2014: nil), partially offsetting by the impairment
losses on amounts due from associates and joint ventures, available-
for-sale investments and trade and other debtors totaling HK$463
million (2014: HK$28.2 million).

Share of results of associates

The Group's share of results of associates rose to HK$249 million in
this year (2014: HK$79.4 million). The growth was mainly resulted
from the positive contribution in car dealership business in Mainland
China.

Share of results of joint ventures

The Group's share of results of joint ventures recorded a loss
of HK$28.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
HK$9.0 million). The increase in loss was substantially due to the
unsatisfactory performance of joint ventures of property development
business in Mainland China.

Finance costs, net

Net finance costs decreased by 7.2% or HK$7.3 million with the
support of strong cash inflow from proceeds from the disposal of
Chevalier Engineering Service Centre speeding up the settlement of
bank and other borrowings.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$1,537
million was achieved for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
HK$470 million), a substantial increase of 227% or HK$1,067 million
over last year.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Investment properties

The increase in the carrying value of investment properties of
HK$33.6 million from HK$3,647 million to HK$3,680 million as at 31
March 2015 was basically due to the fair value gain amounted to
HK$193 million reflecting the upward adjustment in property market
value in the regions, partially offsetting by the disposal of investment
property portion of Chevalier Engineering Service Centre amounted
to HK$121 million.

Property, plant and equipment

The disposals of property, plant and equipment portion of Chevalier
Engineering Service Centre amounted to HK$70.5 million mainly led
to a drop of HK$125 million in the carrying value of the property, plant
and equipment from HK$2,095 million to HK$1,970 million as at 31
March 2015.

Interests in associates (under non-current assets) and amounts
due from/to associates (under current assets/liabilities)

Interests in associates consisted of interests in associates, including
goodwill, of HK$657 million (2014: HK$507 million) and non-current
portion of amounts due from associates of HK$341 million (2014
HK$242 million).

The increment of interests in associates, including goodwill,
represented the share of profit of associates of HK$249 million
netting off by dividends received from associates of HK$92.7 million.

The amounts due from/to associates (under non-current and current
assets/liabilities), net decreased from HK$531 million to HK$323
million as at 31 March 2015, which was mainly resulted from the
net repayment from associates amounted to HK$66.9 million and
impairment loss on amounts due from associates amounted to
HK$66.8 million during the year.

Interests in joint ventures (under non-current assets) and
amounts due from joint ventures (under current assets)

Interests in joint ventures consisted of interests in joint ventures,
including goodwill, of HK$272 million (2014: HK$301 million) and
non-current portion of amounts due from joint ventures of HK$1,238
million (2014: HK$1,206 million).

The decrement of interests in joint ventures, including goodwill,
represented the share of loss of joint ventures of HK$28.8 million and
dividends received from joint ventures of HK$1.1 million.

The decrease in amounts due from joint ventures (under non-current
and current assets) from HK$1,335 million to HK$1,238 million as
at 31 March 2015 was mainly resulted from the impairment loss of
HK$154 million, offsetting partially by the net advance of HK$56.8
million during the year to joint ventures of property development
business in Mainland China.
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Available-for-sale investments

The decrease in available-for-sale investments from HK$456 million to
year end balance of HK$201 million was basically due to impairment
loss of HK$210 million during the year.

Properties under development (under non-current and current
assets)

The additions of HK$245 million to properties under development
(under non-current and current assets) represented the costs incurred
for a property development project in Changchun, Mainland China.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

The significant increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments of
HK$210 million to year end balance of HK$1,236 million was achieved
by normal business operations and an increment in advances to
joint venture partners of property development business in Mainland
China.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 March 2015, bank balances and cash increased to HK$2,663
million (2014: HK$1,201 million). 84.2% (2014: 66.3%) of bank
balances and cash were denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars
while 10.9% (2014: 25.4%) were denominated in Renminbi. The
strong bank balances and cash as at year end was mainly streamed
from proceeds from disposal of Chevalier Engineering Service Centre
and other subsidiaries of the Group and pre-sales of properties under
development.

Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals

The significant increase in creditors, bills payable, deposits and
accruals of HK$242 million to year end balance of HK$1,457 million
was basically due to deposits received on pre-sales of properties
under development.

Bank and other borrowings (under current and non-current
liabilities)

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's bank and other borrowings
decreased to HK$3,528 million (2014: HK$4,067 million) due to
settlement of debts by operating funds and proceeds from disposals
of subsidiaries and pre-sales of properties under development. At the
end of the reporting period, 96.7% and 2.7% (2014: 95.3% and 4.0%)
of bank and other borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong and
US dollars and in Renminbi respectively.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings in respect of the portion
due within one year slightly increased to 16.7% as at 31 March 2015
which was relatively stable comparing to 16.1% as at 31 March 2014.
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Majority of the borrowings in Hong Kong and Mainland China are
carrying floating interest rates, of which most of them are based on
Hong Kong or London Interbank Offered Rates with small portions
based on prime rates, while majority of the borrowings in US are
carrying fixed interest rates insured by US government.

Finance costs charged to the consolidated income statement during
the year dropped to HK$115 million (2014: HK$117 million).

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to HK$7,889 million (2014:
HK$6,614 million), an increase of HK$1,275 million or 19.3% when
compared with 2014. Such significant increase was mainly resulted
from the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$1,537 million, offsetting by the payment of dividends (net of
issue of shares under scrip dividend schemes) of HK$158 million
and exchange difference on translation of operations of overseas
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of HK$91.6 million during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

LEVERAGE RATIOS

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and US.

As at 31 March 2015, included in the Group's total debt amounted
to HK$3,528 million (2014: HK$4,067 million), HK$860 million (2014:
HK$933 million) was attributable to senior housing business in which
HK$844 million (2014: HK$867 million) was without recourse to the
Company.

Analysis of net debt is set out below:

Unsecured: I
— senior housing business —ZEREER
— other business — H 25
Secured: BHHEM
— senior housing business —REREEE
— other business —H 25
Total debt BIETE
Bank balances and cash RITEFTRIAS
Net debt FE
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As at 31 March 2015, with the decrease in bank and other
borrowings, total debt to equity ratio decreased to 42.0% (2014
57.5%), which was expressed as a percentage of bank and other
borrowings over the Group’s net assets of HK$8,399 million (2014
HK$7,077 million). Net debt to equity ratio dropped significantly to
10.3% (2014: 40.5%), which was expressed as a percentage of
net bank and other borrowings (representing total bank and other
borrowings net of bank balances and cash) over the Group's net
assets. Ratio of total debt to total assets of HK$15,329 million (2014:
HK$13,925 million) decreased from 29.2% to 23.0% as at 31 March
2015.

With adequate banking facilities in place and recurrent cash
generation from its operations, the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet the funding requirements for its ongoing
operations as well as its future expansion.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. The Group's treasury activities are centralised in order
to achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds. Cash is
generally placed in short-term deposits with majority denominated in
Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi or US dollar. The Group's liquidity and
financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments or maturity of borrowings, the Group will consider new
financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
INTEREST RATES

The major currencies used to operate the businesses are Australian
dollar, Euro, Hong Kong dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and US
dollar. As at 31 March 2015, the Group had arranged foreign currency
swap contracts amounting to HK$363 million (2014: HK$368 million)
to hedge part of its foreign currency risk from the Group’s investment
in Australia and exposure from various foreign currencies used for
business operations. The Group had outstanding interest rate swap
contracts which amounted to HK$1,600 million in total as at 31
March 2015 (2014: HK$800 million), enabling the Group to manage
its interest rate exposure.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, bank and other borrowings of HK$1,962 million
(2014: HK$2,378 million) and other unutilised banking facilities were
secured by charges on investment properties of HK$2,172 million
(2014: HK$2,100 million), property, plant and equipment of HK$1,216
million (2014: HK$1,364 million), interest in a joint venture of HK$174
million (2014: HK$202 million), other non-current assets of HK$21.8
million (2014: nil), inventories of HK$23.0 million (2014: HK$28.6
million), debtors, deposits and prepayments of HK$49.2 million (2014
HK$52.8 million) and deposits at bank of HK$144 million (2014:
HK$200 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENT

Details of the commitment are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements. The commitment is to be financed by
borrowings and internal funds.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES AND
THEIR PROFORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have provided financial
assistance to, and guarantees for banking facilities granted to,
affiliated companies as at 31 March 2015, which together in
aggregate amounted to HK$1,590 million as loans and HK$612
million as guarantees issued for banking facilities granted. These
amounts represented a percentage ratio of approximately 14.7% as
at 31 March 2015 and exceeded the assets ratio of 8% under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, an unaudited
proforma combined statement of financial position of those affiliated
companies with financial assistance from the Group and the Group's
attributable interest in those affiliated companies as at 31 March
2015 are presented below:

Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mEEE
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Shareholders’ advances AR &R

Total equity/(deficit) HiEw (B8R)

As at 31 March 2015, the banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees,
amounted to HK$178 million.
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DR CHOW YEI CHING G.B.S., O.B.E., Executive Director, Chairman
of the Board and Executive Committee, aged 79, is the founder of
Chevalier Group since 1970. He is also a director of certain companies
of the Group. Dr Chow is an independent non-executive director of
Television Broadcasts Limited and resigned on 1 March 2015. In
1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Business Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and an Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong.
In 1997, he was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws
by The University of Hong Kong. He is also a Consultative Professor
of Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union
University in Mainland China. In 2008, Dr Chow was awarded with
an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Social Science by City University of
Hong Kong. In 2013, Dr Chow was also awarded with an Doctor of
Social Science honoris causa in Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. Dr Chow's enthusiasm in public services is evidenced
in his appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The Community
Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary Consul
of the Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001. Dr Chow also
actively participates in various professional bodies and associations
on fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is the Founding
President of International Ningbo Merchants Association Company
Limited, the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and the
Permanent Honorary President of the National Taiwan University
— HK Alumni Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to
local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable
decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan and especially
the Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon in Japan
in 2008. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia
Star from the HKSAR Government in 2004. He is the father of Mr
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow, Executive Directors of
the Company.

MR KUOK HOI SANG, Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Managing Director, a member of the Executive Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, aged
65, joined Chevalier Group in 1972. He is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. He is the President of The Lift and Escalator
Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of the Hong
Kong — China Branch of The International Association of Elevator
Engineers, Vice President of The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical
and Mechanical Contractors Limited and a Registered Lift and
Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member of the Guangzhou
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
Mr Kuok has extensive experience in business development and
is responsible for the strategic planning and management of the
operations of lift and escalator, building construction, building
supplies, aluminium windows and curtain walls, electrical and
mechanical engineering, civil engineering, property investment and
development as well as investment projects of Chevalier Group.
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MR TAM KWOK WING, Executive Director, Deputy Managing
Director and a member of the Executive Committee, aged 54, joined
Chevalier Group in 1986. He is also a director of certain companies
of the Group. Mr Tam oversees all legal affairs of the Group and
he is responsible for the operations of cold storage and logistics;
insurance services; property investment and development; property
management; and travel agency businesses.

Mr Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Beijing University of
the People’s Republic of China; a Master of Arts Degree from City
University of Hong Kong; and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr Tam is
a fellow member of each of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators; the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom; and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Mr Tam is also a Chartered Member of the Chartered Institute of
Housing.

At present, Mr Tam is the elected President of the Hong Kong
Association of Property Management Companies; a Councilor
of the General Insurance Council in The Hong Kong Federation
of Insurers and the Vice President of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He is also appointed as a Member of the
Occupational Safety and Health Council; a member of the Employees’
Compensation Insurance Levies Management Board and a member
of the Property Management Industry Training Advisory Committee
of the Education Bureau. In addition, he is an Honorary Secretary of
the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau.

Mr Tam is also appointed as the Honorary Vice Consul of the Kingdom
of Bahrain in Hong Kong. He also serves as the Secretary General
of the Hong Kong Bahrain Business Association. In Mainland China,
Mr Tam is appointed as a member of the Changchun Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since 2007
and he is also the Deputy Director of its Hong Kong Macao Taiwan
Overseas and Chinese Foreign Committee. Mr Tam is also a Council
Member of the Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors.
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MR CHOW VEE TSUNG, OSCAR, Executive Director, a member
of the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee, aged 41, joined Chevalier Group in
2000. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group and is
currently in charge of the project development, assets management,
food and beverage and fresh produce supply businesses of the
Group. He is also responsible for Chevalier Group’s finance and
accounting, information technology, company secretarial, corporate
communications, human resources and general administration
activities. Mr Chow was an independent non-executive director of
Towngas China Company Limited and resigned on 8 May 2015.
He holds a degree in Master of Engineering from The University
of Oxford, U.K. and is currently a General Committee Member
of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and a General
Committee Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Shanghai Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference and a member
of the SME Development Fund Vetting Committee of Trade and
Industry Department of the HKSAR Government. Mr Chow is also
a court member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and The
University of Hong Kong and also a Council Member of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr Chow is the son
of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and is also a
brother of Miss Lily Chow, Executive Director of the Company.

MR HO CHUNG LEUNG, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 65, joined Chevalier Group in 1985. He is
also a director of certain companies of the Group and is responsible
for the internal audit activities of Chevalier Group. Mr Ho is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

MR MA CHI WING, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 46, joined Chevalier Group in 1993.
He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. Mr Ma has
extensive experience in the project management and is currently
in charge of the senior housing, car dealerships, hotel investment
and trading businesses of the Group. Mr Ma holds a Master Degree
in Business Administration from The University of Warwick, U.K.,
a Bachelor Degree in International Business Studies from City
University of Hong Kong, a Corporate Finance Certificate from UC
Berkeley, US, and a Professional Certificate in China Construction
from Tsinghua University, Mainland China.

MISS LILY CHOW, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 52, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She
is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. She is responsible
for strategic planning and business development of the Group.
Miss Chow holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
British Columbia. Miss Chow is currently a member of Harbourfront
Commission of Development Bureau of the HKSAR Government
and Independent Member of Appeal Board of the Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong. She is also currently a member of the
Ningbo Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference. Miss Chow is the daughter of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the
Chairman of the Company and is also a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Executive Director of the Company.
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DR KO CHAN GOCK, WILLIAM S.B.S., Ph.D., Non-Executive
Director, aged 69, joined the Company in 2009. Dr Ko graduated
from The University of Hong Kong in 1968. He has served in the
HKSAR Government for more than 38 years, having worked in a wide
range of departments including the Water Supplies Department,
the Highways Department, the Civil Engineering and Development
Department and the Works Branch. In 2001, he was appointed as
the Director of Water Supplies. Dr Ko retired from the civil service in
January 2007.

DR CHOW MING KUEN, JOSEPH O.B.E., J.P., Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 73, joined the Company in 2002. He is the Chairman of Joseph
Chow & Partners Ltd., an independent non-executive director of
Build King Holdings Limited, Road King Infrastructure Limited,
Harbour Centre Development Limited and Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. Dr. Chow is a civil and structural engineer by profession.
He has over 40 years of experience in the planning, design and
construction of many major engineering projects in the U.K., Middle
East, Mainland China and Hong Kong. He was formerly the Chairman
of the Hong Kong Construction Workers Registration Authority and
Hon. Senior Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force.
He was previously the President of The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers, Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’ Registration Board,
Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority and Pamela
Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Governing Committee as well
as a Member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and Hospital
Authority.

MR SUN KAI DAH, GEORGE, Independent Non-Executive Director,
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, aged 75, joined
the Company in 2006. He has extensive experience in business
management. He was the founder of Zindart Limited, a company
incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United States NASDAQ. He
has retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer of Zindart
Limited since 1998.
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MR YANG CHUEN LIANG, CHARLES B.5.S., J.P., Independent
Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee, a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 56, joined the Company in 2008. Mr Yang obtained a Master
Degree in Business Administration from Cass Business School
London in 1983 and is currently a partner at S. Y. Yang & Company,
Practising firm of Accountants and member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales as well as the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a director of
Phoenix U Radio Limited. His community duties include the Director
and ABAC chairman of the Community Chest, member of the Social
Welfare Advisory Committee, Occupational Safety & Health Council,
Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), an independent director of the
Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong, a member of Assessment
Committee of Mega Events Fund of Tourism Commission and a
member of Hospital Governing Committee of Caritas Medical Centre.
Mr Yang was selected as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador”
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was
appointed as Justice of Peace by the HKSAR Government in 2004
and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government in
2011.

PROFESSOR POON CHUNG KWONG G.B.S., J.P., Ph.D., D.Sc.,
Independent Non-Executive Director, aged 75, joined the Company
in 2012. Professor Poon obtained a Bachelor of Science (honours)
degree from the University of Hong Kong, a Doctor of Philosophy
degree and a Higher Doctor of Science degree from the University
of London. He was a postdoctoral fellow at the California Institute
of Technology and University of Southern California. He also held
the Honorary Degree of Doctor of Humanities from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2009. Professor Poon is currently
the chairman of Virya Foundation Limited (a registered non-profit
charitable organisation). He is an Emeritus Professor and the
President Emeritus of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and had
devoted 40 years of his life to advancing university education in Hong
Kong before he retired in January 2009 from his 18-year presidency
at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Professor Poon was
appointed a non-official Justice of the Peace in 1989 and received the
OBE award in 1991, the Gold Bauhinia Star award in 2002, and the
“Leader of the Year Awards 2008 (Education)”. In addition, Professor
Poon was appointed as a member of the Legislative Council (1985-
1991) and a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (1998-2013). Professor
Poon is a non-executive director of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing
Limited and an independent non-executive director of Henderson
Land Development Company Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas
Company Limited, Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited and K.
Wah International Holdings Limited, all of which are public companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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SCHEDULE OF VIAJOR PROPERTIES

REERARE AHZ ERYRFIINT

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at the date of this
report are as follows:

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR
OWN USE

() BERE BRWE

Approximate
gross
floor area*

BREERAOB*

The Group’s
Lease term interest

ZNEY FEEFEER

Location

3 B

26

Hong Kong
58

Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor,
19th to 23rd Floors and
one-third interest in 201
car parking spaces of
Chevalier Commercial Centre,

8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

NEEERFAB\FELEEFRL
TE—ZFT—E2-"TNE-
ThEaE_+=ZEK
=D —#m 2 FBEA201F

Chevalier Warehouse Building,
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen,
Fanling
MeETERLRE—FELTERRE

Ground Floor of Blocks A and B,
East Sun Industrial Centre,
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong
BEREETNRIBETEAD
ARE K BEEHE T

29-33 Tsing Yi Road, Tsing Yi
BERERE-_TNAE=+T=%5%

8 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung
EREEE/N\R

124-130 Kwok Shui Road and
79-85 Yau Ma Hom Road,
Kwai Chung
ERREE B THNE—E=1T5R K
MR T LENA+ R

9 Henderson Road, Jardine's Lookout
B )| L ERE LR

No. 20, Shek O Road
ARE — 15

Office premise and
carpark
N

Industrial

T

Industrial

Ix

Industrial

Ix

Cold storage warehouse
RERE

Cold storage warehouse

RERE

Residential
F=

Residential
F=E

sq. ft.F R

174,600

118,300

14,900

253,500

380,000

427,500

9,600

5,300
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Medium
HRHR

Medium

Medium

A

Medium

A

Medium
HRHR

Medium

A

Long
~H

Long
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%

100

100

100

87.5

75

75

100

100



SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
EFBYERR

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR
OWN USE (CONTINUED)

() BEREBRMEER)

Approximate
gross
floor area*

The Group’s
Lease term interest

ZNEY FEEFEER

Location
i 2, BEHEENE>
sq. ft. - F AR %

Singapore

03K

Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road,
Singapore 349481

The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road,
Singapore 349473

Canada

P

838 Hamilton Street, Vancouver, B.C.

4334-4340 Kingston Road,
Ontario, MIF 2M8

14535-14583 Yonge Street, Aurora,
Ontario

us
EE]

430 East Grand Avenue,
South San Francisco, CA 94080

13258 Nelson Avenue,
City of Industry, Los Angeles,
CA 91746

4510 Duraleigh Road, Raleigh,
NC 27612

1700 Montana Drive, Charlotte,
NC 28216

3060 SE Stark Street, Portland,
OR 97214

14420 SW, Farmington Road,
Beaverton, OR 97005

535 U.S Highway 158W, Yanceyville,

NC 27379

2560 Willard Road, Winston-Salem,
NC 27107

Industrial

e

Industrial

T

Hotel
B

Office and workshop for
automobile dealership

FRYERERH
MAERTS

Office and workshop for
automobile dealership

FR1E/RERH
WAERTS

Industrial/MVarehouse

I%/RE
Industrial/MWVarehouse
I%2E
Senior Housing
T
Senior Housing
L
Senior Housing
ZERE
Senior Housing
zERE
Senior Housing

ZERE

Senior Housing

RERE

106,500

16,900

66,000

20,200

25,000

37,000

38,600

52,700

34,400

143,000

35,000

38,900

33,300

Freehold
KA FERE

Freehold
KA ZFERE

Freehold
KA EERE

Freehold
KA FERE

Freehold
KA EERE

Freehold
KA EERE
Freehold
KA FERE
Freehold
KA FERE
Freehold
KA ZFERE
Freehold
KA FERE
Freehold
KA EERE
Freehold
KA FERE

Freehold
KA ZERE

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

98.6

100

100

100

98.6

98.6
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SCHEDULE OF MIAJOR PROPERTIES
FEYERER

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR () BERE BRWEE)
OWN USE (CONTINUED)

Approximate

gross The Group’s
Location floor area* Lease term interest
ith 2 EHERROH> ROFH KAEEMhERE
sq. ft. - F AR %
Thailand
HH
Chevalier House, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
540 Bamrungmuang Road, showroom KA ZENE
Debsirin Sub-district, MAERRSZE

Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis

Mainland China

FE Rt
Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road, Residential, shop and 142,600 Long 80
Xuhui District, Shanghai carpark KHj
DETHRERZEE—BAT/ARTE %  HfHkiFzE5
Units 3-9 of 18th Floor, Office premise 13,000 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, FE/NE HER
69 Xianlie Zhong Road,
Guangzhou

BT 2L BRI U5
RLES T \B==n=

(1) PROPERTIES FOR SALE () M
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location floor area* Lease term interest
ih B BHEENH* RAFH AEBAEER
sq. ft. L AR %
Hong Kong
B8
Units 1601-1603 on 16th Floor, 3,800 Medium 100
Chevalier House, 45-51 Chatham Road South, A HA
Tsim Sha Tsui

%) ’J\HH/@TL@EJrﬁiEJr SRELTRE

FTRE—RE—E—RZ=F

Mainland China

R Bl A it

My Villa — 23 villas and 10 shop units, 211,000 Medium 44
Huairou District, Beijing A HA

LR IER RERED R 22 B8 (7 231 K 5 1 0

Chateau Ermitas — 48 villas, 90 residential units and 540,000 Medium 100
334 car parking spaces, Lushan Avenue, Chengdu A HA

PRESTH R LU A B (LSRRI 22481 - (£ 9018 K
2 E{I3341E
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

(111) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Stage of Expected date Approximate
Location completion of completion  Major usage site area
3 82 + 3
b 2h EE FEEZTIAH IEAZ ERAH
sq. ft. LHIR
Mainland China
FERi
Luyuan District, Changchun In progress 2015 t0 2027 Residential and 3,050,000
REMHER TR#ETH —T-HFZE commercial
T ARREE
Shuangliu County, Chengdu In progress 2017 Villa and 455,000
BETIE R TR TH S residential
AEREE
*  Excluding carparks * REiEEES
+ Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, +

resettlement buildings and clubhouses

FEYRER

() BEEPYE(E)

TEEBTE  FES -

Estimated

gross floor The
Group's
interest

area after
completion*
TR EEE r£HE
EHEAR Friaks
sq. ft. AR %

7,463,000 96

1,142,000 100

RERE @

BRER G 2 BHEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CREARE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasing
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules sets out two levels of corporate governance code namely, code
provisions that a listed company must comply with or explain its non-
compliance, and recommended best practices that a listed company is
encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-
compliance. The Company is in compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. All the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-Laws.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr Sun Kai Dah, George, an Independent Non-
Executive Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 29 August 2014 due to an oversea
commitment.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group's overall
objectives and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance and reviews the corporate governance
standard of the Company. It also decides on matters such as annual
and interim results, notifiable transactions, director appointments or
re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies. Management
profile of the Company as at the date of this report is set out on
pages 21 to 25.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEERRE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) EEE2(E)
The Board comprises seven Executive Directors, one Non-Executive BEECEHHEBRTESE  —BIFPTEER
Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors. The full TUEIB IENITES#K c ES 2N CIESE
Board met four times during the year under review. The attendance ERAXBITTORSEH  SEEE=F2Q
of Directors at the Board Meetings, the Board Committees Meetings 2 ESLEeeRNMREASSZNLEE
and General Meeting is set out in the table below: R -
Meetings Attended/Held
BRLEBITRE
Annual
Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Directors Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
5= EEg EREEE FHEES REZEE BRREFAS
Executive Directors
HiTEF
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) 3/4 - - - n
BMEE L (£E)
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and
Managing Director) 4/4 - 11 11 "
IBES A (G E/EFEFLATE)
Mr Tam Kwok Wing
(Deputy Managing Director) 4/4 - - - n
BB ST (Bl FARACTE)
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 4/4 - 11 11 7
A IESEE
Mr Ho Chung Leung 4/4 - - - n
A RREAE
Mr Ma Chi Wing 4/4 - - - n
Miss Lily Chow 4/4 - - - 1"
[EFIF] /) aE
Non-Executive Director
HHTEE
Dr Ko Chan Gock, William 4/4 - - - il
aEEET
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHNTEE
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 4/4 33 n n n
[ElRREE+
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George 2/4 3/3 11 1 on
RAERE
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles 4/4 33 n n n
HiEmEE
Professor Poon Chung Kwong 4/4 - - - n
AR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other except that Dr Chow Yei Ching is the
father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow; while Miss
Chow is a sister of Mr Chow.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company met
at all times the requirements of the Listing Rules to have at least
three Independent Non-Executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board and with at least one Independent Non-
Executive Director possessing appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise and professional qualifications.

The Company has received from its Independent Non-Executive
Directors annual confirmation of independence in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and concluded that all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company also provides reading materials updates
to the Directors on the latest developments and changes to the
Listing Rules, the applicable laws and regulations relating to directors’
duties and responsibilities.

During the year under review, the Company arranged a seminar to
the Directors to update them on the relevant topics regarding an
overview and its impact on directors’ duties of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). All Directors attended or received
the materials at the seminar. Directors’ training is an ongoing process
and all Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to provide records
of training they received to the Company Secretary of the Company
for records.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board shall have power to appoint any person as a director either
to fill a vacancy or for expansion of the Board. The Company has
set up a Nomination Committee for formulating nomination policy
for consideration of the Board and making recommendations to the
Board on the selection, appointment and re-appointment of directors.
All candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company. New directors appointed by the Board
during the year are required to retire and submit themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting or general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third are required to retire from office by rotation and no later than the
third annual general meeting since the last re-election or appointment
of such Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The code provision of CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. The Chairman of the Company is Dr
Chow Yei Ching and the Managing Director is Mr Kuok Hoi Sang. The
role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Managing Director.
The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning of the
Board while the Managing Director is responsible for managing the
Group’s businesses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have
been revised in March 2012 in compliance with the provisions set
out in the CG Code. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent
Non-Executive Director, is the Chairman of the committee. He
has extensive experience in financial reporting and controls. Other
members include all other Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely, Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr Sun Kai Dah, George.
The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointments of external
auditors, review of the Group’s financial information and oversight of
the Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures
and risk management frameworks. It is also responsible for reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. Its terms of reference are accessible
on the Stock Exchange'’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and
the Company's website at http://www.chevalier.com.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
March 2015. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions
(if any), the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2014 and last year’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2014,
and had reviewed with management the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal
controls, financial reporting matters and risk management systems of
the Group. The final results for the year ended 31 March 2015 were
reviewed by the Audit Committee in its meeting held on 17 June
2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 March
2005 with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee have been revised in March 2012
in compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the Chairman of the committee.
Other members of the committee include Messrs Yang Chuen
Liang, Charles, Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hoi Sang and Chow
Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure on the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy for
approval by the Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the operation model where it has the responsibility, powers
and discretion to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. Its terms of reference are accessible
on the Stock Exchange's website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and
the Company’s website at http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2015 to review the remuneration packages paid to
Directors and senior management for the year ended 31 March 2015.
Details of the emoluments of Directors and senior management by
bands are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March 2012
with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee have been revised in June 2013 so as to
incorporate Board Diversity Policy effective from 1 September
2013. A Board Diversity Policy has been adopted to set out policy
for designing the composition of the Board with diversity in Board
members having balanced skills and expertise. The diversity of the
Board members should be assessed on a diversity of perspectives
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional knowledge, industry experience, skills and
other individual qualities. The Nomination Committee will discuss and
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board
and make relevant recommendations to the Board for adoption.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Mr Sun Kai Dah, George is the Chairman of the committee.
Other members of the committee include Dr Chow Ming Kuen,
Joseph, Messrs Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Kuok Hoi Sang
and Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive. The Nomination
Committee has the responsibility to consider, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships. Its terms of reference are accessible on
the Stock Exchange’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company’s website at http://www.chevalier.com. The Nomination
Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31 March 2015
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group's business to an Executive Committee which
was established in 1991. The terms of reference of the Executive
Committee have been revised in March 2012 so as to incorporate
corporate governance functions as stipulated in the CG Code.
Members of the Executive Committee comprise seven Executive
Directors, namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Chairman of the committee,
Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing, Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar,
Ho Chung Leung, Ma Chi Wing and Miss Lily Chow.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board
had conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal control, covering financial, operational, compliance
control and risk management functions. The Group's system of
internal control includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve its
business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group's
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business
objectives.
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EEERRE

INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman.
It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group's
activities and internal controls. It also conducts special audits of
areas of concern identified by management or the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-based audit approach.
All audit reports are circulated to the Audit Committee and key
management. The Internal Audit Department is also responsible for
following up the implementation of recommendations and corrective
actions. The Audit Committee has free and direct access to the Head
of Internal Audit Department without reference to the Chairman of
the Board or management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015,
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are fair and reasonable and prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
as set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 54 to 55.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the fees paid/payable
to the auditors in respect of the audit and non-audit services provided
by the auditors to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services
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Audit services

=R

PricewaterhouseCoopers

— PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide network of 8,006

R B G RTAN B PT M E M B B R B 2 IR T BT

— other auditors

H A AZERED

Non-audit services

FEAZBRTS

PricewaterhouseCoopers

3,301

— PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide network of 888

UK B G RTRNE T M E M B B R B 2 IR T BT

— other auditors

H A AZERED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry,
each of the Directors confirmed that he/she has complied with the
Model Code throughout the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. During the year
under review, the Company Secretary had duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposit at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary and deposit at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
enquiry@chevalier.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting (“GM"”)
Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or shall not less
than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also
be signed by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Putting forward proposal at general meeting (“GM"”) (continued)
The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses giving the
notice of the resolution and circulating the statement submitted by
the shareholders concerned under applicable laws and rules.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person
for election as a director is posted on the website of the Company.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group's senior management maintains close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various
channels including individual interviews and meetings. The Group
also responds promptly to request for information and queries from
the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to
the shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and
annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial
and other information relating to the Group are disclosed on the
Company's website at http://www.chevalier.com.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND BYE-LAWS OF THE
COMPANY

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

Sustainability is essential to the Group’s development, as well as
for the viability of its business and the benefit of the community.
We dedicate to offer premium products and services to achieve all-
round customer satisfaction. The Group believes in environmental
protection and cares for the community with various charitable
initiatives to make positive contributions to society. We also nurture
its staff and offers career development opportunities to further
ensure its business continuity. During the year under review,
the Group was committed to a high standard of corporate social
responsibility and four key subject areas for reporting were: (l)
Workplace Quality, (II) Environmental Protection, (lll) Operating
Practices and (IV) Community Involvement.

() WORKPLACE QUALITY
To attract, develop and retain qualified employees, the Group is
committed to offer professional development opportunities and
a healthy working environment for all employees and on-site
staff. In addition, we implement equal opportunity employment
practices.

Working conditions

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total of approximately
3,500 full-time employees globally, with 2,400 in Hong Kong and
Macau, 700 in Mainland China and 400 in other locations, mainly
Australia, Canada and Thailand. During the year, the Group was
facing challenge of the competitive labour markets and staff
turnover rate of 2.6% was recorded in Hong Kong.

The Group reviews the compensation and benefits programs
regularly to ensure that those benefits are both competitive to
the market. Besides, annual review will be conducted to align
pay packages of employees and other benefits, which include
medical scheme, health check program, travelling insurance,
training subsidies and retirement benefits, with prevailing market
conditions.

Different recreational and health-related activities were
arranged by our Human Resources Department and 4 events
and 3 interest classes or workshops were organised in Hong
Kong during the year to increase the sense of belonging of
our employees. The Group also cares about the family lives
of employees and strives to help our employees to maintain
a balance between their work and personal lives. In order to
enhance colleagues’ interest in reading, the Group has enhanced
the variety of books and magazines in our library, and selected
and purchased over 400 new books of best sellers consisting of
different topics during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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() WORKPLACE QUALITY (CONTINUED)

40

Employee Health and Safety

The Group is committed providing a safe and healthy working
environment to all employees and on-site staff. Regular
monitoring of the work environment and facilities provided
for staff is undertaken. The Group has stringent regulation for
employees who are assigned to work on construction sites to
ensure a high standard of occupational safety and protecting
employees from occupational hazards. Safety and health care
trainings are provided from time to time for newcomers and
relevant personnel at our construction sites so as to improve
their awareness on safety working environment. Moreover, we
offer special safety equipment such as safety helmets, ear plugs,
dust masks, goggles and safety shoes. Additional rest periods
and shelters, ventilation facilities and potable water for workers
are also provided during hot weather.

Occupational Health and Safety Committee

Our property management business has obtained OHSAS18001
to ensure the compliance of the occupational health and safety
requirements since 2006. Head office and selected sites are
being audited periodically by British Standards Institution to
renew the certificate. There is a Safety Committee which
consists of members from head office property management
staff and site level operation staff to formulate site safety
measures and policies. Regular meetings are scheduled every 3
months for post-implementation review of audited sites, as well
as information on any recent accidents or injuries and respective
precautionary measures to be taken. Trainings are organised in
each audited site every 3 months to enhance their awareness
of occupational safety. We have maintained a low accident rate
at two cases of these audited sites last year. In addition, our
subsidiary was also elected as the President for the Hong Kong
Association of Property Management Companies and would
promote the importance of occupational safety by organising
various occupational safety-related activities.

Site Safety Subgroup

Site safety inspections are carried out in our construction and
engineering segment on a regular basis and any findings in
major unsafe act and unsafe condition is rectified promptly.
The site safety subgroup comprising representatives from our
project companies and subcontractors and meetings will be held
frequently.

Our food and beverage segment has provided regular briefing
and monitored work environment and facilities, hygiene at
workplaces, fire precaution and first aid measures are conducted
on-site at restaurants and bars to protect employees from
occupational hazards. The work related fatalities and lost days
due to work injury recorded as nil and 501 days respectively.

For our senior housing business, it is critical that our operators
are in compliance with relevant laws in employee health and
safety through various contractual arrangements. When a new
facility is acquired, the operators would be interviewed for
assessment of their overall competency. We also conduct legal
due diligence to identify material legal issue.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

WORKPLACE QUALITY (CONTINUED)

Employee Development and Training

As knowledge and skills of our employees are vital to the
Group's continued business development and success, we strive
to ensure the professional development of our staff to their
fullest potential. The Group nominates staff to attend internal
and external training programs every year, with the Human
Resources Department actively seeking employees’ feedback.
The programs range from professional and technical training
to personal development skills. The Group has also provided
education subsidies encouraging staff to develop their skills and
broaden their knowledge. To ensure continuous supply of new
talent, the Group also organised apprenticeship programs and
provided apprentices with on-the-job training.

Our food and beverage segment provides a wide range of
training and development programs to new colleagues, including
service skills and product training as well as leadership capability
development solutions.

Equal Opportunities

The Group advocates a community spirit that thrives on mutual
respect and equal opportunities. The Group complies strictly to
equal opportunities legislation, such as the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, Race Discrimination Ordinance, Disability
Discrimination Ordinance and Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance. To ensure diversity and equality, we recruit,
remunerate and promote employees based on their experience,
skills and performance, without prejudice to age, race, disability,
gender or family status.

Code of Conduct

The Group upholds high standards of business ethics and
personal conduct of its employees. The Personal Conduct
and Staff Conduct Code in the Human Resources Policies and
Procedure Manual, published via intranet, is regularly updated.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures and
awareness in all business practices. The Group also has a
committed partnership with World Wild Fund for Nature
(WWEF), a well-established conservationist non-governmental
organisation, to contribute to the sustainable development of our
environment.

The Group has also been taking part via its environmental
engineering subsidiary in various large-scale projects related to
water and wastewater, as well as solid waste treatment and
disposal including but not limited to the conversion from heavy
fuel oil to ultra-low sulphur diesel at CLP Castle Peak Power
Station, the construction of Tai Po Water Treatment Works
Stream |I, and the maintenance of E&M control systems at
various Sewage Treatment Works and their outstations.
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() ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

42

Energy Efficiency

The Group has introduced a green policy to enhance the
awareness of environmental protection among staff with the
aims of saving energy, fully utilising resources and recycling
wastes in daily office operation.

For the past years, the Group had undertaken initiatives to
reduce paper usage including usage of electronic devices, and
encourage the use of websites and online version of corporate
communications. The paper usage dropped by 3% in this
financial year though there were many new projects/sites. Our
appointed professional waste paper contractor had collected
a total weight of 82,000kg waste paper during the year and
shredded papers would be recycled which produced less
394,000kg greenhouse gas or carbon equivalent as per Hong
Kong Environmental Protection Department. The total carbon
reduction is equivalent to carbon sequestered by 10,000 trees
seeding growing for 10 years. Since 2008, Forest Stewardship
Council-certified papers have been used for the production of
our Annual and Interim Reports to reduce the impact on the
environment and community. Besides, takeaway bags made
from biodegradable material is being used across all outlets of
our restaurants for takeaway orders.

To reduce the power consumption of our lighting systems, the
Group had replaced all lighting basins continuously throughout
our offices with T5 florescent tube, saving 20% of electricity
energy as compared with T8 florescent tube. Most of our office
equipment carries Energy Label issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department which would further save
the energy in the offices. To further support the environment
protection, the Group had purchased the new electric vehicle in
March 2015 to replace the conventional vehicles gradually. The
new electric vehicle may improve roadside air quality and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions.

Our construction and engineering segment was put in
considerable efforts in protecting the environment at our project
sites. Measures were implemented in the area including noise
control, waste water discharge, chemical waste disposal, dust
control, use of recyclable waste materials, prevention of chemical
leakage, etc. An example would be the use of biodiesel in some
of our machineries on site. Environmental protection policies
and plans were set up for different projects. Some of our group
companies have obtained the ISO14001 certification awarded
by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA") which also
demonstrated our commitment in our environmental protection.

Property management business of the Group has possessed
the ISO14001 certification. Activities were held in organising the
recycling and promotion of green projects to support a green
living lifestyle for its residents. In saving energy and expenditure,
it is targeted for audited sites to reduce 5% consumption of
electricity in 5 years by changing the light tube from T8 to T5 and
turning off some lifts during non-peak hours. In our managed
sites, we have organised the collection of clothes, moon cake
container, red pocket, toner cartridge, battery, electric bulb/tube
and glass bottle to promote recycling concept to our customers.
Besides, as the Municipal Solid Waste Charging Scheme is to be
implemented in future, the business will make every endeavour
to support the implementation of this policy at the audited sites.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

() ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

Energy Efficiency (continued)

Our food and beverage segment is one of the pilot members
of Hong Kong Cooking Oil Registration Scheme, organised by
HKQAA. Purchase record of cooking oil and used oil collection
by registered oil collector are maintained to ensure traceability
on the oil source and eco-friendly way of used oil disposal
preventing unlawful and reckless disposal methods that are
harmful to the environment.

Our fresh produce supply business continues to protect our
environment by enhancing our farming process. All the packing
facility will have its own waste water treatment infrastructure
enabling us to recycle all daily water used in the potato washing
process.

(1l1) OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group carefully selected qualified suppliers to ensure
that the entire production process is in line with our standards
and rules. We not only requested new suppliers to submit a
review of all relevant documents, but also conducted rigorous
check to assess their reliability. We carried out inspections and
assessments regularly to review the suppliers’ standards and
terminated the cooperation with unqualified suppliers.

Fair Operating Practices

The Group upholds fair operating practices in its contracting
with subcontractors and suppliers through an efficient
procurement system. We also adopted competitive tendering
and subcontractors’ performance monitoring and reporting.
Regular reviews of terms and conditions of subcontracts and
supply contracts are carried out between the Group and its
subcontractors and suppliers which enabling the development
of effective and strong partnerships. Such reviews also cover
the potential enhancement of social, ethical, environmental and
gender equality criteria in subcontracts and supply contracts.

Product/Service Responsibility

The Group recognises good customer and after-sales services
are keys to the success and sustainability of the company. In
order to make quick responses to the needs of our customers,
the Group therefore set up customer service teams in different
business units to handle customers’ queries in a more efficient
way.

The Group respects the privacy of personal data and has
developed policies on the collection and usage of personal data.
Review and revision of the personal data and privacy policy are
carried out to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with
relevant laws.
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(1l1) OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)

44

Product/Service Responsibility (continued)

For our property management business, our management will
discuss any occasional incident related to property management
with site managers and members of Safety Committee, and
to share the views regarding various aspects of ISO9001,
ISO14001, OHSAS18001 or statutory compliance. The
management will also remind site managers to review existing
terms of contractors’ contract regularly and take necessary
precaution measures whenever applicable.

Food Safety and Product Quality

In order to cope with the public awareness of food safety and
product quality, the Group requires all of its business divisions
to meet the relevant quality indicators and to provide better
products and services to maintain the Group’s brand reputation.
Cafe Deco Group has enforced relevant health and safety
guidelines and regular inspections of workplaces are carried out
to ensure health and safety requirements fully complied with.
The Group has also established a centralised food processing
equipment which in compliance with Hazard Analysis and Critical
Control Points, a management system for food safety. As a
result, we are able to provide cost effective value-added and safe
products to the customers.

Customer Satisfaction

Customer needs and satisfaction are always the goal of the
Group. Food and beverage segment is committed to deliver
attentive and impeccable customer service so as to ensure
diners get a delightful and heart-warming dining experience with
international standard. Customers are welcomed to share their
views and feedbacks via comment cards at selective outlets, VIP
Hotline or electronic mail channels. The VIP program is a special
promotion to our customers to build customer loyalty. Members
will receive monthly e-newsletters and birthday special offers.
Computers and information technology businesses provide
comprehensive order processing, fulfillment and back-office
services to consumers. Customer service centre has provided a
wide range of information and assistance to answer customers’
inquiries and to offer repair and maintenance services to
consumers.

Anti-Corruption

The Group adheres to stringent anti-corruption policies and
procurement practices as stated in the Group’s Human
Resources Policies and Procedure Manual that includes
provisions for conflicts of interest, intellectual property rights,
privacy and confidentiality of information, bribery and corruption
and equal opportunities. As part of the Group’'s orientation
training, a topic about anti-corruption will be presented to new
employees during orientation program. The Group's gift policy
under the “Acceptance of Advantage in Employment” has
clearly stated the required process and procedure for handling
and accepting gifts and advantages. No cases of corruption were
reported within the Group during the year.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Over the years, the Group is dedicated to take up its corporate
social responsibility for the communities where it serves.
It strives to repay the society by participating in community
services, sponsoring charity, education, culture and sports
activities and promoting environmental protection.

Community and Charity

To support the development of community services, the Group
sponsored a variety of charitable events in the past year, including
“UNICEF Charity Run"”, “The 4th Goodman Interlink Magic Mile"”
co-organised by Goodman Asia Limited and Feeding Hong Kong,
the Charity Gala Premiere of “Grace of Monaco” presented by
Hong Kong Young Women's Christian Association and “Chevalier
Blood Donation Day” co-organised with the Hong Kong Red
Cross. Besides, the Group actively participated in various fund
raising activities organised by the Community Chest, namely
“The Community Chest Corporate Challenge”, “The Community
Chest Wheelock Swim for a Million”, “The Community for the
Chest TV Show" and “Community Chest e East Ocean Hairy
Crab Charity Feast”. The Group's contribution to and caring for
the society had been widely recognised and was conferred the
award of “Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service since 2011.

In addition, our food and beverage segment has launched the
“$1 Charity Campaign”, in which 6 local charities for children and
elderly were designated as the beneficiary charities over a period
of 12 months. A donation of HK$1 was included in each bill at
all our outlets in Hong Kong and a sum of over HK$870,000 had
been raised.

Education and Culture

The Group strives to cultivate new talents and enrich educational
opportunities by sponsoring educational programs of all kinds.
As such, a donation was made to Ningbo University for the
building of “Chow Yei Ching Sports Complex”. The Group also
financed the scholarship scheme of CMA Secondary School
Education Trust and sponsored different educational programs of
The University of Hong Kong and City University of Hong Kong.
In addition, the Group has established the “Chevalier Culture
& Education Foundation”, which fosters cultural, academic and
educational exchanges amongst Hong Kong and other countries.

The Group has long demonstrated full support for promoting
local arts and cultural development. It actively sponsored various
programs of Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited and Arts in
Heritage Research Limited to foster public’s interest in arts and
culture.
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Sports

The Group is a long-time patron of the Hong Kong Jockey Club's
“Chevalier Cup Race Day"”. During the year, the Group took a
step further to support “Hong Kong International Dragon Boat
Races” and sponsor “Youth Dragon Boat Training Programme”,
with the aims to cultivate perseverance and team spirit of the
younger generation. The Group's involvement in other sports
activities included “2014 Fundraising Tennis Challenge” of
“Sports For Hope Foundation”, aiming to provide funds and
extensive support to young highly-talented unprivileged athletes.

Environment

The Group is committed to building a green community. It
gave full support to various green advocates to promote public
awareness of environmental protection. The Group actively
participated in its events, such as “Walk For Nature"”, a nature
tour to Mai Po Nature Reserve to promote the importance
of preserving local ecology and raise staff's awareness of
environmental conservation.

Volunteering

In order to take the initiative in serving the community, the Group
established a volunteer team — “Chevalier Cares” in 2011. During
the year, “"Chevalier Cares” arranged various visits with the non-
profit organisations, such as Hong Kong Physically Handicapped
and Able-Bodied (PHAB) Association, Hong Kong Young
Women's Christian Association and Hong Kong Family Welfare
Society. It has participated in different voluntary programs and
served the people in need including the elderly, the children, the
disabled and low income families.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board presents to shareholders their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are shown on pages 164 to 172.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2015 analysed by operating segments are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 57. The Board
now recommends the payment of a special dividend of HK$0.50
(2014: nil) per share and a final dividend of HK$0.50 (2014: HK$0.65)
per share (special dividend together with final dividend collectively,
the “Proposed Dividends”) in cash payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
Thursday, 10 September 2015. Together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.20 (2014: HK$0.20) per share paid on Monday, 9 February
2015, the total dividends for the year amounted to HK$1.20 (2014:
HK$0.85) per share.

Subject to the approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 27 August
2015 (the “AGM"), the Proposed Dividends will be payable in cash,
with an option granted to shareholders to receive new and fully paid
shares of HK$1.25 each in the share capital of the Company in lieu
of cash or partly in cash and partly in shares under the scrip dividend
scheme (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”). The circular containing
details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme and the relevant election form
will be sent to shareholders on or about Wednesday, 30 September
2015.

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal
in the new shares to be issued under the Scrip Dividend Scheme.
The dividend warrants of the Proposed Dividends will be distributed
and the share certificates issued under the Scrip Dividend Scheme
will be sent to shareholders on or about Friday, 30 October 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
24 August 2015 to Thursday, 27 August 2015, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 August
2015.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (CONTINUED)

For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Dividends (subject
to the passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM), the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 7 September 2015 to Thursday, 10
September 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the Proposed
Dividends, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 September 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$1,090,904,000 (2014:
HK$791,960,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2015 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown
on pages 2 to 5 and on pages 15 to 20 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s purchases of the year attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers were less than 30%. The Group's revenue of the
year attributable to the Group's five largest customers was 31% and
the Group's revenue of the year attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was 13%. None of the Directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any shareholder (whom
to the knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company) as at 31 March 2015 has any interest
in the Group's five largest customers.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2015 are
set out on pages 26 to 29.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed approximately 3,500 full-time staff under its
subsidiaries globally as at 31 March 2015. Total staff costs amounted
to HK$1,046 million for the year ended 31 March 2015. The
remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the
basis of the nature of job, market trend, company performance and
individual performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded
on a discretionary basis, medical schemes and retirement schemes.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$7,916,000 to
charitable bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there are no restriction against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW

Non-Executive Director
Dr KO Chan Gock, William

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
Professor POON Chung Kwong

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr Tam Kwok Wing,
Miss Lily Chow, Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Dr Ko Chan Gock,
William shall retire from office at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The Non-Executive Directors
are subject to the same retirement requirements as the Executive
Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any
business constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporation, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"), which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in the Company - Shares

Personal
Name of Directors Capacity interests
E=E8 B Az
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 189,490,248*
JE) TRIED BEmEBA
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 113,460
iy ERAA
TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 195,248
RIS EnEEA
HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000
fa] SRR BEmEBA

*  Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 189,490,248 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 63.17% of the issued share capital
of the Company. These shares were same as those shares disclosed in
the section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.
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Number of ordinary shares

EZERRGHE
Approximate
Family percentage of
interests interest
RikfEs RN
%
- 189,490,248 63.17
- 113,460 0.04
37,511 232,759 0.07
- 40,000 0.01
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2015, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, no other person has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO); or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes") established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5%
of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service
with the Group. For members of the MPF Schemes, the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee, at a
maximum of HK$1,500 per month for the year ended 31 March 2015,
to the mandatory contribution of the MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is
required to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain
percentage or sum of the monthly payroll.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to HK$37.8
million against which no forfeited contributions had been deducted.

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 43
to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
As at 31 March 2015, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Substantial shareholders

Capacity
FERR 514

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner

JE TR EmEA A
MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner

BIIEEF E=mAA

*  Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr
Chow Yei Ching, is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
189,490,248 shares held by Dr Chow.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, so far as is known
to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other
person has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards
of corporate governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2015, with deviations from code provisions
A.4.1 and A.6.7 which have already been stated in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Annual Report. Detailed information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 30 to 38 of the
Annual Report.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
Directors’ biographical details since the date of the Company’s
Interim Report 2014-2015 are set out as follows:

(a) Dr CHOW Yei Ching had resigned as an independent non-
excutive director of Television Broadcasts Limited on 1 March
2015; and

(b) Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar had resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Towngas China Company Limited on 8
May 2015.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change of Directors’
biographical details required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the
Company's share which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25%
of the Company’s total number of issued shares as at 25 June 2015,
the latest practicable date to ascertain such information prior to the
issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHRE

EEEEFERE
RIE - TRAIZE1361B()E - AAAT =T
—m—RERERERE TR B EER
EREEERIIT ;

(@ BAMHETER_T-—hF=A—HF
TEREREARDRBILIFNTES
&

b) AgEXHEER_T—HAFAANBE
EEERRBRARELIFNTES -

B EXPriiESN - EEEEFBEMELME
BARE FHRAIE13.51BNRIELHEE -

EHARRERE

REBEARREBZ ARERRBEZSMH
MR- E-—RFNA-+RHB(BARFHT
ERRTZFEMNRRERATAS) &
BALTHRBEARRRPBBARR D ET
Pt 488025 % -

BEEm

KGR M B HRRAERB BRI EAT
Bz - BRBUKESMEFAEEER -
UHFEERBEARAERERRBFASE

EEERW
1
BT

B/ —FE—RFNA-+EHA

HitBEBEEMERAT | % 2015 53



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

38 M A% B

_
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 172, which comprise the
consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2015, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2015 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ek

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HE-2-AF=A=+—ALFE

2015
—E-hHEF
HK$°000
BT T
Revenue A 5 5,012,651 4,113,381
Cost of sales FHERK AN (3,799,450) (3,046,603)
Gross profit EF 1,213,201 1,066,778
Other income, net HMUA - F58 6 155,103 118,273
Other gains, net Efblas - F8E 7 957,049 175,274
Selling and distribution costs FHE R AT EERK AN (518,263) (496,981)
Administrative expenses 1T H (221,954) (220,579)
Operating profit iyl 1,585,136 642,765
Share of results of associates FriGE & R eI 48 249,406 79,376
Share of results of joint ventures Fiiha & A (28,753) (9,033)
1,805,789 713,108
Finance income 5 ON 8 19,315 14,355
Finance costs Mg ER 8 (114,626) (117,012)
Finance costs, net BsEA - F8 8 (95,311) (102,657)
Profit before taxation FR T AR A 9 1,710,478 610,451
Income tax expenses FriSfisz i 10 (120,155) (84,270)
Profit for the year FERA 1,590,323 526,181
Attributable to: LT
Equity holders of the Company AR A A 1,537,162 470,369
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 53,161 55,812
1,590,323 526,181
Earnings per share BRER
- basic (HK$ per share) —ER(BIEE) 11 5.21 1.65
—diluted (HK$ per share) —H5E (GRRA) 11 5.21 1.65
Dividends BE 12 359,399 248,406
The notes on pages 66 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F66E 1728 2 Mzt Tt Z4R A Bk 2 48K
statements. o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_Z—RAF=A=+—HALFE

2015 2014
—E-1F —E—FE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit for the year FEHA 1,590,323 526,181
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income FEEHM2E(REH) WE
for the year
Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss AR S EHREFTIERMNIER
Fair value surplus of properties upon transfer BERSIREYERNDES
to investment properties RAEREER - 33,540
Fair value surplus of properties for own use BERMEZ AR ERH - 349,790
Release upon disposal of a property for own use PHE—TEE B)ERER - (123)
Share of other comprehensive income of an P — M & 2 AR
associate Hib2mEikz - 3,865
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEANEEHNREZIBRNER
profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation of operations BMEGINIB AT - BERR K
of overseas subsidiaries, associates and joint AR ECEBEL Y
ventures HNE I E TR (93,044) (15,466)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments AMHEEEZIREN AR EER (28,365) 23,348
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AN E 2 R E BRI ERE
transferred to consolidated income statement EEEGE WK 44,685 10,532
Fair value adjustments on the derivative financial feE AR S REH PRITENTE
instruments designated as cash flow hedge in T EBBFREHE N
respect of interest rate swap contracts AN IEECE:S (1,437) 1,041
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year, FEHAMZ2E(ZH) W - BEE
net of tax (78,161) 406,527
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZAWRREE 1,512,162 932,708
Attributable to: ) 2y
Equity holders of the Company KAEIRRIEREF A 1,460,428 875,963
Non-controlling interests FEIER RS 51,734 56,745
1,512,162 932,708
Note: B3E -
Iltems shown within other comprehensive (expenses)/income are disclosed net of tax. REME2E () MR RZER TG EE R
E‘é °
The notes on pages 66 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F66HE 21728 2 Mzttt 4R A B SRR 2 K
statements. #o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE IR &
As at 31 March 2015
R-E—RF=A=+—H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Available-for-sale investments
Derivative financial instruments
Properties under development
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Amounts due from non-controlling interests
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Inventories
Properties for sale
Properties under development
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Amounts due from customers for
contract work
Derivative financial instruments
Prepaid tax
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Amounts due to associates

Amount due to a non-controlling interest

Dividend payable to a non-controlling interest

Amounts due to customers for contract work

Derivative financial instruments

Creditors, bills payable,
deposits and accruals

Unearned insurance premiums and
unexpired risk reserves

Outstanding insurance claims

Deferred income

Current income tax liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

BE=EvES

E RN
2k

H @A E
FiEs & N B 2 e
P e =R 2 S
AR EZIRE
ITEMBTA
BEPME
IEIERR IR A
HZEREEE

RBEE
USSR BR K
U S HBERR
JEUF I B 2 AR 3R
BRAREINABSERIEZRE
3y
FEmE
BRPWE
JEUBRTR - FHiine RN IR
A # T2 RE R &P YER

A

TEMBTA
BATA
RITHEFLRE

REEE
ENE NG
e B8 — FEFE R AR AR
JEA B —IF R R AR B
MRENTREAEP XN ZFIA
ITERBTA
FERTERR - R -
F A \ZE LIERER
BRI E M AR
Jea\ i ot
RRIRBRE
EIEA
EHASHAR
SRAT M E MR

RBEEFE

HEERRBEE

14
15
16
17
19
20
21
29
22
36
23

19
20

24
25
26
22
27

28
29

30

19

28

29

31

32

33

2015
—E-hHEF
HK$'000
BET T
3,680,497 3,646,873
1,970,089 2,094,523
690,184 681,743
17,235 26,199
998,480 749,811
1,510,132 1,607,333
201,092 456,041
18,073 -
789,476 757,459
16,255 33,856
154,169 133,859
10,045,682 10,087,697
11,298 318,122
50 128,799
33,800 20,281
364,334 320,732
154,803 169,506
44,367 54,808
623,349 410,748
1,235,726 1,025,620
133,437 171,754
13,220 10,342
6,492 6,282
2,662,622 1,200,835
5,283,498 3,837,729
29,685 29,372
3,538 4,154
- 1,400
951,485 549,509
13,247 7,094
1,456,697 1,214,569
113,730 126,170
376,048 368,327
25,499 23,250
60,808 53,691
589,848 653,968
3,620,585 3,031,404
1,662,913 806,325
11,708,595 10,894,022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE M FIRR R

As at 31 March 2015
WZZE-—RAF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —T—NE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Capital and reserves R 5
Share capital e 34 374,989 366,093
Reserves Gl 35 7,514,262 6,248,138
Shareholders’ funds BERES 7,889,251 6,614,231
Non-controlling interests FEIERE R RS 509,498 462,568
Total equity R 8,398,749 7,076,799
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Unearned insurance premiums EIERIR B 108,355 141,715
Bank and other borrowings $RIT R E A fE R 33 2,938,280 3,413,087
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEE & 36 263,211 262,421
3,309,846 3,817,223
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEZRFERBERSE 11,708,595 10,894,022
Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015 and signed on its behalf KEEEN_T—RAFSAZ+THAE WA
by: THESREESE -
KUOK Hoi Sang HO Chung Leung
gL {IRR
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 66 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FE6E 1728 2 M It SR A IS RE 2 485K
statements. 25 o
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NCILES SO

As at 31 March 2015

RZZE-RF=A=+—H

2015
—E-hHEF

HK$°000
BETT

Non-current assets REBEE
Interests in subsidiaries PGB R a2 e 18 3,374,335 3,194,303
Interests in associates PGBt e N e 2 s 19 89,594 89,594
Other intangible assets HivfmpEE 599 599
Available-for-sale investments AHEHEZEE 21 167,715 217,973
3,632,243 3,502,469
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B 2 BIBR 3K 18 3,157,774 2,451,445
Amounts due from associates FE UGB & N RIBR RN 19 10,375 15,057
Investments at fair value through profit or loss R AR EHABREIE ZRE 24 31,455 33,853
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUREREY ~ FHiRe RIEN KB 27 4,299 3,181
Derivative financial instruments PTERBTA 29 = 1,082
Bank balances and cash RITEFERE 30 324,039 185,712
3,527,942 2,690,330
Current liabilities REBARS
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBT B A RIBRRN 18 3,425,056 2,789,829
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 29 4,677 -
Creditors, deposits and accruals FERERR - FARS RTERER 31 3,383 5,354
Bank borrowings SRITIER 33 98,675 52,000
3,531,791 2,847,183
Net current liabilities RBABEE (3,849) (156,853)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBEE 3,628,394 3,345,616
Capital and reserves B
Share capital [N 34 374,989 366,093
Reserves s 35 1,850,667 1,474,148
Total equity R 2,225,656 1,840,241
Non-current liability kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEK 33 1,402,738 1,505,375
Total equity and non-current liability BERRFERBESE 3,628,394 3,345,616

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015 and signed on its behalf

by:

KUOK Hoi Sang

HO Chung Leung

EE SRR
Director Director
EF E

The notes on pages 66 to 172 are integral parts
statements.

of these consolidated financial
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERBREHR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_Z—RAF=A=+—HALFE

Equity
attributable
to equity Non-
holders of controlling
the Company interests Total equity
RN EIRAE
FA AEMER IR R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BETT
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—-NEMA—A 6,614,231 462,568 7,076,799
Profit for the year FE A 1,537,162 53,161 1,590,323
Exchange difference on translation of BREFINEB AR  BEE N A &
operations of overseas subsidiaries, BECEZEBELZ
associates and joint ventures HINGE 57 HA = HE (91,617) (1,427) (93,044)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHHE ZIREN AR EE
investments (28,365) - (28,365)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR E 2 IR ERREERER
investments transferred to BESRAMER
consolidated income statement 44,685 - 44,685

Fair value adjustments on the derivative HBERREMEE HH
financial instruments designated as cash ~ PTAEBE T EBR

flow hedge in respect of interest rate FIRIGHRA 4980

swap contracts AR CE (1,437) - (1,437)
Total comprehensive income for the year  FfE 2 EINz 1858 1,460,428 51,734 1,512,162
Dividends paid BARE (249,777) - (249,777)
Issue of shares under scrip dividend RIE AR B AT 2121 TS

schemes 91,826 - 91,826
Step-up acquisition of a subsidiary E— S BB AR - (212) (212)
Disposals of subsidiaries HENB AT (27,496) - (27,496)
Deemed disposals of interests in BAEHEMLMB AR 2

subsidiaries 39 251 290
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 15 T JEIZARRE 25 A% B, - (8,968) (8,968)
Capital contributions by non-controlling FEFERR RS B IR A

interests - 4,125 4,125
At 31 March 2015 R-B—HFE=A=+—H 7,889,251 509,498 8,398,749
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERgHX

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

Equity
attributable
to equity Non-
holders of controlling
the Company interests Total equity
QIR
A AR R MR s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
At 1 April 2013 MR-ZE—=%FMmA—H 5,820,819 390,223 6,211,042
Profit for the year FEm A 470,369 55,812 526,181
Fair value surplus of properties upon ERSIEYEREYE Y
transfer to investment properties NAEES 33,540 - 33,540
Fair value surplus of properties for BRWEZ AR ERES
own use 349,790 - 349,790
Release upon disposal of a property for RHE—IBE BYEERR
own use (123) - (123)
Share of other comprehensive income of  Ffr{h —REE# & A T)&)
an associate b 2mikas 3,865 - 3,865
Exchange difference on translation of HEGINGB AR - BrE AR R
operations of overseas subsidiaries, BRDEEBEEY
associates and joint ventures SNE H R =R (16,399) 933 (15,466)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHHEZIREN AL EES
investments 23,348 - 23,348
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR RE 2 BRI ERE
investments transferred to EEREEANEER
consolidated income statement 10,632 - 10,532
Fair value adjustments on the derivative BEARESREL HH
financial instruments designated as cash ~ $T4BE T EBH
flow hedge in respect of interest rate FlRIGHAA 4980
swap contracts RAERE 1,041 - 1,041
Total comprehensive income for the year /& 2 EW S 4258 875,963 56,745 932,708
Dividends paid BT E (240,939) - (240,939)
Issue of shares under scrip dividend RIE AR B FT 811 TR D
schemes 157,811 - 157,811
Deemed disposals of interests in RALEMLHE AR s
subsidiaries 577 4,079 4,656
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B4 T IEIZ AR HESE A% &, - (10,797) (10,797)
Capital contributions by non-controlling FEFERRRE RS B IR A
interests - 22,318 22,318
At 31 March 2014 N_Z—NF=ZA=+—8H 6,614,231 462,568 7,076,799
The notes on pages 66 to 172 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F66H 1728 2 Mzttt E4R A B RER 2 K
statements. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MRERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_Z—RAF=A=+—HALFE

2015 2014
—E-FEF —Z—F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BT BT
Operating activities mEEK
Cash generated from operations KELEZIRS 45(a) 833,842 707,563
Interest paid EAFE (121,093) (134,166)
Profits tax paid BB RIS (85,753) (91,445)
Profits tax refund BEUFRASTRR 3,108 2,736
Net cash from operating activities RELEEKREFHE 630,104 484,688
Investing activities REEK
Interest received U 57,181 14,355
Dividends received from associates EUEE S AR Z BB 92,684 214,157
Dividends received from joint ventures BWELETEZRE 1,050 25,502
Dividends received from investments BYEEE 2R A 32,731 32,360
Purchase of investment properties BEREYE (15,019) -
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HE—IBIREWE 2 518
property 4,642 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WMENEE (86,509) (65,573)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BEMEE
plant and equipment 2 S 5IE 3,715 16,659
Purchase of intangible assets BEBLEE (38) -
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WIEA TS IE 2B m L F58
- 51% equity interest in WPGCs —AWPGCs 2 51% i #E 45(b)(ii) (12,979) -
— senior housing business —REREER 45(b)(iii) - (67,038)
— other subsidiaries —E A B AR (212) -
Net cash inflow from disposals of HENTSEZEERAFE
— Peak Gain Limited —KAIBRDF] 45(b)(i) 1,399,112 -
—20% equity interest in Pacific Coffee — R Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
(Holdings) Limited LimitedZ 20% A% #& 45(b)(iv) - 81,660
— other subsidiaries —EfbHE AR 21,951 -
Deemed disposals of interests in subsidiaries 2 H €GB AT 2 #Ex 290 4,656
Capital contributions by non-controlling IEERE R E ARG A
interests 4,125 22,318
Investments in associates REERE 2 RE - (78,735)
Investment in a joint venture R—EEEREZIRE (1,050) -
Advances to associates REEE N RIFTTEZ B3R (219,846) (85,714)
Repayments from associates KEBE R 2 EERE 286,766 2,696
Advances to joint ventures ABEDEREZER (82,053) (143,466)
Repayments from joint ventures REEEREZERFIA 25,300 68,451
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEHLEZRE (495) (270,337)
Proceeds from disposals of available-for-sale &R HHE 7 18E 2
investments FiS5E 29,129 17,103
Increase in short-term bank deposits =B R &EE 2 R HAERTT
maturing after three months TFEEM (210,179) -
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities RE (AR)BREXB R FHE 1,330,296 (211,046)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= =}
mEHERER
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Drawn down of bank and other borrowings
Repayments of bank and other borrowings
Decrease in pledged short-term bank deposits
maturing of three months or less

Net cash used in financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash

Less: Short-term bank deposits
maturing after three months

Less: Pledged short-term bank deposits
maturing of three months or less

The notes on pages 66 to 172 are integral parts
statements.

BEEK

BARE

BT IR RERE
IRERTT R E AL SR
EERIT R EAER

=1{E A AR ER 2 BT HE
RITTFROR LD

ARBEXB RS TR

RERBRTEEY
2, (fA)

FAZEERALEEY
IEERBE B

FERZEERBREZEY
BERBEEEYNIN
RITETERE

B ZEAEEIE 2 2
RITIFR

B =18 A SIAREIE 2 B RS AR
RIT T

of these consolidated financial

2015
—E-hHEF
HK$'000
BET T
(157,951) (83,128
(8,968) (10,797
1,817,790 5,184,688
(2,352,057) (5,439,530)
161,108 35,412
(540,078) (313,355)
1,420,322 (39,713)
1,001,162 1,044,931
(7,606) (4,056)
2,413,878 1,001,162
30 2,662,622 1,200,835
(210,179) -
2,452,443 1,200,835
(38,565) (199,673)
2,413,878 1,001,162
LO6HEE1728 2 M Thi Fhr e MR 2 A
5 -

HitEBREEERAT | F5H 2015 65



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_T—AF=A=+—HLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company has its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 25 June 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “"Group”) have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, staff quarters, available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the applicable requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the
comparative period.

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its
current assets by HK$3,849,000. The directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) believe that the Company will continue as a going
concern taking into account committed available banking facilities
and cash flows from operations and consequently prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

Interpretation and amendments to existing standards that
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1
April 2014

The following interpretation and amendments to existing
standards, that are relevant to the Group's operation, are
mandatory for the financial year of the Group beginning on 1
April 2014

e HKAS 32 (amendment), “Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities"”

e HKAS 36 (amendment), “Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets”

e HKAS 39 (amendment), “Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting”

o HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) (amendment),
“Investment entities”

e  HK(IFRIC) - Int 21, “Levies”

Amendment to HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets”, on the
recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets
removed certain disclosures of the recoverable amount of cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), which had been included in HKAS
36 by the issue of HKFRS 13. It also enhanced the disclosures
of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets
if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

The adoption of other interpretation and amendments to
existing standards does not have significant impact on the
Group's consolidated results and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies and the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-2-AF=A=+-BLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-2-AF=A=+-ALFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(ii) New standards and amendments and improvements
to existing standards that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following new standards and amendments and
improvements to existing standards, that are relevant to the
Group’s operation, have been issued but not yet effective for
the financial year of the Group beginning on 1 April 2014 and
have not been early adopted
e HKAS 1 (amendment), “Disclosure initiative"3
e HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (amendment), “Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”3

e HKAS 19 (2011) (amendment), “Defined benefit plans —
Employee contributions”2

e HKAS 27 (2011) (amendment), “Equity method in separate
financial statements”3

e HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”®

e HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (amendment), “Sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture”3

e HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (amendment),
“Investment entities — Applying the consolidation
exception” 3

e HKFRS 11 (amendment), “Accounting for acquisition of
interests in joint operations”3

e HKFRS 14, “"Regulatory deferral accounts”3

e HKFRS 15, "Revenue from contracts with customers”4

e Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS
2010-2012 Cycle!

e Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS
2011-2013 Cycle?

e Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS
2012-2014 Cycle®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii) New standards and amendments and improvements

to existing standards that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact to the Group but is not yet in a position to state
whether there will be any substantial changes to the Group's
significant accounting policies and presentation of financial
information.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation as from the Company’s first financial year commencing
on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance
on the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31
March 2016 of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and only the presentation and the
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements
will be affected.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entities and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entities. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-—Z-AF-A=T—ALFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

70

(b)

CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at costs less impairment losses. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable during the year.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate
or a joint venture, representing the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either
at the fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportional share
of the recognised amount of acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a joint venture
is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be
impaired. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and joint ventures is
included in investments in respective associates and joint ventures
and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance. For the
purposes of impairment testing, separately recognised goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant CGUs,
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a joint
venture, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
an associate or a joint venture represents the excess of the share
of net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination and is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition.
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(d)

(e)
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Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of
profit or loss and of changes in other comprehensive income of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group's
share of loss of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of loss is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profit and loss are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that
unrealised loss provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case, the full amount of loss is recognised.
Accounting policies of the associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company's statement of financial position, interests in
associates are stated at costs less impairment losses. The results
of associates are accounted by the Company for on the basis of
dividend received and receivable during the year.

Joint arrangements
A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control and over which none of the participating parties
has unilateral control.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified
either as either joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has.

Joint operations

Joint operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. Investments
in joint operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly held),
its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its
revenue (including its share of revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation) and its expenses (including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the
assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the applicable
standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Joint arrangements (continued)

(f)

Joint ventures
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’'s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. Upon the acquisition of
the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between the
cost of the joint venture and the Group's share of the net fair value
of the joint venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses of a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in that joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of that joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
relevant joint venture. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received or receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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74

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted
in respect of each category of financial assets are set out
below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each reporting period end date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including amounts due from
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and non-controlling
interests, debtors and receivables and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

As at 31 March 2015, loans and receivables represent amounts
due from associates, joint ventures and non-controlling
interests, debtors and receivables, bank balances and amounts
due from subsidiaries of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as any of the other categories
set out above. At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
profit or loss. Any impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial
liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are re-measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including amounts due to associates
and a non-controlling interest, creditors and payables,
outstanding insurance claims, bank and other borrowings and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such
derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in fair values
of such derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss,
except for those derivatives qualified for hedge accounting are
recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed as
held-for-trading when the economic characteristics and risks of
the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the
host contracts, and the combined contracts are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss. In all other circumstances,
derivatives embedded are not separated and are accounted
for together with the host contracts in accordance with
appropriate standards. Where the Group needs to separate an
embedded derivative but is unable to measure the embedded
derivative separately, the entire combined contracts are treated
as designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

Gains and losses from the changes in the fair values of the
derivatives (excluding the interest component and those
derivatives qualified for hedge accounting) are recognised in
other income, net. The interest component is reported as part
of interest income from investments included in revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases is classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property
is carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional
valuation conducted as at the end of the reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of
the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
other gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item
of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in profit or loss.
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(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses except for staff quarters.

Staff quarters are measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses recognised at the date of
revaluation. Revaluation are performed with sufficient frequency to
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the
fair value of a revalued asset at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is
recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus
on the same asset recognised in equity.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to the retained
profits is made for the difference between depreciation based on
the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation original
cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation
date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset
being sold is transferred to retained profits.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Depreciation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and other assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or fair values to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives at the following rates per annum:

Annual charge
Building

Over the shorter of 20 to 50 years
or the remaining lease term

Leasehold land classified as
finance lease

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures, office 10% - 33'8%
equipment and motor vehicles

Others

Over the remaining lease term

10% - 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

(k)

n

(m

-

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceed and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Properties under development

Properties under development which are intended for sale upon
completion comprise prepaid lease payments, development
expenditure and borrowing costs capitalised.

The carrying amount is written down immediately to its net
realisable value if it is greater than its cost. The net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
costs to complete development and selling expenses.

Impairment of the Group'’s investments in associates and joint
ventures

Management regularly reviews whether there are any indications
of impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures primarily based on value-in-use calculations.

In determining the value in use, management assesses the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these future cash flows and discount rate. Management estimates
the future cash flows based on certain assumptions, such as
revenue growth.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds in the ordinary course of business less
applicable selling expenses.

Properties for sale

Properties for sale, which comprise prepaid lease payments and
buildings held for resale, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The costs of properties for sale comprise prepaid
lease payments and related development costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(n)

(o)

(p)
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Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by the proportion that the value of
work carried out during the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown
as an amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
shown as an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position, as a liability, as
creditors. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by
the customer are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under debtors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability
in the consolidated and Company's statements of financial position.

Pledged deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.
Trade creditors

Trade creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect of
mortgage facilities provided by banks to certain property buyers, and
credit facilities provided by financial institutions to its subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and joint venture partner as insurance
contracts.

Unearned insurance premiums and unexpired risk reserves
Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portions
of the premiums written which relate to periods of insurance
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and are deferred to
subsequent accounting periods. Unearned premiums are computed
on the basis of net premiums written for all classes of insurance.
Net premium written represents gross premiums received or
receivable after deducting reinsurance premiums.

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from the expected value
of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of
policies in force which, at the end of the reporting period, exceeds
the unearned premiums provision in relation to such policies.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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Insurance claims

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported
but not yet paid and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported
("IBNR") as at the end of the reporting period which is calculated
with reference to foreseeable events, past experiences and trends.

Insurance claims are recognised when they are incurred and
reported. Incurred claims include the losses, related costs and
expenses paid during the year and the change in the reserve for
outstanding claims during the year. Reserves for outstanding claims
are reported on an undiscounted basis which include reserves for
reported claims and reserves for IBNR claims.

Every notified claim is assessed on a case-by-case basis. The
reserve of a reported claim is made by the claims handler based
on his experience and based on the information, documents and
the claim amount submitted by the claimant and is checked by the
officer before updating the information into the claims system. The
reserve is reviewed and revised regularly to reflect the development
of the claim and the change of the market practice.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs a liability
adequacy test to ensure the adequacy of the insurance claim
liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of
all future contractual cash flows are made. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to profit or loss.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured with reference to the value of work carried
out during the period. When the outcome of a contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever
is later.

Income from sale of goods such as food and beverage, information
technology equipment and motor vehicles are recognised when
goods are delivered and title to the goods has passed to the
customers. Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales return,
discount and value-added tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from rendering of services such as provision of maintenance
and property management services, warehouse and logistics
services, hotel operations and senior housing operations are
recognised at the time when services are rendered. Receipts in
advance of provision of services are accounted for as deferred
income.

Premiums for direct insurance business are recognised as income
when an insurance policy is accepted and the relevant debit note is
issued.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
with reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to its net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating leases
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as an obligation under finance lease. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs as stated in note 2(x) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Rental payables under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
Benefits received and receivables as incentives to enter into
operating leases are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses
over the lease terms on a straight line basis.
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(w) Employee benefits

(x)

(y)
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(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Bonus plans
Provision for bonus plans is recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

(iii) Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged
as an expense as they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or loss because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes profit or loss items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y) Taxation (continued)

(z)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are determined
based on the presumption that the carrying amount of such
investment properties will be recovered through sale with the
corresponding tax rate applied.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the exchanges rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
has determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, which are recognised
in equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity,
in which cases, the exchange components of that gain or loss are
also recognised directly in equity.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Az —

BlEx—

T-RE=A=T-ALFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income as a separate component of equity, the exchange fluctuation
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences so arising are recognised in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

(aa) Impairment

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less cost to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (CGU). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

(ab) Segment reporting

CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current
assets as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position except prepaid tax, unallocated bank balances and cash,
deferred tax assets and other unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-
current liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position except current income tax liabilities, bank and other
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments, debtors and receivables, creditors and payables,
outstanding insurance claims, amounts due from/to related companies
and non-controlling interests, dividend payable to a non-controlling
interest, bank balances and bank and other borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from derivative financial
instruments, bills payable, floating rates bank and other
borrowings and floating rates bank deposits. Majority of the
Group's bank and other borrowings carry interests at floating
rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The management monitors interest rate exposure and hedges
significant interest rate exposure by using financial instruments
such as interest rate swap contracts. Certain instruments are
qualified for hedge accounting.

As at 31 March 2015, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by one percentage point and all other variables
were held constant, the post-tax profit of the Group and
the Company, excluding impact of fair value changes of
derivative financial instruments would decrease/increase by
HK$11,352,000 (2014: HK$14,316,000) and HK$4,954,000
(2014 HK$5,396,000) respectively, resulting mainly from the
change in the borrowing costs on bank and other borrowings
and interest income from bank deposits.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 MBEBREEASERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBERREZEGE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WiEERE(E)

(i) Foreign currency risk (ii)  SMNEE R
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign REETEEBEBRIEEY - AEY
currency risk arising from various currency exposures. Foreign ZEEERER S| B INERR o &
currency risk arises when the Group’s recognised assets and EECHERAZEENBBUIELE
liabilities are denominated in currencies that are not the entities’ 2R E I BB AR - ELINE
functional currency. R o
The Group's financial assets that are exposed to foreign AEEmMYINER R THEET
currency risk mainly comprise of investments in debt and equity DEREEBEERAFESFLE - W8
securities, accounts receivable balances arising from sales to INEEEH SEE M AL 2 FEWERER
overseas customers, bank balances and cash and amounts due Her - MOTETRASREKRER
from related companies and non-controlling interests and group EARRIEERER R EBQFER
companies (on entity level). The Group's financial liabilities T(DERE) o 4N5E B EHINER
that are exposed to foreign currency risk mainly comprised B aETEEREIMLIE
of accounts payable balances arising from purchases from MELEHEMES 2 ENERGH
overseas suppliers and amounts due to group companies (on FEMAEBARER(MEER) -
entity level). It is the Group's policies to ensure that the net REBZ BRI BREFRBREG
exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling AR 7 K - Wi iE DA BN ERFE
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address REBRIINE(INBEETR) AKIEE HA
short-term imbalances. The management monitors foreign KERELR o TIREEPRINE R
exchange exposure and hedges significant foreign currency WHRAEHINEGNETHTE
exposure by using financial instruments such as foreign B AIMNERPE - AT TABFS
currency forward contracts. Certain instruments are qualified R ErER o

for hedge accounting.

Financial instruments under foreign currencies (other than the T ERHINEE [ R 2 SN B 5 T A (6
functional currencies of the Group's entities) that are exposed BAREECEZNEEE)EEZ
to foreign exchange risk are mainly denominated in Australian SEIT  MNEATT - BE - BE - B
dollar, Canadian dollar, Euro, Hong Kong dollar, Japanese Yen, CRPIEE AR FnoT -
Macau Pataca, Renminbi, Singapore dollar, United States dollar Ex([Ex]) RBEEABEA - AN
("US dollar”) and Vietnam Dong. The carrying amounts of the EE(MEREm) MARRIAINE A
Group'’s (on entity level) and the Company's foreign currency BNZPBEERMGAERER
denominated financial assets and financial liabilities at the end ZEREEMAT -

of the year are as follows:

Liabilities
=R

2015 2014
—E-EF —Z—FE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Australian dollar BT 145,413 247,227 - (7,080)
Canadian dollar mneXx 186,468 191,120 - -
Euro [E¢7 24,320 31,909 (47,111) (60,475)
Hong Kong dollar oot 184,524 16,785 (70,601) (79,055)
Japanese Yen H 16,320 10,380 (697) (13)
Macau Pataca R K 3,012 - (449,166) (357,984)
Renminbi AR¥ 406,017 406,234 (42) (42)
Singapore dollar T 102,292 119,307 - -
US dollar e 1,197,183 1,114,531 (21,766) (4,511)
Vietnam Dong WA 27,119 29,924 - -
Others i 33,944 25,436 - (1,206)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

3 BREAREEBERBEE(E)

3.1 HIEBEEE)

Wi E R ()
(i) SMERE(E)

Liabilities

The Company HK$’000
PN BET T
Australian dollar BT 16,608
Canadian dollar mEXT 186,282
Euro Ei7E 20,048
Macau Pataca SRPTEE =
Renminbi AR 253,592
Singapore dollar FThN T 102,292
US dollar E 786,079
Others Hit 18,513

191,120

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT IT

26,632 — -
24,854 (47,111) (60,399)
- (449,166) (357,984)
290,194 - -
119,285 - -
668,019 (6) -
29,702 - -

The following table details the Group's and the Company's
sensitivity to every percentage point increase and decrease in
the functional currency of corresponding group entity against
the above foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for every
percentage point increase in foreign currency rates. Positive
numbers below indicate an increase in profit/investment
revaluation reserve where the above foreign currency
strengthens every percentage point against the functional
currency of corresponding group entity.

TRAVIAREE AR Z HEE
BRI H A LSNE 2 15
MR — 8B DB GURE - 8
BE AT R BIERERIDIAINE 5
Bz MAEEERIEIER X2
RERRERSIEM—EEDE 2
BRETIARE o UTIESBETIA L
SN BRI R E R E 2 e
FHE—EBTDE2BERT 4
A ARG EEEEERTIEM

Increase in profit gy

Increase in investment revaluation reserve & B EFEE M

The Company

RATA

Increase in profit gy
Increase in investment revaluation reserve WA B HEEEM

15,200 12,346
2,011 4,560
2015
—E-RF
HK$'000
BETT
7,194 7,132
1,677 2,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-—Z-AF-A=T—ALFEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to listed debt and
equity securities price risk because investments held by the
Group and the Company are classified on the consolidated
and the Company’s statements of financial position either
as available-for-sale investments or investments at fair value

through profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective quoted debt and equity
instruments of the Group had been increased/decreased by one
percentage point and all other variables held constant:

—  the post-tax profit and investment revaluation reserve
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 would
increase/decrease by HK$1,727,000 and HK$256,000
(2014: HK$2,200,000 and HK$299,000) as a result of
the changes in fair values of investments at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments

respectively;

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments of the
Company had been increased/decreased by one percentage
point and all other variables held constant:

—  the post-tax profit of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2015 would increase/decrease by HK$257,000
(2014: HK$275,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments, debtors and receivables,
amounts due from related companies and non-controlling
interests and bank balances. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to
perform their obligations at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts owed.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may also have an
impact on management'’s cash flow forecasts and assessment
of the impairment of receivables. To the extent that information
is available, management has properly reflected revised
estimates of expected future cash flows in their impairment

assessments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has established different credit policies for
customers in each of its core businesses. The average credit
period granted to trade debtors is 60 days, except for insurance
business where credit period granted to certain debtors is over
60 days. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Amounts due from related companies and non-controlling
interests are continuously monitored by assessing the credit
quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. Where necessary,
impairment loss is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Available-for-sale investments, investments at fair value
through profit or loss, derivative financial instruments,
interest receivables and bank balances are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparties with high quality.
The Group controls its credit risk to non-performance by its
counterparties through monitoring their credit rating and setting
approved counterparty credit limits that are regularly reviewed.
The Group does not expect any significant counterparty risk.
Moreover, credit limits are set for individual counterparties and
periodic reviews are conducted to ensure that the limits are
strictly followed.

The Group has assessed the credit risk arising from guarantees
given to financial institutions for credit facilities granted to
certain property buyers, subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and joint venture partner taking into consideration the realisable
value of the underlying projects/assets. The Group does not
expect any significant credit risk arising from these guarantees.

The Group does not have any significant exposure to any
individual debtors or counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents,
readily realisable marketable securities and to have committed
short term and medium term credit lines available.

The Directors believe that the Group has obtained sufficient
committed and uncommitted general credit facilities from banks
for working capital purposes.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

3

92

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group's liquidity position and compliance with loan
covenants are monitored closely by the management of the
Company. The following table details the Group’s and the
Company's contractual maturities for its financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest dates on which the Group or the Company
respectively can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

3

HEREERBRRBER(E)

3.1 BEBEEE)

(c) BEERBEME(HE)
RARERETERANEE 2R
PESHRRRETERRHBER °
TRAJIAEERARRRREH
RPBEELEDZHRIBTR - K15
TREAEERART D BIAHE
FEMZEFARZHBREZR
BREBERERH -  RBBEMNE
RASZBERE

Total
Less than More than undiscounted
1year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
ABRBS
DPR—F —Z=F —EEF BBRF REAE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT T BT T BETT
2015 —E-RE
Amounts due to associates  JE{TEEE N FIBRK 29,685 - - - 29,685
Amount due to a non- e E— IR iE
controlling interest IR 3,538 - - - 3,538
Creditors and payables e BRI IR 449,181 - - - 449,181
Outstanding insurance claims FRRH=E 376,048 - - = 376,048
Derivative financial TEMBIA
instruments (net settled) (FKE) 4,931 8,102 8,999 - 22,032
Derivative financial PTEMKIA
instruments (gross settled) — (2%E4&H)
- outflow —md 74,137 - 3,058 - 77,195
- inflow —R"A (66,170) - (2,422) - (68,592)
Bank and other borrowings  $R17 & EffE % 686,543 907,592 1,386,344 1,321,371 4,301,850
Financial guarantees in FARBERNZ
contingent liabilities RS ER 166,120 154,939 316,025 = 637,084
2014 —ZE—uEF
Amount due to an associate & —EIHE &R B1BR TN 29,372 - - - 29,372
Amount due to a non- e B8 —JEPERR MRS
controlling interest R 4,154 - - - 4,154
Dividend payable to a FERTE—IEmRiER
non-controlling interest I8 1,400 - - - 1,400
Creditors and payables BRI FRIE 400,140 - - - 400,140
Outstanding insurance claims FR{RB=E 368,327 - - - 368,327
Derivative financial ITEMBIA
instruments (net settled) (BHEE) 7,841 - - - 7,841
Derivative financial PTEMBKIA
instruments (gross settled)  (4A%E4HE)
- outflow —iR 5,772 - - - 5,772
—inflow —RA (5,715) - - - (5,715)
Bank and other borrowings  $R{T R EfbfE X 702,89 1,799,299 955,348 1,433,123 4,890,664
Financial guarantees in FABERZ
contingent liabilities BT HEAR 124,318 25,500 411,848 - 561,666
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

3 BREAREEBERBEE(E)

3.1

B m R E 5= ()
(c) BEERBEME(HE)

Total

Less than undiscounted

1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows

REBRES

DPR—F —E=F —EhREFE TEAAEE

The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PN BT T BT T BET T BT T

2015 —E-HF

Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASTF B X BIBR X 3,425,056 - - 3,425,056

Creditors FERTBRK 1,268 - - 1,268
Derivative financial PTHEMBIA

instruments (net settled) (FitE 4,931 8,102 8,999 22,032

Bank borrowings RITIER 144,741 297,325 1,191,699 1,633,765
Financial guarantees in HARBERZ

contingent liabilities BT HEIR 1,691,912 154,939 - 1,846,851

2014 —T—NE

Amounts due to subsidiaries FETH B A BIAR R 2,789,829 - - 2,789,829

Creditors FEITERER 907 - - 907

Bank borrowings IRTTHERK 53,074 1,592,889 - 1,645,963
Financial guarantees in HREBEANZ

contingent liabilities BARSHEIR 1,859,682 25,500 253,535 2,138,717

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEKRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The Group monitors the capital on the basis of net debt to equity
ratio, which is expressed as a percentage of net debt (comprises
total debt less bank balances and cash) over total equity. Total debt
represents bank and other borrowings.

AEBEBERZ BORREAEERRF
ez RNEBREZEBR
e Ei= AtV TS Y SSUNEIE &

AEBETFRR TR MEREERE
B UmALEREETARHRENE
KA HE 2 B  WHEEMR N b
TR BCHERERBIELFE

REBRFER ARSI R 2 BARR
AR REERFER(BREEEBRR
THEERRE)HERR AN - BE
TERIRT R EABAE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

33

94

The net debt to equity ratio of the Group is as follows:

3 BREREEAERBEK(E)

3.2 EXEREE(H)
REE 2 FEF RS RN T -

Total debt RIETS
Bank balances and cash RITETERE
Net debt SFERS
Total equity el

Net debt to equity ratio TR EAGERE RS R
Net debt to equity ratio decreased from 40.5% as at 31 March 2014
to 10.3% as at 31 March 2015 mainly due to the settlement of debts
by operating funds and proceeds from the disposals of subsidiaries
and pre-sales of properties under development.

Pursuant to Chapter 41 of The Hong Kong Insurance Companies
Ordinance, all authorised insurance companies are required to
maintain an excess of assets over liabilities of not less than a
required solvency margin. For the years ended 31 March 2015 and
2014, the Group's relevant subsidiaries complied with the solvency
margin requirements as set out by the relevant authorities in Hong
Kong.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair values by level of inputs to valuation techniques to measure
fair values. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

e |nputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

® Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3.3

3,628,128 4,067,055
(2,662,622) (1,200,835)
865,506 2,866,220
8,398,749 7,076,799
10.3% 40.5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 UREREEEEREEK(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AAEME(E)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets and THREFIIN _BE—RAE=A=+—Hi%
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values as at 31 March NABEHEZAEBUBEERY KA
2015: = .

The Group The Company
*5E FAH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F-4 F8 E=H 4% F-8 F=8 E=R i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AETRT BT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value 1227 BJIAB%
through profit or loss REZHEAE

— debt securities -BBES 129,890 72,335 - 202,225 - - - -
- equity securities —IRAE 76,941 - - 76,941 30,756 = = 30,756
— equity linked notes -REHBFE - - 7816 7816 = = = =
-exchange-raded funds R BFEEES 592 - - 592 592 - - 592
-mutual and hedge funds ~ —BEERETES 1378 - 75,382 76,760 - = 107 107
Derivative financial fTEBBIA
instruments - 13,220 18,073 31,293 - - - -
Available-for-sale ARHE MBEE
financial assets
- equity securities —fRAES 25,627 - 7,750 33371 - - - -
- private funds -fLBE: - - 167,715 167,715 - - 167,715 167,715
234,428 85,555 276,736 596,719 31,348 - 167,822 199,170
Liability B
Derivative financial ITERBIA
instruments - (13,247) - (13,247) - (4,677) - (4,677)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-T-—hF=A=1T—"HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 MEEBEEAERBX(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DAAEME(E)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets and TEREIIKR=_Z—HF=A=+—HIZ
financial liabilities that are measured at fair values as at 31 March AABEHAEZAEBUEEERYBE
2014: f&

The Group The Company
yi-3c] YN
Level Level 3 Level 2 Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Vot BETTT AETT BT BETT

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value 22 % EHIAEE
through profit or loss REHKEE

- debt securities -BBES 167,279 66,108 - 233,387 - - - -
- equity securities -REES 69,874 - - 69,874 32,966 - - 32,966
-exchange-traded funds ~ — X BFEEES 680 - - 680 680 - - 680
-mutual and hedge funds ~ —BEREFES 1,404 - 15,387 16,791 - - 207 207
Derivative financial ITEBBIA
instruments - 4,035 6,307 10,342 - 1,082 - 1,082
Available-for-sale R E 7 HEEE
financial assets
- equity securities —~RAES 29,900 - 11,640 41,540 - - 3,880 3,880
—private funds -EEs - - 214,093 214,093 - - 214,093 214,003
- convertible preference  —AIEIRELR
shares - - 200,408 200,408 - - - -
269,137 70,143 447,835 787,115 33,646 1,082 218,180 252,908
Liability 8
Derivative financial TAEMBIE

instruments - (7,094) - (7,094) - - - -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-2-AF=A=+-ALFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BRERREEBEEREGK(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREMGFE)

The Group uses quoted market prices for financial assets included in
level 1. The quoted price which is used, is the price within the bid-
ask spread that is most representative of the fair value.

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

e  The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves;

e The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period with the resulting value discounted back to
present value;

e  For unlisted securities or financial assets without an active
market, the Group establishes the fair value by using
valuation techniques including the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, reference to net asset value of investee
and discounted cash flow analysis, making maximum use
of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs. If none of the valuation techniques results in a
reasonable estimate on the fair value, the investment is stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses; and

e Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

There were no transfers of financial instruments between levels in
fair value hierarchy for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 UREREERERBEK(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DAEME(E
The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value T%%@ﬁ‘]%:i&’/}jﬂﬁ SN T
hierarchy of financial instruments for the years ended 31 March BEfHzE T — ﬂi& T—MFE=A
2016 and 2014: St -HEFEzE

The Group

Equity/foreign Convertible
exchange  Mutual and Equity Private preference

linked notes  hedgefunds  Call option  Put options securities funds shares Others
&/ "9% EER L i

HnEe DR AR bus HgEe BER At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i =

BT BETT AT BT AT BT
At 1 April 2014 RZF-WE
mA-A - 15,387 - - 11,640 214,093 200,408 6,307 447,835
Purchasesfcapital contributions B\ /ARHA 8,680 57,154 26,045 - - 438 - - 92317
Receipt for capital retums ~~ WEIER - - - - - (27,984) - - (27,984)
Fair value losses recognised ﬁAﬁﬁﬁ%WlﬁT&
in other comprehensive BLORE
income 5] o o - - (3,890) (17,638) (2,507) - (24,035)
Fair value (losses)gains REEH#Z
recognised through MhE(ER)/
profit or loss e (864) 284 (1972) - - - - 2073 (3922)
Fair value losses hedged by~ EEIMEAD)
foreign currency forward Hnni(E
contracts 8 - - o = - - (32,200) - (32,200)
Impairment loss recognised ~ RNEETERZ
in profit or loss HEEE = - - - - - (165,701) - (165,701
Disposals e = - - - - (1,194 - - (1,194)
Derecognition KR - - - - - - - (8.380) (8,380)
At31 March 2015 R-F-1F
=A=t+-H 1816 75,382 18,073 - 1,750 167,715 - - 276,736
At 1 April 2013 RZF—=%
TNA-H 18,380 526 - 50,975 3880 189,012 - 6,307 269,080
Purchases/capital contributions %A/ A7 A - 16,53 - - 7,750 2539 238471 - 264245
Receipt for capital retums ~~ WEIE A - - - - - (17,061) - - (17,061)
Fair value gains/llosses) RED2ENERER
recognised in other L0 fENE/
comprehensive income (BR) - - - - 10 39,603 24,538) - 15,075
Fair value gainsf(losses) RERERZ
recognised through DERE/
profit or loss (Bt 1623 (152) - 5685 - - - - 7156
Fair value losses hedged by EHMEA?’JE’]
foreign curency forward ¥ AL E
contracts Eﬂﬁ - - - - - - (13,475) - (13.475)
Disposals irt:3 (20,003) (522) - (81,660) - - - - (102,185)
Derecognition B - - - 25,000 - - - N 25000
At31 March 2014 RIE-TE
=A=t-H - 15,387 - - 11,640 214,093 200,408 6,307 447835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 UREREEEEREEK(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AAEME(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value TREINE=ZBRAABEERENTBHT
hierarchy of financial instruments for the years ended 31 March Bz T —RHFER-_ZE—NF=A
2015 and 2014: (continued) “t+—RLFEZES : (&)
The Company
PN
Mutual and Equity Private
Hedge funds securities funds Total
EER
HAHES RAEH IEES g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—NFMNA—H 207 3,880 214,093 218,180
Purchases/capital contributions A EREA - - 438 438
Receipt for capital returns W [a] & A - - (27,984) (27,984)
Fair value losses recognised in REMZEmKEERZ
other comprehensive income NREEE - (3,880) (17,638) (21,518)
Disposals HE (100) - (1,194) (1,294)
At 31 March 2015 s
=A=+—H 107 - 167,715 167,822
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=%FPAH—H 506 3,880 189,012 193,398
Purchases/capital contributions A BRI A - - 2,539 2,639
Receipt for capital returns g B A - - (17,061) (17,061)
Fair value gains recognised in REAMEEYRERZ
other comprehensive income N EWZS - - 39,603 39,603
Fair value gains recognised through PMExHER 2 A Bk
profit or loss 200 - - 200
Disposals & (499) - - (499)
At 31 March 2014 RZZT—mNE
—A=1+—H 207 3,880 214,093 218,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-—Z-AF-A=T—ALFEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Fair values of investment properties and staff quarters

The valuations of investment properties and staff quarters held
directly by the Group are made on the basis of the “Market Value”
adopted by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS"). They
are performed in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards on
Properties published by HKIS. The valuations are reviewed annually
by qualified valuers by considering the information from a variety of
sources including (i) current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences; (ii) recent prices of similar properties in less active
market, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those
prices; and (iii) rental income derived from existing tenancies with
due provision for reversionary income potential based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results and
a set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect its tenancy
and cashflow profile. The fair value of each investment property
reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases
and assumptions about rental income from future leases in light of
current market conditions including open market rents, appropriate
capitalisation rates and reversionary income potential. For the year
ended 31 March 2015, discount rate in the range of 4% to 6% (2014:
4% to 6%) were used in the discounted cash flow analysis. The fair
value also reflects on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property.

As at 31 March 2015, if the market values of investment properties
and staff quarters had been 10% (2014: 10%) higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the carrying values of the
Group's investment properties and staff quarters would have been
HK$368,050,000 and HK$43,927,000 (2014: HK$364,687,000 and
HK$44,666,000) higher/lower respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment assessment for property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been determined based
on the higher of their fair values less costs to sell and value in
use, taking into account the latest market information and past
experience.

Impairment assessment for goodwill and other intangible assets
The Group tests whether goodwill and other intangible assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting policies
stated in note 2(aa) to the consolidated financial statements.
The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or their fair values less cost to sell,
whichever are higher, and both bases require the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. The Group expects that any reasonable
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts
are based would not cause the carrying amounts of goodwill and
other intangible assets to exceed their recoverable amounts. Please
refer to notes 16, 17 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements
for details.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and consequent
related amortisation rate (if any) for its other intangible assets. These
estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of comparable intangible assets in related industries. Actual
economic life may vary from estimated useful life. Periodic review
could result in a change in amortisable lives and consequently
increase or decrease in amortisation expenses in future periods.
Please refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for
details.

Impairment assessment for the Group’s investments in
associates and joint ventures

The Group regularly reviews whether there are any indications
of impairment of the Group's investments in associates and joint
ventures primarily based on value-in-use calculations.

In determining the value in use, management assesses the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these future cash flows and discount rate. Management estimates
the future cash flows based on certain assumptions, such as
revenue growth.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-T-RF=A=t+-ALFE

4 BASRERHEST R E (&)
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(c)

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-—Z-AF-A=T—ALFEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i
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Impairment assessment for available-for-sale investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an
equity available-for-sale investment is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the investee and
historical price volatility of these investments.

If all of the declines in fair value of available-for-sale investments
below cost are considered significant or prolonged, an additional
loss of HK$4,000 (2014: HK$28,051,000) would be incurred in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015, being the transfer of the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity on such available-for-sale
investments to profit or loss.

Fair values of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments

The fair values of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period.

Net realisable values of properties under development and
properties for sale

The Group writes down properties under development and
properties for sale to net realisable value based on assessment of
the realisability of properties under development and properties
for sale which takes into account cost to completion based on
past experience and net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. If there is an increase in cost to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease which may
result in writing down properties under development and properties
for sale to net realisable value. Write-downs are recorded where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value of properties under
development and properties for sale is adjusted in the period in
which such estimate is changed.

Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group’s insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on
the basis of historical information, actuarial analysis, financing
modeling and other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance
liabilities are affected by assessed net loss ratio. As at 31 March
2015, assessed net loss ratio was 73% (2014: 74%). Differences
resulting from reassessment of insurance liabilities are recognised in
subsequent consolidated financial statements. The Group continually
reviews the estimates and makes adjustments as necessary, but
actual results could differ from what is envisioned when these
estimates are made.

4 BASRETHAEET R (&)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)
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MBI HEE 2 REN AR EHHER
ARBHIRHTHEEENRA - BIALE
EHZE_E—RE=R=+—HILEE
SAPBRERSELBINGIEBE4,000
JL(—Z—P04F : B#28,051,0005T) °
Btz S al il & 2 IR AR ERS IR
ZEHDAEAREREIES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

1)

(k)

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as
stated in note 2(n) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group uses the percentage of completion method to determine the
appropriate revenue to be recognised in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by total amount of work done certified by
customers over total estimated contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group
needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction
contract, which is determined based on the estimated total
construction contract costs and total construction contract sum,
including variation orders and claims. If the actual gross profit margin
of construction contract differs from the management’s estimates,
the construction contract profit to be recognised in the following
years will need to be adjusted accordingly.

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2015, deferred tax asset of HK$41,068,000
(2014: HK$44,553,000) in relation to unused tax losses had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future taxable profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. In cases where the actual taxable future
profits generated are more or less than expected, additional deferred
tax assets or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such an
addition or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group, including associates and joint ventures, is subject
to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgment
is required in determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-2-AF=A=+-ALFE

4 BASRERHEST R E (&)
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(k)

BESHBARER
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LOERIEESMRREE R - TR
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(BREEHTERRE) Lt EEEE
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FRERZEESLBMNIELAERE -

8%
RZE—RF=A=+—H @KH
BrBBEEEEENEEREEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

B RS R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

5

REVENUE

Revenue represents amounts received and
receivable from:

Construction and installation contracts

Sale of information technology equipment,
motor vehicles and others

Food and beverage

Senior housing operations

Sales and leasing of properties

Warehouse and logistics operations

Provision of maintenance and
property management

Insurance premium

Hotel operations

Dividend income from investments

Interest income from investments

Leasing of vehicles and equipment

Total revenue (note 37)

OTHER INCOME, NET

Gain/(loss) on investments at fair value
through profit or loss
— held-for-trading
— designated upon initial recognition

Gain on derivative financial instruments

Other investment income

Commission income

Marketing and promotion income

Sales and marketing services income from
an associate (note 44)

Interest income from an associate (note 44)

Management fee income from associates and
joint ventures (note 44)

Others

WAERE L,{T%IEZ
B ke YR IA

BERLELRD
AR - AR R
Hith 2 $HE
HER
REREEE
MEHERAE
%E&%ﬁ%@
HRER
%% IR
RiR 2
s
KREREZBEWRA
KEREZFIBIA
RERREEE

A (f5E37)

2,395,785 1,471,011
744,305 766,653
605,346 572,114
505,659 473,588
218,216 141,632
187,151 173,316
157,542 150,793
108,214 275,378

37,969 40,738
32,731 32,360
13,225 10,439
6,508 5,359
5,012,651 4,113,381

6 HA - 8

2015
—E-AfF

LARBEYIAEREE Y
HEME (E18)
—RHEEEAR
— A VIATER IS T

PTAMBIT A Z G

HEERA

& U A

TIHE R HEERA

RE—FEEERRZHEER
TS HE RS (M 5E44)

RE— A QB2 F B A (FF44)

REBERRRAELEY
EIRE A (Ff3E44)

Hith
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HK$°000
BETT

2014
— e
HK$'000
BT

19,547 22,861
= (310)
15,977 14,161
6,158 6,466
9,068 9,264
5,024 2,018
24,651 23,638
37,866 -
26,315 33,448
10,497 6,827
155,103 118,273




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

OTHER GAINS, NET 7

Increase in fair value of investment properties JEYEZ N EEM
(note 14) (Mi5E14)

Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—IHREME WG

(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, plant and HEWE BELREZ
equipment (F518), e

Gain/(loss) on disposals of HENTEE W (E18)
— Peak Gain Limited (note 45(b)(i)) — AR 2 & (Bt 5E45(0)())
— other subsidiaries —H B AR

(Loss)/gain on disposals of available-for-sale HEHBEE ZRER
investments (E8), e

Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BE NRE 2 RERE
equipment (note 15) (FI5E15)

Impairment loss on amounts due from associates  FEUEE & N BIBR K 2 BER 1B

Impairment loss on amounts due from RS S EERK BERE

joint ventures
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments At H & 2 % & 2 BERE

Impairment loss on trade and other debtors B 5 REMEWIRR 2 R EEE
Impairment loss written back on retention [B1 3 FE U (R EE 7R TE 2.
receivables DEREY Ei=
Exchange loss bE 5 518
FINANCE COSTS, NET 8

Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and RITESI REREFA
bank and other borrowings wholly repayable 2EER 2 IRITREMBETRN
within five years AEZH

Interest expenses on bank and other borrowings  HERAFERNEHER 2 R1TR
not wholly repayable within five years EbEReF S

Less: Amounts capitalised to properties B BEERERYEL

under development (note) SR (M)
Less: Interest income from bank deposits B ERITIE U F B UL A
Note:

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the development of
properties was at 5.9% per annum (2014: between 5.9% and 7.0%).

2015
—E—HEF
HK$'000
BRET T
193,312 201,510
642 -
(368) 9,010
1,247,689 -
16,819 (787)
(49) 42
(3,452) -
(66,831) (908)
(153,874) (14,087)
(210,386) (10,532)
(31,835) (2,689)
- 25
(34,618) (6,310)
957,049 175,274

MKER  FHE

2015
—E-HEF

HK$°000
BETT

2014
—ZT—F
HK$'000
BEET T

78,562 132,378
42,531 1,788
(6,467) (17,154)
114,626 117,012
(19,315) (14,355)
95,311 102,657

PRE

FERRRMERG R BIEMXERE 2 ESNERL
FERRBEI%(ZFE—MF : NF59%%E7.0%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

9 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

BRBLAT R F

2015
—g-af

HK$'000
BT T

Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging the following:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(note 15)
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

Staff costs (note a)
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of

— premises (note b)
— equipment

Auditors’ remuneration
— current year
— over-provision in prior years

Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 17)

Write down of inventories to
net realisable value, net
Acquisition-related expenses

and crediting the following:

Write back of inventories to
net realisable value, net

Gross rental income of HK$148,716,000
(2014: HK$138,655,000) from properties
less direct operating expenses (note c)

Notes:

BRATEMENBRTSIEE

M BEMEEZITE
(MI7%15)
B BEAH IR S5

8 THIx (Mizta)
B BEANTIEZ SR

HELTRAEZEEHEER

— BT (Hfib)
i

EEIE
—REE
—BEFEERRE

HAb B A A (P FE17)

WoR 17 I = AT RBUHE

WiE AR
WEtATHIAR -

BAFRETLRHE PR

VI & Uk A 7E#148,716,0007T
(ZZ—PO4 : ##138,655,0007T)

B RS (FfEc)

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Included in staff costs are amounts of HK$1,277,000 (2014: HK$794,000)
in respect of termination benefits made to staff and HK$37,754,000 (2014:
HK$34,750,000) in respect of contributions to defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes, net of forfeited contributions.

Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises are
contingent rentals of HK$5,697,000 (2014: HK$2,551,000).

Included in rental income is an amount of HK$4,082,000 (2014: HK$2,895,000)
less outgoings of HK$876,000 (2014: HK$953,000) from joint operation.
Included in rental income is a gross amount of HK$140,718,000 (2014:
HK$131,910,000) derived from investment properties less direct operating
expenses of HK$7,904,000 (2014: HK$8,153,000).

Mt -

(a)

(c)

110,790 99,673
(1,896) (1,583)
108,894 98,090
1,045,896 977,788
(145,504) (113,000}
900,392 864,788
102,241 93,050
3,435 2,950
105,676 96,000
11,307 11,334
(580) -
10,727 11,334
5,272 7,077

- 974

= 8,726

2,126 _
139,352 128,865

EFMECRBEREIRA  HFBERS
BITS3RR M FE39 R B -

BTN BERE LIEL 2 ERKILEFBLE
1,277,0007C ( — & — U4 : ##794,0007T )
R B0k B2 W5k 2 FRE HERUE (R & FlaT
B T HE37,754,0007T (ZE — P04 : B
34,750,0007T) °

HERFr2ENERAAEXARS AR
5,697,000 7T ( =% — [ 4 : /& % 2,651,000
7T e

FAERABRBERAELCERMZAES B
4,082,000 7% ( = & — MO 4 : ¥ 2,895,000
TT) S B #5876,000 7T ( ZF — U4 ¢ i
#953,0007T) ° HE WA BIEREREYE
2 AT S W A B 140,718,000 (= F — M
4 B#131,910,00070) M EE KL HB
#7,904,00070 (= F — U4 « #¥%8,153,000
JT) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

10

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

Current tax
Hong Kong
Mainland China and overseas
(Over)/under-provision in prior years

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (note 36)

REEHIR
B
B A g o
BEFEGRERE) BT

RIERIIB
TR R L IO
(M$3E36)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits. Taxation on Mainland China and
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per consolidated income statement as follows:

FrieBi <
2015
—E—HEF
HK$'000
BRET T
66,585 51,959
24,164 33,089
(1,885) 92
88,864 85,140
31,291 (870)
120,155 84,270

EBF BRI ERBE FIE B R
16.56% (= ZF—P04F : 16.5% )5t & - hERA
K 8 IR B SR T IR F NG s B R BDE FI
RS EEBFEER 2 RITH R E o

BIERR 2 F BN A M B IRRMFE36 K
= o

iR YRR AR T A 6 F B AR F PSR X
HZ EEmT

Profit before taxation

Adjusted for:
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary difference
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and deductible
temporary difference not previously recognised

(Over)/under-provision in prior years

Others

Income tax expenses for the year

BT

B -
g 2 4
Fiba B0 R EE

BAHPTSHIAE16.5%

(ZZ—D04 : 165%):TE 2 HiE

EEMAEEREBEE 2B AR

F e AR R 2 8
AAENHZ AT E
BRRBURAZ BUAR 2
RTHERRGERHIATE
AT HERAIRE R E R BIA

TE
BREBERTHRZREER

KRR It E R 2 IR E
BEFEGEREER) BHETR
Hith

FEAEHH

2015
—E-RfF
HK$°000
BT T
1,710,478 610,451
(249,406) (79,376)
28,753 9,033
1,489,825 540,108
245,821 89,118
2,870 (3,294)
95,637 17,015
(270,664) (49,692)
39,928 29,356
10,407 6,151
(5,880) (4,093)
(1,885) 92
3,921 (383)
120,155 84,270
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RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

11 BRER

(a)

8%
SREARTITREAD AR EA
A 2 IR AR AP FE B AT 2B R 2 I
BB -

2015
—E-A5F

HK$°000
BETFT

Profit attributable to equity holders A RRIERE A
of the Company FEAE &R

1,537,162 470,369

Weighted average number of ordinary BRIk
shares in issue (‘000 shares) EFHE(FR)
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BRERZHN(EE)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2015, the Group
had potential ordinary shares in an associate, which were issuable
upon exercise of share option being granted. There was no potential
dilutive effect from such share option held during the year. As at
31 March 2015 and 2014, an associate of the Group had potential
ordinary shares which were issuable upon exercise of share options
granted. There was no potential dilutive effect from such share
options during both years.
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(b)

294,897 285,102

5.21 1.65

ey

GREERNERFHBD RITEBK
DRI EUARER P A B 8 L AR
BRAMAESH R_FT—RF=A
=t—H AREES—EBEREZ
BEEBE - ZBORET ZBRER
TR A T EIT 2D - RERE AR L
MEEREY BESEEEETE - N
T-AFER-T-NF=A=1+—8"
AEE-HBENRABETBR %
B A 1% 2 8 PR A T (R B 7T T 384T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS

12

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

BRE

2015
—E—HEF

HK$’000
BT T

Interim dividend of HK$0.20
(2014: HK$0.20) per share paid

Special dividend of HK$0.50 (2014: nil)
per share proposed

Final dividend of HK$0.50 (2014: HK$0.65)
per share proposed

Bk R 8 BB #0.207T
(=ZZ—pu4F : #10.200T)

IR R B AR B #0.507T
(=% |\)

BOR AR B B BB 0.507T
(ZZ—m4E : B¥0.655T)

Of the dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2015,
HK$39,157,000 and HK$52,743,000 were paid in form of shares under
the Company's scrip dividend schemes in respect of the interim dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2014 respectively. Of the dividends paid during the year
ended 31 March 2014, HK$36,873,000 and HK$121,049,000 were paid in
form of shares under the Company’s scrip dividend schemes in respect
of the interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 and final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013.

A special dividend of HK$0.50 per share and a final dividend of HK$0.50
per share totaling HK$299,990,000, with an option to receive shares of
the Company, have been proposed by the Directors and are subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The amount will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
the year ending 31 March 2016.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company was HK$548,721,000 (2014
HK$313,772,000).

13

59,409 58,038
149,995 -

149,995 190,368

359,399 248,406

HE-_Z-AF=-A=+—HIFERADK
NzREH  BEE-_E-—hEF=A=+—
BLtFEZHRHRERBEE_T—NF=A
ST ALFEZRERER  HbBk
39,157,000 X 7 # 52,743,000 7T 7 Bl 1R 1%
RABIABRBABURND I - BEZT
—MFEZA=Z+—BLFERERMNZEE
FoREE_Z-ME-A=Z+—HILEE
ZHEREREE-_TE—=4=A=+—H
IEFEZ R B A » Hp 136,873,000
JC KB #121,049,0007T 75 BIAR 5 A A B BARR
R EETBIARD L -

EEEBIREERIREFRE0.507T M ARE
% B &R EE0.507T & 299,990,000
JC - WM AR R WA N R AR 2 A
HEAGAHBBRAZREBFAS LERE
- ZeEBIIERZE=Z—X~F=A
=t+—HUEFERBEFZDIR -

AR RESH ARERR

KRG RERSE AEMLE B EE
548,721,000 7t ( — & — I F : & &
313,772,00070) Bt AR QBB B RE S o
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RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group

14 REYE
AEE

At beginning of the year F1)
Exchange realignment M 5
Additions NE

Disposal of an investment property HE—HIREYE
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited (note 45(b)(i))
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment EEME - WENERE

Increase in fair value (note 7) DAL FIEET)

At end of the year FR

The Group's investment properties at their carrying values are analysed as
follows:

HERAIB R A (FIFE45(0)()

2015
—E-A5F
HK$°000
BT T
3,646,873 3,407,266
(49,411) (3,142)
15,019 -
(4,000) -
(121,296) -
- 41,239
193,312 201,510
3,680,497 3,646,873

AREE 2 B YEZREEZ DT

Hong Kong BB
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FHRN(FERTF)
Mainland China and overseas R B i R A
Freehold KA ZEHE
On long-term leases (over 50 years) AL (E+FAL)
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FHRN(FERTF)

Notes:

(@)  The fair value of the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and overseas as at 31 March 2015 had been arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out as at the end of the reporting period by Knight Frank
Petty Limited or DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, which are independent
firms of qualified valuers having appropriate qualifications and experience
in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by HKIS,
is arrived at with reference to market evidence of transaction prices of similar
properties or calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary potential.
For all investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and
best use.

(b) Investment properties in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of
HK$42,667,000 (2014: HK$38,333,000) represented the Group's share of
interest in joint operation.

(c)  Charges were created on the investment properties with a total carrying value

of HK$2,171,795,000 (2014: HK$2,099,550,000) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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ffeE

(a)

(c)

2,370,121 2,311,562
508,986 533,360
735,255 736,947

66,135 65,004

3,680,497 3,646,873

REBURES - FEAM N2 REME
WIE-RAF=RA=t+—HZARETRED
BIAHITBIE T E R AR RBERITERA
A(LERBILAERTHENTT - LR E R
BREFETYELEIABERREH)ZR
HEHREET 2 HERAEREMSH - ZEETY
BTEBNEMBEREREBNEMES
PEGEERTE2RHS LRUNEZRS
ERSH - RBEERAFEREE © AT
BRAWMENS - AEAEERERS K
ERE -

MREBLRAVEZREAERY
42,667,0007T (—Z — U4 : % #38,333,000
TO)RAEEFTIA S S8 2 -

BRI A8 (E8152,171,795,00070 ( —Z — U4 -
75152,099,550,0007T ) Z IR E W EAEIE -
ERBETASBRITEE ZER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(d)

Valuation of investment properties
The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value hierarchy of
investment properties for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014:

Commercial properties

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

14 BEME(E)

AREEE ()
M : ()

Residential properties

(d)

BN (A
TRESIE=R A ERBORANRBE =
T-RER-F-MF=A=t—ALFEZ

28 ;

Industrial properties

HENE EEME IEMF
Mainland Mainland
Hong Kong China Overseas  Hong Kong China  Hong Kong Overseas
Bi B ) HER BE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT BRI BT

At 1 April 2014 RZE-mEMNA—A 994,535 46,590 5,405 33,470 712,072 1,283,557 571,244 3,646,873
Exchange realignment EHAZ - - (2,453) - - - (46,958) (49,411)
Additions B = - 15,019 - - - - 15,019
Disposal of an investment ~ HE—EREYE

property - - - (4,000) - - - (4,000)
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited &K EIERAF

{note 45(b)(i) (MizE45(0)() = = = - - (121,296) = (121,296)
Increase in fair value (note 7) ~ AA(EZIN(HiEE7) 73,791 323 4,928 5,370 212 104,694 3,994 193,312
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1F

ZA=t-H 1,068,326 46,913 22,899 34,840 712,284 1,266,955 528,280 3,680,497

At 1 April 2013 R-ZE-=FNA—-H 903,882 44,551 5,190 31,780 671,382 1,197,086 553,395 3,407,266
Exchange realignment BHAZ - 290 (345) - 5,048 - (8,135) (3,142)
Transfer from properties, BANE  BERE

plant and equipment 25,262 - - - - 15,977 - 41,239
Increase in fair value (note 7) A7 B AN(PIEET7) 65,391 1,749 560 1,690 35,642 70,494 25,984 201,510
At 31 March 2014 i gii:d

“B=t-A 994,535 46,590 5,405 33470 712072 1283557 571044 3,646,873

The Group includes a team that reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes and reports directly to the
senior management. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the senior management and valuers at least once every six months,
in line with the Group's interim and annual reporting dates.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group:

o verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

o assesses property valuation movements when compared to the prior
year valuation reports; and

o holds discussions with the independent valuers.

AEEOZEH BB G BRE R
FriEfbEz B - BZEBERRASREZRE
HE o BREEEELSSREA(RAKES
B R EIRE B E — B0 ST AR 1T — IR
EBERERR -

RERERR - AEH

s BREHBUMERENMEEABAH
%

o HMEMRMGERLFEMERSLERT
MED ;K

o EUBAVERDETTAW
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-—Z-AF-A=T—ALFEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(d)

112 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

Fair values of commercial, residential and industrial properties in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and overseas are generally derived using the income
capitalisation method and wherever appropriate, by direct comparison method.
Income capitalisation method is based on the capitalisation of the net income
and reversionary income potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing market
rents adopted in the valuation have reference to recent lettings, within the
subject properties and other comparable properties. Direct comparison
method is based on comparing the property to be valued directly with other
comparable properties, which have recently transacted. However, given the
heterogeneous nature of real estate properties, appropriate adjustments are
usually required to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect the
price likely to be achieved by the property under consideration.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine fair values

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on recent lettings for Hong Kong
and Mainland China investment properties, within the subject properties and
other comparable properties. The lower the rents, the lower the fair values.

As at 31 March 2015, the prevailing market rents of HK$22 (2014: from HK$20
to HK$21) per square feet (“sq. ft.”) per month and HK$121 (2014: HK$112)
per square meter (“sq. m."”) per month were used in the income capitalisation
method for majority of commercial properties in Hong Kong and Mainland
China respectively. For residential properties in Mainland China and industrial
properties in Hong Kong, the prevailing market rents of HK$74 to HK$825
(2014: HK$108 to HK$819) per sg. m. per month and HK$10 to HK$12 (2014
from HK$9 to HK$12) per sq. ft. per month were used respectively.

Capitalisation rates are estimated by valuers based on the risk profile of the
investment properties being valued. The higher the rates, the lower the
fair values. As at 31 March 2015, capitalisation rates of 3.5% (2014: 3.5%)
and 5.5% (2014: 5.5%) were used in the income capitalisation method for
commercial properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China respectively; and
the capitalisation rates of 2% to 6% (2014: 2% to 6.5%) and 4.5% to 5.8%
(2014: 5% to 5.8%) were used for residential properties in Mainland China and
industrial properties in Hong Kong respectively.
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REFE (M)
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RAEMEZHEE)

BB PENREINEE  EERTENE
ZRARE-REBREEMOER(WER)E
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 V¥ MERZE
The Group RE
Furniture,
Other properties for own use ot f|xtu;5,
- ant, office
RiERIE machinery equipment
Cold storage Hotel Other Staff and and motor
warehouse properties properties quarters equipment vehicles Total
G £E
BE -BE  BOERE
REER BRENE Hiths BIRER e ] RAE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI AETR AETR BT BETT BRI
(note ¢
(Bizkc)
Cost or valuation HAZE
At 1 April 2013 W-E-=#MA-H 239,038 160,296 1,314,833 63,263 101,825 381,245 2,260,500
Exchange realignment [E3a - (11494) (8,458) - (2,584) (5,992) (28528)
Acquisition of senior housing WEZERAEK
business (note 45(b)i) (B z¥4s(o)i) - - 55,335 - - 6510 61,845
Additions AE - 216 16,3% - 6,561 41,902 65,573
Disposals e - - (3,800) - (13,098) (22,676) (39,574)
Transfer to investment properties EZRENE - - 10,546) - - - (10,546)
Increase in fair value BN - - - 383,397 - - 383,397
At31 March 2014 AST-MESASI-R 2908 9018 1364288 446660 0104 40989 2692667
Exchange realignment EiAE - (18,722) (12174) = [2,173) (1.01) 40,080)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAR - - - - 297 2,1 3,068
Additions RE - 17,855 8,652 - 19,326 40,676 86,509
Disposals e - - - - (3,678) (10,406) (14,084)
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited HEREIERAR
(note 45(b)(i) (Hf3E45000) o = (109,040) = = (3,810) (112,850
Disposals of other subsidiaries HEEMIBAR - - - - (1,358) (5,557) (6,915)
AL March 2015 R-T-RESAS-E 2908 MBS 125169 MGEED 105118 TG 2608315
Accumulated depreciation BiER
and impairment HE
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=4MA—-H 68,39 64,341 161,521 33,083 48082 206,189 581,611
Exchange realignment SR - (3.901) (2,485) - (2,146) (4,446) (12,978)
Charged for the year (note 9) EEE (M) 6125 2373 31519 2430 12,231 44,995 %9673
Disposals e - - (558) - (11977) (19,267) (31,802
Transfer to investment properties ERRENE - - (2,847) - - - 2,847)
Increase in fair value DRESEN - - - (35,513) - - (35,513)
At31 March 2014 R-ET-ME=A=1-B 4520 0813 181160 - 6190 214n 5
Exchange realignment R AR - (6,104) (5.367) - (1,602) (4017) (17,090)
Charged for the year (note 9 EERE (M) 6125 2474 32458 7392 12611 49730 110,790
Impairment loss [note 7) HESE(HT) - - - - - 3,452 3,452
Disposals e = - - - (2,960) (7.041) (10,001)
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited HEREIERAR
(note 45(0)i) (Wrzxas(bii) = - (38,843) = - (3,489) (42,332)
Disposals of other subsidiaries HEEMHBAR - - - - (1,243) (3,494) (4,737)
AL31 March 2015 RoT-REZASt-E 80645 59183 17539 7392 9% 22612 638226
Carrying value R
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=1-H 158,393 88,968 1,076,298 439,268 52,122 155,040 1,970,089
At 31 March 2014 WZE-mE=A=+-H 164,518 86,205 1,177,108 446,660 46,514 173,518 2,094,523
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group (continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

114 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

The carrying value of properties comprise:

Freehold land and buildings thereon
Leasehold land and buildings thereon

Charges were created on the properties, plant and equipment with a total
carrying value of HK$1,216,013,000 (2014: HK$1,364,178,000) for the purpose
of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

Revaluation of staff quarters

The Group had measured the staff quarters under the revaluation model. The
fair value of staff quarters had been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried
out as at the end of the reporting period by Knight Frank Petty Limited, which
is an independent firm of qualified valuers having appropriate qualifications
and experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties
published by HKIS, was arrived at with reference to market evidence of
transaction prices of similar properties or calculated on the net income
allowing for reversionary potential.

The fair value of staff quarters are generally derived using the direct
comparison method. Direct comparison method is based on comparing the
property to be valued directly with other comparable properties, which have
recently transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the
property under consideration.

If the staff quarters were measured under the cost model, the carrying value
would be as follows:

15 % - BERHZEE)

KAEEL RN E E 28T
METFENE L2 BT

REEE ()
e
@) YEZREESE
2014
—E—F
HK$'000
BT T
762,699 776,112
1,000,228 1,098,379
1,762,927 1,874,491

(c)

BRI 48 (E757151,216,013,00070( —Z — U4 ¢
#511,364,178,0007T) 2 W% - HiE MEHED
R (ERRTALERITEEZIER -

EHEIRS
AEERREGRAGEREIRS - RIES
Z AR ETREBRIDAGFEITER AR (A
AAEMLAERET  YRERLERER
EITHRLEZAEERRER)NMERR
EITZHEMSL o ZEETETEREE
SEMEM BB NEMB S Y EAEELL
E2RMS LRUMEZRSERL - JURE
BN RN E -

BIESZARE-REBERLEATES
o EELBADENBE[EZ MEREN
LR H EMAHIEEMEEERLE - R
i EREENE I ZHI(CIEE - BEAR
ERR R EETEETNYEMEZ BRE
EERELHBEERE

Cost PR
Accumulated depreciation BEHTE
Carrying value BREE

| ANNUAL REPORT 2015

HEAKAEAABETHES - MREEN
T
2015
—EB-HF
HK$’000
BT T
63,263 63,263
(37,943) (35,613)
25,320 27,750




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

16 GOODWILL

The Group

At beginning of the year
Exchange realignment

Acquisition of 51% equity interest in WPGCs

(note 45(b)(ii)

At end of the year

Details of the impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note

38 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

Cost
At 1 April 2013
Exchange realignment
Acquisition of senior housing
business (note 45()iii)

At 31 March 2014
Exchange realignment
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
At 1 April 2013
Exchange realignment
Charged for the year (note 9)

At 31 March 2014
Exchange realignment
Charged for the year (note 9)
Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Carrying value
At 31 March 2015

At 31 March 2014

R
WZE-=FNA-A
EHAZ
WEREREES

(F 4500 i)

RZZ-ME=A=1-H
3

hE

e

RZZ-1F=A=1-H
St BERAE

RZZ-=FNA—H
ERHZ
FERE(NY)

R=2-mE=A=1-R
Ei8%
e E (i)

te

R=Z-n%=f=1-H

KA
RZZ-RF=A=t+-H

RZZ-ME=A=1-H

16 B
ES 4

F4) 681,743 681,743
iE A% (733) -
U BEAWPGCs 2 51 % A%
(Kt 3E45(0) (i) 9,174 -
FR 690,184 681,743
BB RENEFBEENGE VBRI
738 °
17 HitEREE
rEE
Cold storage
Roads, and public
drainage and bonded  Trademarks
waterworks warehouse  of restaurant Favourable
license licenses and bar leases Others
B R% RERE
Rk RAR £ER
IBMR REBER EEzER BRHE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
26,534 3,000 23,776 11,855 9273 74,438
- - - - 478 478
- - - - 5193 5193
26,534 3,000 23,776 11,855 14,944 80,109
_ - - = (596) (596)
- - - - 38 38
- - (5,682) - - (5,682)
26,534 3,000 18,094 11,855 14,386 73,869
26,534 3,000 4713 6,669 5,499 46,415
- - - - 418 418
- - 1,685 2,964 2,528 7077
26,534 3,000 6,298 9,633 8,445 53910
- - - = (591) (591)
- - 1,269 2222 1,781 5272
= = (1,957) = = (1,957)
26,534 3,000 5,610 11,855 9,635 56,634
- - 12,484 - 4,751 17,235
- - 17478 2222 6,499 26,199
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18
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—hF=A=t—HLLFE

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group (continued)

Other intangible assets (other than roads, drainage and waterworks
license (“License”)) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of following estimated useful lives or license period:

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses 10 years
Trademarks of restaurant and bar 15 years
Favourable leases 4 years
Lease-in-place 3 years

The Directors are of the opinion that the upkeep of this License is at
minimal cost and the Group would renew this License continuously. This
License is considered by the Group as having an indefinite useful life and
will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite upon
reassessment of its useful life annually by the Group. Instead, it will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The trademarks of restaurant and bar and favourable leases were
purchased as part of business combinations in prior years. The
trademarks and favourable leases are considered by the Group as having
finite lives of 15 years and 4 years respectively. These intangible assets
will be tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The lease-in-place of senior housing business was purchased as part
of business combination for the year ended 31 March 2014. The lease-
in-place is considered by the Group as having finite lives of 3 years.
The lease-in-place will be tested for impairment whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of impairment testing are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

18

Hitv B EE (&)

AEE (M)

HAb & EE (RIBR - RISk T2 R
(Th2PR 1SN THA B ARER T O A Al e A 4
His R IREIME T 2 SR E TSN

REBRERABRTA R TF
BEREMBEZ AR THE
BENHEE M4
AFEE =fF
ExRA EEUMMRERAAYRE  @E

EENSBUEBIHET - AEER AL
IRRAGERAFERFY St TS
i BEEAEAEBEpHEAIFERFHSFEN
E% BEHEAERFHARAL - Hi§
REF K IR A 8ERE 2 IR TR E A
A BARBENRZ FBHRGZAUBE®RE
Bf7E38 °

BELEEZEEARANEETRIAESF
EEREBEHZ—HBoMBA - REER
RUSERERANEEZGRAERFHRD
H+£¢&E$ HEBRTEE/MNHER
BUREZ I REEITRERR - BRRIE
%ﬁZ?F%W%GW%ﬁ%W?%D

REREEBZRFHEDRE_—T—

ZA=T—BILFEEREBAH D
BA - AEERRRFEE Zﬁfﬁ‘!@i%i
HAE=%F - REEESRHRAELRE D

IT_EI¢

Non-current: IERB -
Investment costs less impairment EKARRE
Amounts due from subsidiaries UL B A FIBRIK

Current: mE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUPN B A BIBR 5K
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTINE A BIBR SR

SEETRENR - BERENRZFEH
RERE IS IRETMIZESS ©
Frib BB 2 Rl 2 R %2
¥ /N
2015
—E-AfF
HK$°000
BT T
955,231 955,231
2,419,104 2,239,072
3,374,335 3,194,303
3,157,774 2,451,445
3,425,056 2,789,829
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18 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The Company (continued)
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015 were
set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries classified as non-current assets are
unsecured, interest-free and considered equity in nature.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries under current assets/liabilities are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand; except for a sum
of amounts due from subsidiaries totaling HK$277,784,000 (2014
HK$276,374,000) which were interest bearing at prime rate of The Hong
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“Prime Rate"”), Prime
Rate plus 3.0% or Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus
2.4% (2014: Prime Rate, Prime Rate plus 3.0% or HIBOR plus 2.4%) per
annum.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries under
current assets/liabilities approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries are
denominated in the following currencies:

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

18 FrEMIB ARz &H (&)

ARE (&)
RIB-—AF=A=+—AZEENBLAF
Z BRI AR S MR M AT

DIRRIEMB B E 2 R E N R R E
R 2EUREREERNEE -

REBEE/BEBE N ZEUH B QR
HAEEE - £ B MIRBEREE - EEKH
BARIRRA LB 277,784,000t ( = F
— VY4 : E#276,374,0000) B FIZES L
HELRTERAAZERERNER([RER
FIE]) - HEBEFEMN3.0%KEBERTHE
¥REB([BBRITRAERE D MN24%(=ZF
—HF  HEEFE - HEZFEMNI.0%K
BRBITEEREN2.4%)5HE -

MBEEBEBETZEYKFENHEAT
SR BREESEE AR ERE

PRSI 2 R AR 2 IR YA T 5 6
By :

Canadian dollar iy o7
Hong Kong dollar pidins
Renminbi ARHE
Singapore dollar Bk o
US dollar ESS
Others EAfh

The carrying amounts of the amounts due to subsidiaries are
denominated in the following currencies:

2015
—E-HF
HK$'000
BET T
186,280 191,018
4,573,738 3,674,916
218,442 231,434
102,071 119,264
476,308 443,274
20,039 30,611

FEAH B 2 AR 2 R YA THI R
i

Euro B 7
Hong Kong dollar o
Macau Pataca el
US dollar ESiv

The Directors were of the view that as at 31 March 2015, there was no
individual subsidiary that had non-controlling interests that were material
to the Group.

2015 2014
—E-RHE —ZT—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T IT
47,111 60,399
2,928,773 2,371,446
449,166 357,984
6 -

EERA N-ET-HF=A=+-B
AR BT REE A EET S BEA
SRS -
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19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group
&

19 FrEBE AR 2R

The Company
AT
2015
—E-hfF

2014
—Z—mF

Non-current: IERB -
Interests in associates, FTGE & Qa2 e
including goodwill BEENE 657,286 507,344 89,594 89,594
Amounts due from associates FEUES A BIBR 5K
(note b) (Mi3ED) 341,194 242,467 = -
998,480 749,811 89,594 89,594
Current: B
Amounts due from associates FEURES N BIBR 3R
(note b) (Mi3ED) 11,298 318,122 10,375 15,057
Amounts due to associates FEfTEE & A RIBRER
(note b) (FfEb) 29,685 29,372 - -

The movements in the Group's interests in associates during the year are
analysed as follows:

AEBRFAMGBERR ZBEES 2D

ran s

At beginning of the year F4)

Exchange realignment [ 3
Additions NE

Share of results Frib 348

Share of other comprehensive income TG E 2wk
Dividends [N

At end of the year FR

Notes:
(a)  Particulars regarding the principal associates as at 31 March 2015 were set
out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free, except for the
Group's balance of HK$194,668,000 (2014: HK$144,620,000) which bears
interest at rates mutually agreed between relevant parties.

Amounts due from associates of the Group under non-current assets of
HK$242,560,000 (2014: HK$242,467,000) are considered equity in nature and
HK$98,634,000 (2014: nil) are not repayable within one year while amounts
due from/to associates under current assets/liabilities are repayable on
demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from associates under non-current
assets which are not considered equity in nature and amounts due from/to
associates under current assets/liabilities approximate their fair values.
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507,344 560,250

(6,780) (725)

= 78,735

249,406 79,376

= 3,865

(92,684) (214,157)

657,286 507,344

PR -
(a) MRZZE—AFZA=Z+—HAZEEWLRRZ
BRIE SN RE M IRER M FE48 -

(b) MREUEEEARRRAERRALEE  HEREE

2 HEEAEHE194,668,0007T (Z T —PU4E « B
144,620,000 7T ) ¥ 5 B /5 £ R E B R &t

s .
B

BIEREBEEE N2 AEEEWREEQFR
R 5 242,560,000 T ( ZF — M 4F : F K
242,467,000 7T ) % #% A B B R B
98,634,0007C(=ZT— U4 : M) BEN—FH
RAEE  MBRBEE BEENZER
FERTH D RIBRR R BIR R EIE -

B IE BB AR T AR B S e 1 R
ERAREREERDEE BEE N2 ERS
[N E A RRRZ REERE DA ERE
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19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19 FriEBE R Az EzE (8)

Notes: (continued) BT« (88)
(b)  (continued) () (8%
The carrying amounts of amounts due from associates are denominated in the WS A RIBRRZEREBEDA T EE A2
following currencies: fi :
The Group The Company
mEE AAT
2015 2015
—¥—HF ZE-EHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYETT b BET T
Australian dollar JBIT 98,915 901 280 471
Hong Kong dollar A 78,049 338,582 10,095 14,586
Renminbi AR 175,528 221,106 - -

The carrying amount of amounts due to associates are denominated in Hong FEATE N RIBRIR 2 BRIEE T A IS R BN -

Kong dollar.

(c)  Chevalier (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (together, “CHK Group”), Toshiba () E+(EB)BRABDRENBAR(FHHEIEL
Elevator (China) Co., Ltd. (“TCE") and Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. EEEE])  RZEH(FEIERAR(RZE
("STE") have a similar risk profile, are engaged in similar business activities B (PE) )RR ZEBCER)BRQA(R
and related to each other which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material ZTEHCER) ) REURBRRN - ERLUE
to the Group. Set out below is the summarised financial information for HEBRBELZFARE N EERE A
CHK Group, TCE and STE. CHK Group, TCE and STE are engaged in the EEMEBEKN - UWTEHIELEBE S
manufacturing, marketing, installation, repair and maintenance of the lift and CEB(RE) RRZER RS ) 2 B ERE
escalator business and accounted for using equity method. T HIR/BER REEH(PE)LEEE

OB E AR R B RS - & - &
5 MIERIREER - DIEREALR -

FREMBRRRYE

Summarised consolidated statement of financial position

2015
—EB-HF
HK$°000
BYETT
Non-current assets FRBEE 341,089 358,595
Current B
Assets BE 4,247,248 4,230,969
Liabilities aff (3,200,636) (3,314,458)
Net current assets MEBEEFE 1,046,612 916,511
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE (379) -
Net assets EEFE 1,387,322 1,275,106
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

pon = A2 (=
19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 19 FHbEEE NTl 2R (E)
Notes: (continued) BT - (58)
() (continued) © (8
Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive income HETHKNERBE
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT EETIT
Revenue WA 8,204,000 8,017,079
Profit before taxation MR R 424,588 413,655
Income tax expenses FRiSRi (69,214) (83,152)
Profit for the year FE=RR 355,374 330,503
Other comprehensive expenses for the year FEEMEERAY (13,899) (1,107)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZANEEE 341,475 329,396
Dividends received from associates B R R AR S 82,924 75,364
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the consolidated AR R B R RS A M RR AN E 58
financial statements of the associates, adjusted for differences in accounting S8 DR AEEREE A RS BER TR
policies between the Group and the associates. The information above is the ELFAE - EMER DR AR HEYEE S
amount before inter-company eliminations. e
Reconciliation of summarised financial information HHERNBEZHER
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the 25|85 E R Z BT B e A Rl iR 2 R
carrying amount of the interests in associates is provided as follows: HE 2 $ERESINT -

e F
HK$'000
SEETIT
Net assets at beginning of the year FHZEERE 1,275,106 1,144,498
Exchange realignment FE 5 A% - 5,741
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders PR R R A I ) 355,374 330,503
Other comprehensive expenses for the year attributable to R EEFEEEMEERY
shareholders (13,899) (1,107)
Dividends RS (229,259) (204,529)
Net assets at end of the year FRZEERE 1,387,322 1,275,106
Interests in associates* Fik B & A B 2 it 402,849 372,194
Goodwill [GkS 32,795 32,795
Carrying amount at end of the year ERZEEE 435,644 404,989
# As at 31 March 2015, the interests held by the Group in CHK Group, TCE # RZZE—RAF=ZA=+—8 XE£EH»
and STE as associates were 49%, 20% and 20% respectively (2014: RFEHLTHESEE REEH(PEH)
49%, 20% and 20% respectively). ERZEBOER)(HARBMERA)Z

49% ~ 20% }20% (—ZF—M4F : o3l
BE49% ~ 20% K%20% ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

19 FrEBE ATz &R (&)

Notes: (continued) BT« (88)
(d) The aggregate summarised financial information of the Group's associates d ERTEAZAEEREAREHEEREE
that are not individually material is set out below: IR
2015
—E-1F
HK$°000
AT T
The Group's share of results REBATIEEE 129,017 (35,281)
The Group's share of other comprehensive income AEEMEEMEEE - 3,865
The Group's share of total comprehensive REBAMERER (%)
income/(expenses) fekc] 129,017 (31,416)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests in REE PTG S E N RIS 2
these associates 1RARE(E 562,836 344,822
ANER AN
20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 s RE R RS

The Group

FEE

Non-current:

Interests in joint ventures, including goodwill
Amounts due from joint ventures (note b)

Current:
Amounts due from joint ventures (note b)

The movements in the Group's interests in joint ventures during the year

are analysed as follows:

JETRED -
FriEaE ¥ #x - BiEmE 272,066 300,895
B A AR (KIFEDb) 1,238,066 1,206,438
1,510,132 1,507,333
e
Rl A BRI (MFEb) 50 128,799

i -

AEBFENFEARECEZETEE 2O

At beginning of the year
Exchange realignment
Additions

Share of results
Dividends

At end of the year

FH) 300,895 330,083
[ 5 J (76) 5,347
RNE 1,050 -
FTG 24 (28,753) (9,033)
i85 (1,050) (25,502)
FxR 272,066 300,895
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

20 fiibEE ¥ kR (&

The Group (continued) AREE ()
Notes: Bf5E
(a)  Particulars regarding the principal joint ventures as at 31 March 2015 were set (8 M-E—AFE=F=1+—HAKTEL/LEE?
out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements. BERBHNRE T IREM 549 o
(b)  Amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured and bear interest at rates b) RURELCERRAEBRERZERAER
mutually agreed between relevant parties except for the balance of HK$50,000 HBERFIRE B - LB E50,000T (2
(2014: HK$64,000) which is interest-free. —PUeF : E#E64,0007T) BRE.
Amounts due from joint ventures under non-current assets of HK$329,974,000 BIERHEEE T ZRKAEEDERX
(2014: HK$522,253,000) are considered equity in nature and HK$908,092,000 78 #329,974,000 7T ( = & — PO & - B
(2014: HK$684,185,000) are not repayable within one year while amounts due 522,253,000 7T ) # 1R & B w1 kOB
from joint ventures under current assets are repayable on demand. # 908,092,000 Tt ( — T — [ F : B ¥
684,185,0007T ) B/ARN —FHRAEE - M8
MBEEE T 2 EWE ERERFRAIRERE
8o
The carrying amounts of amounts due from joint ventures under non-current BIERBEEE MR AT 2 RS
assets which are not considered equity in nature and amounts due from joint ENERFILBREEEBE N2 RIS EDE
ventures under current assets approximate their fair values. R ERERE QAR ERS -
The carrying amounts of amounts due from joint ventures are denominated in WAL PERRZEREEA T EEAE
the following currencies: fiL -
2015 2014
—Z-8F —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Hong Kong dollar B 710,308 861,381
Renminbi AR 527,808 473,856
(c) Setout below is the summarised financial information for B ZRE + E HhE TR ) EBERAKRBELEMELRERATYHAE
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ABR A 7], which, in the opinion of the Directors, is material to the Group. This
joint venture is engaged in the property development business and accounted
for using the equity method.

Summarised consolidated statement of financial position

EfMEEEXN  HMBEHBEERATHRY -
A EPENEMEERED - EREDAA
AE o

FEBBRREBE

Non-current assets FRBEE
Current RE
Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Net current assets MBEEFE
Net assets EEFE

3,987 4,379
1,396,913 1,493,724
(1,045,454) (1,086,527)
351,459 407,197
355,446 411,576




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 20 it t¥ v ER(E)
The Group (continued) REE ()
Notes: (continued) BiEE - (48)
() (continued) ) (&)
Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive income FEEZERZRYE
2014
—T—mF
HK$'000
BEETIT
Revenue WA 52,584 55,198
Loss before taxation KRR (55,973) (23,568)
Income tax expenses Fr{SHisz = -
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FEEmBAXAE (55,973) (23,568)
Dividend received from a joint venture Bl—HEETERS = -
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the consolidated il AR RREEPEREMBHREANZIE
financial statements of the joint venture, adjusted for differences in accounting TR DHASEERAEMCEGIBERTRM
policies between the Group and the joint venture. PEH A% -
Reconciliation of summarised financial information MEENSECHE
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the FRFIMBERBZEEaEbERR 2K
carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture is provided as follows: HEZHRSHINAT -
2015
—E-HF
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets at beginning of the year FENZEESE 411,576 431,476
Exchange realignment M H A% (157) 3,668
Loss for the year attributable to shareholders R B (L E R (55,973) (23,568)
Net assets at end of the year ERZEERE 355,446 411,576
Interest in a joint venture (49%) Frib—f& &% 2 #am(49%) 174,168 201,672
Goodwill wmE 45 45
Interest in a joint venture, including goodwill, FRZME—EEaE ¥R
at end of the year (BEEE) 174,213 201,717
Amount due from a joint venture at beginning of the year FYzER—TEAEERR 462,208 249,638
Net movement #E)FE 204,583 212,570
Amount due from a joint venture at end of the year FRZER—THALEDERR 666,791 462,208
Carrying amount at end of the year FERZREE 841,004 663,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 20 it ¥ iER(E)
The Group (continued) REBE(E)
Notes: (continued) BEE - (48)
(d)  The aggregate summarised financial information of the Group's joint ventures (d) AR TEAZAEBRSL XA EREE
that are not individually material is set out below: o
2014
—T-lEF
HK$'000
Viok: o e
The Group's share of total comprehensive AEBEEE(BIX), WS
(expenses)/income 1eEE (1,326) 2,515
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests REBAEIEREOERD Y
in these joint ventures HBERMEE 669,128 843,408
(e) Charges were created on interest in a joint venture with a total carrying (e) BRMEAREASM174,213,0007C(=ZF— WM : /&
amount of HK$174,213,000 (2014: HK$201,717,000) for the purpose of #201,717,00070) Z Fiib —fE & & ¥ 2
securing banking facilities granted to the Group and a joint venture partner. DERE  EARTAEEN —ZEEER
HRITEE 2R -
21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21 HEEZRE
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-HF —ZT-WmFE —B-HF —T-MmOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR  OBETT  BTR B%To
Listed investment, at fair value: ETRE - RARE:
— equity securities listed —8HN ETH2 RARFE
overseas (note a) (FffzEa) 25,627 29,900 - -

Unlisted investments, at fair values: JELFI8%E « IRARE ¢

— equity securities BN 7,750 11,640 - 3,880

— private funds (note b) —FEES (Mizb) 167,715 214,093 167,715 214,093
— convertible preference — AIBEIRE ST AR

shares (note c) (B 5EC) - 200,408 - -

175,465 426,141 167,715 217,973

201,092 456,041 167,715 217,973
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 21 HHEZRE(E)
The carrying value of available-for-sale investments are denominated in AIHEZREZERABIIA T ES A8
the following currencies: i :
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—B-Hf —T-WF —B-HF =T @OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T

Australian dollar SEIT - 200,408 - -

Euro R ZE 11,852 24,851 11,852 24,851

US dollar EiW 152,305 183,389 144,555 175,629

Vietnam Dong WA 25,627 29,900 - -

Others EHih 11,308 17,493 11,308 17,493

201,092 456,041 167,715 217,973

Notes: B 5T

(a)  The fair value of the listed investment of the Group is determined based on (a) AEELEMREZANRBEIZEBRSFFTH
the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchange. ZTHEANBETE -

(b) The fair values of the private funds of the Group and the Company are (o) AEBERAARZABECZAABNEER
primarily determined based on the quoted market prices of the underlying LM E IS MEETE
listed investments.

(c) The fair value of the convertible preference shares of the Group has made (©) AEEERERBRZARBINEEBILA?
reference to the assessment by Knight Frank Asset Appraisal Limited, an BEHERIT R B EHE B R A B 25z KR
independent firm of qualified valuers, and based on the discounted cash BRRB e RERA KA EHIMREERARE
flow model and fair value less cost to sell model. The models use post-tax NErE - BEENHEAEEEiZ 2 MEH
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management BIEE 2 BREE I &2 T8 K& 13% /LI F
covering four-year period and a 13% discount rate per annum. Ko
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22 BEPYE
The Group AEE
2015
—E-A5F
HK$°000
BT T
At beginning of the year F4) 1,168,207 914,543
Exchange realignment M 5 - 7,293
Additions nNE 244,618 246,371
At end of the year FR 1,412,825 1,168,207
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MHmERBRIWA -
Non-current assets EREEE 789,476 757,459
Current assets TRENEE 623,349 410,748
1,412,825 1,168,207

The balance is related to a property development project in Changchun,
Mainland China.

The borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development is
disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant project is expected to complete

beyond normal operating cycle. The amount classified as non-current
assets was not expected to be realised within the next twelve months.

23 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The Group

23

ZAESEPEANERED - BYEERIER
B -

BRPMEENCZ BRRAREGE BT
FHUI TSI -

FREDEHSERRDEE - RIEWE
B > A BRI E R B AL -
BEAFRDEEY BB T EAKK
+=EANER -

Rt RBEE
AR

2015
—E-R5F

HK$'000
BETT

Deposits paid for a property

development project (note a)
Amounts due from related parties (note b)
Other deposits and receivables

BEN—IEMERRIER 2

=& (Mista) 87,215 70,233
fE ERE A+ 2 5O (M7Eb) - 19,725
E A1z e R FEWGRIE 66,954 43,901

154,169 133,859

Notes:
(a) The balance represents deposits paid for a property development project in
Changchun, Mainland China.

(b)  The amounts were secured, interest bearing at rates mutually agreed between
relevant parties and not repayable within one year.

The carrying amounts of other receivables as at 31 March 2015 and 2014
were mainly denominated in Renminbi and US dollar and approximated
their fair values as the impact of discounting was insignificant.

Charges were created on the other non-current assets with total carrying

value of HK$21,826,000 (2014: nil) for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group.

126 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

PfeE
(@) FEHRTENMEED AMERREARZ
BEfNERE -

(b) ZEWAEEM « BAAMFHES FIET R
BRI -

RZZ-—RAFR-Z-—NEF=A=+—8"
Hip g a2 REETBEAARERET
REMEARFRZEMEL R A ERE -

BR TE] 48 (B 75 521,826,000 7T ( — B — PO 4F
) HMIERBEECERIF - (EARTR
EERITEEZER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed investments:
Held for trading
— debt securities
— equity securities listed in
Hong Kong
— equity securities listed overseas
— exchange-traded funds
— mutual and hedge funds

Unlisted investments:
Held for trading
— debt securities
— equity linked notes
— mutual and hedge funds
Designated upon initial recognition
— debt securities

LHRERE :
FFEEEHE
— B

— BB LM ZBAE S
— BN LT BRARTES

—RGEEES

—HEEREHES

JFELMHRE :
HHEE B
—EES
— RN
—HEERMTES
PGSBS BHE
—EBES

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

24 BARBEINEREEBEZRE

The Group
rEE
2015

The Company
/N
2015
—E-HF
HK$'000
BT T

—E-0F
HK$'000
BET T

HK$'000
BT T

129,890 167,279 = -
65,195 66,059 30,756 32,966
11,746 3,815 - -

592 630 592 630
1,378 1,404 = -
208,801 239,237 31,348 33,646
40,661 33,283 - _
7,816 - - -
75,382 15,387 107 207
31,674 32,825 - -
155,533 81,495 107 207
364,334 320,732 31,455 33,853

The fair values of the listed investments of the Group and the Company
are determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on the
relevant exchanges and the unlisted investments of the Group and the
Company are determined based on financial models or with reference to
quoted prices from relevant financial institutions.

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or loss
are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBRARBZ LHREZAREBETIRE
MRSz TS ENEMEE - MAE
E R ARNTZIEETREZ AR BT
BT - HSERE MM TRIBEZRE -

BRARBEIABRGRERIE ZRE 2 REETIIA
TINEEREL

The Group The Company
rEE AT

2015 2014 2015

—§-HE —T-NF —®-EHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BNTR  OEMTR BETx
Hong Kong dollar oo 65,195 71,078 30,756 32,966
Japanese Yen H 11,756 3,815 - -
Renminbi AR 7,816 - - -
US dollar E 279,567 245,839 699 887
364,334 320,732 31,455 33,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

25

26
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INVENTORIES

The Group

25

Raw materials =R
Finished goods 2K h
Consumables ERYR

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of
sales amounted to HK$712,543,000 (2014: HK$747,930,000).

Charges were created on the inventories with total carrying value of
HK$22,983,000 (2014: HK$28,613,000) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.

PROPERTIES FOR SALE

The Group

26

BFE
AEE
2015
—E-hfF
HK$'000
BETFT
86,990 12,034
65,802 155,397
2,011 2,075
154,803 169,506

ERRAEIHIIAEEXE 2 FERR
HPE 712,543,000 (= F — O 4F : B
747,930,0007T) °

BRI 48 {E /5 122,983,0007C( T —P04 : &

#28,613,00070) < FEEFEMR - ERET
AEBRITEEZER -

HEUE
A%

Unamortised prepaid land leases REHTEN LR E
— Hong Kong — &5
— Mainland China and overseas — B A KN
Development costs BRKA

Properties for sale included the Group's share of joint operation with an
aggregate book value of HK$18,129,000 (2014: HK$18,129,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$10,441,000 (2014: HK$2,580,000).

17,766 26,532

7,581 7,581
19,020 20,695
44,367 54,808

FEYERIERMEEAE%18,129,0007T
(ZZ—PO4 : #%#18,129,0007T) 2 ANEE
G & &8E -

EEWIABEERRNZWERRN BB
10,441,00070 ( = Z — U4 : ##2,5680,000
JL) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

27 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 27 BWERR - FHEERANSTE
The Group The Company
rEER PN
2015 2014 2015
—E—-RfF —ZT—mEF —E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT
Trade debtors B 5 RUERK 669,863 495,804 = -
Less: Provision for impairment W ORERE (24,686) (19,920) - -
Trade debtors, net SRR - F58 645,177 475,884 = -
Retention receivables FEMUREE RIE 262,502 204,516 = -
Less: Provision for impairment T R E R (33,570) (33,570) - -
Retention receivables, net JEREBFIB - (B 228,932 170,946 - -
Other debtors, deposits and EAb AR - TR
prepayments LI FRIE 361,617 378,690 4,299 3,181
1,235,726 1,025,520 4,299 3,181

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each
of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade debtors
is 60 days, except for insurance business where credit period granted to
certain debtors is over 60 days.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade debtors is as follows:

AEBUSERLOEBEPERITRZE
EBRE- - TEHEP ZFHEERR60
RERTREEB A TEPHNEEHE
#BBOK °

REEE SRR 2 REDITAT

0 -60 days 0-60X
61 -90 days 61-90K
Over 90 days #90K

2015
—E-0F
HK$'000
BETT
501,743 296,405
38,642 23,264
104,792 156,215
645,177 475,884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

27 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 27 BUWRR - EHEZESRAARE(E)
REEMBR#ERS 2 E FHEUERRBLEH
& BB 45,629,0000 (Z T —UF « B
40,554,0007T) * EERIEE T A% TIRIE °
BEBE 2 BEEEKRE DS ILEL
BoREY N-ET-—hE=A=+—HA®ER
15 BRI E B 5 A8 524,686,000 T ( —Z— Y
fF : 8%19,920,0007T) » AEEI EH LS
EHFEAAERER  c FRREREZZH

Gross trade debtors balances totaling HK$45,629,000 (2014:
HK$40,554,000) were individually determined to be impaired, which
were related to customers that were in financial difficulties. The
management assessed that only a portion of these balances was
expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific provision for
impairment of HK$24,686,000 was recognised as at 31 March 2015
(2014: HK$19,920,000). The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances. The movement in the provision for impairment during the year is

as follows: JIENE
2014

—T—NFE

HK$'000

PSR

At beginning of the year F1) 19,920 18,450
Exchange realignment P& H A% (118) (16)
Impairment loss recognised BRERREEE 11,251 6,476
Impairment loss written back BRI EEE (88) (3,754)
Uncollectable amounts written off MESET AT E 2 S 58 (6,279) (1,236)
At end of the year FR 24,686 19,920

TERAEK T RIEZE S BUERRZ BRI DT

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be

impaired is as follows:

wmr

Neither past due nor impaired I e HA SR (B 212,584 246,702
Up to 60 days past due FEIEEIGTOPNIN 383,567 189,207
61 - 90 days past due #8361 - 90K 18,614 13,945
Over 90 days past due #1190 K 9,469 5,396
Amount past due but not impaired BEEEERBE 411,650 208,548
Total Rk 624,234 455,250

Trade debtors balances that are past due but not impaired mainly relate
to individuals or companies that have been the Group's customers for
more than six months with no history of default in the past.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade debtors are denominated in
the following currencies:

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

27 BWERR - FHERERACTRE(H)

REEEZRURRZREETIA TGS
REN

Australian dollar SBRIT
Hong Kong dollar peedis
Macau Pataca SRPYEE
Renminbi AREE
US dollar e
Others Efth

Retention receivables amounted to HK$33,570,000 (2014:
HK$33,570,000) were individually determined to be impaired, on which
the Group experienced unexpected difficulties during the collection
process from the customers. The management assessed that the balance
was not expected to be recovered and full provision for impairment loss
was recognised.

The carrying amounts of retention receivables and other debtors as at 31
March 2015 and 2014 were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi.

The carrying amounts of debtors and receivables as at 31 March 2015
and 2014 approximated their fair values.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments was the Group's share
of receivables of HK$785,000 (2014: HK$684,000) in relation to joint
operation.

Charges were created on the debtors, deposits and prepayments with
total carrying value of HK$49,204,000 (2014: HK$52,758,000) for the
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

2015
—E—REF
HK$'000
BRET T
12,441 4,123
519,219 385,809
37,926 20,432
13,888 7,565
43,261 40,794
18,442 17,161
645,177 475,884

JE U 4R B8 XA 7B #533,670,000 7 ( —ZF — 1Y
F : ##33,570,0007T) EERIEETE BT
BE HASEERARFRERERBEFE
FERZIINRE - RERE 2 G 0 TEH
KAWL Bl 45 R B SR AR EESE -

W-F-AFR-—F-ME=A=+—F
AR (R B RE R S R 2 R

LABRE R ARBREN -
RZE-—RAFRZZT-—OF=A=+—H"
FE MG BR SR FE W R R 2 BRI E B L~ 72 (B4R
o

ERER FHiEe REMNKEANEBEAR
EERBAEEEEREZEIEER - BB
#785,0007T( == — P4 : ##684,0007T) °

BREI4A B8 1£49,204,0007T( — B —M04 : 6
#52,758,0007T) Z FEM R « TF ik & kT8
NHREEEER  EARTAKERITEE
ZHER o
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RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

28 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT 28 RANIREARFKRE, I 2H%

WORK 15
The Group TEE
2015
—E-AfF
HK$°000
BYETT
Contracts in progress at end of the year: RERZELHEL -
Contract costs incurred BELEZELRAE 8,057,470 6,800,891
Recognised net gains B R TR 229,494 38,665
8,286,964 6,839,456
Less: Progress billings T HEEROE (9,105,012) (7,217,211)
(818,048) (377,755)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RB|ERBEINA -
Amounts due from customers for contract work B BIEFIREIEE NS X T2 M
included in current assets BEWELZ 5 133,437 171,754
Amounts due to customers for contract work BEERERRBAEARE QO IIRER
included in current liabilities BEXZ5E (951,485) (549,509)
(818,048) (377,755)
Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to ALY ITRWBREEBEMNR A K
HK$37,517,000 (2014: HK$17,500,000) are included in creditors. 37,517,00070( =& — U4 : %%17,500,000
TL) ERIERERERFNA ©
29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29 FTHEMBIA

The Group The Company
AEH ARAF
2015 2014 2015 2014

—$-EF -T NF =—¥-FF -T |NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFR  ANTT  BETR ARTR

Financial assets/(liabilities) in respect #TABF T A
of derivative financial instruments MHEE/(BE)

— interest rate swap contracts — MR EAE 4 (Ff5Ta)
(note a) (4,677) 1,082 (4,677) 1,082

— foreign currency forward contracts  — & BRSNE S 49 (M)
(note b) 4,650 (4,141) = -
— call option (note ¢) — R HARE (Bt sEc) 18,073 - - -
- others —HAh - 6,307 - -
18,046 3,248 (4,677) 1,082

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  StERERE DT A ¢

Non-current assets IERBEE 18,073 - - -
Current assets TRENEE 13,220 10,342 - 1,082
Current liabilities mEBAE (13,247) (7,094) (4,677) -
18,046 3,248 (4,677) 1,082

132 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The

derivatives are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period. Their fair values are determined with reference to fair values
of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices from
counterparties. The net carrying amounts of derivatives are denominated
in the following currencies:

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

29 PTHEMBTA(E)

TETAREREWRRZARENE - 1TE
TEZAREDREAHERTAZmS A
REXETWEMTE - TETAZREF
BETATIEE REAL -

The Group The Company
REE RAT
2015 2014 2015
—B-RE —TEF —E-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BET T BT T BT T
Australian dollar SEIT 13,200 (7,034) - -
Euro B (7,768) 2,460 - -
Hong Kong dollar peedins (4,677) 7,389 (4,677) 1,082
US dollar E 18,073 - - -
Others EAfh (782) 433 - -
18,046 3,248 (4,677) 1,082
Notes: B 5T
(a) Interest rate swap contracts of the Group and the Company with a total (a) AEBRARDBAEZEF R REER=E
notional amount of HK$1,600,000,000 (2014: HK$800,000,000) were entered A TRIFENFIEM 2 R BmaT LR R B E
to swap floating interest rate to fixed interest rate or to swap between 4 HiEZE % AB%1,600,000,0007T(=
different floating rates. These contracts will mature within the period from 29 T4 : 75¥800,000,0007T) ° HEFE KIS
September 2015 to 10 October 2018 (2014: at 29 September 2015). BRZZ—AFNAZtTHBE=ZT—N\F+
A+HBEN(ZZE—IF : RZZ—HFh
AZ+NH)ZIE -
(b)  Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group and the Company with a total (o) AEBRADEFGTRING I E R E AR
notional amount up to HK$362,815,000 (2014: HK$367,532,000) were entered XEEMILRBINESY  HBRRESE
to swap various foreign currencies to other cross currencies. These contracts 5% 362,815,000 L (=T — M4 : B
will mature within the period from 1 April 2015 to 16 June 2017 (2014: period 367,532,0007T) ° WEAKHBR T —AHFM
from 8 April 2014 to 16 June 2017). A—BEZE=ZZ—+FRATABHERN(ZE
—NF R ZE-NFNANBE=T—tF
NATRAEEER) R -
(c) The fair value of the call option was assessed at HK$26,045,000 at the date ) RBEHEARFEAR-_Z—AE=ZF=1+—

of grant and HK$18,073,000 as at 31 March 2015 (the “Valuation Date"). This
resulted in a fair value loss of HK$7,972,000 included under other income, net
of the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 March 2015, the fair value
was assessed by Knight Frank Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
qualified valuers, using a number of valuation techniques, including discounted
cash flow analysis, binominal option pricing and liquidation preference pricing
models. The significant inputs into the model included the value of the equity
interest at the Valuation Date, exercise price, expected life of the option,
annual risk-free rate and expected volatility which was based on the statistical
analysis of volatility of weekly share prices of comparable companies over the
last three years before the Valuation Date.

BEEB Z2ARED BT ZAEE
26,045,000 7T % 7% ¥ 18,073,000 7T + # M 3
BMARERBIEBAT,972,0007 Tt A A S
REEMBA - FEET - RZT—AF=A
=t+—RAZARBETIREBEN A BETEERITR
YEETEARARCEABBRESRESN
AR TEREEELARTEEXNESLE
FHER IR o ZIER 2 E ZHAZUERIES
BERAMREEE - 1TEE - HREtER - F
EERRERIEERIE - BHIRIEBARIE L
RARNEERN=FENERARERESRTD
MRk -
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RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

30 BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank deposits
with original maturities over three months, short-term bank deposits with
original maturities of three months or less and cash placed with financial
institutions. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair

TATEMENTS

30 RITEERRE

RIOTEEFEMRSBEMBERES - RGN
BB =1(8 7 2 BARITIFR - RE DAY
R A={EA K ARZ5E BRITI7 R EFE AR
BRBZRE WUFEECKREERAAR

AN

values. VERiEE=S
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
=F-HE —TMF ZE-HFE —ZT-0OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT BT
Bank balances and cash RITHEF RS 2,662,622 1,200,835 324,039 185,712
Less: Short-term bank deposits A —(EREEE 5 ER
maturing after three months RITHER (210,179) - = -
2,452,443 1,200,835 324,039 185,712

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in the

RITAEFIREZREENATIEE RE

following currencies: fir
The Group The Company
AEH PN

2015 2014 2015 2014
—EF-RHF —TMmMF ZEB-RHF —T-OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFR  BETT B%TR BN TR
Australian dollar BT 30,780 19,417 1,263 1,221
Canadian dollar hEXT 19,434 25,856 2 102
Euro A7 12,448 4,581 8,196 3
Hong Kong dollar i 1,922,664 504,340 112,459 72,553
Macau Pataca B P ik 32,597 17,806 - -
Renminbi AR 289,048 304,626 35,150 58,760
Singapore dollar N oT 10,255 7,869 221 21
US dollar =7 319,834 291,968 164,517 46,514
Others HAph 25,562 24,372 2,231 6,538
2,662,622 1,200,835 324,039 185,712

The Group's bank balances of HK$143,565,000 (2014: HK$199,673,000)
were pledged to banks for the purpose of securing banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The effective interest rates on short-term bank deposits of the Group and
the Company were 1.0% and 1.2% (2014: 1.6% and 2.0%) per annum
respectively; and these deposits had an average maturity of 22 days and
13 days (2014: 20 days and 23 days) respectively.

Bank balances and cash of HK$124,084,000 (2014: HK$113,434,000)
were held in Mainland China and are subject to local exchange control
regulations, under which the balances could not be exported freely out
of Mainland China. The repatriation of funds out of Mainland China is
possibly conducted by way of dividends or other means as complied to
the regulations.
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AEE 2 RITH T8 143,665,00070( = F
— P04 ¢ #%199,673,0007T) B I F iR
17 EARTAEERITEEZER -

REBEARNRZEBBITERZERFER
KRR AE1.0%KM12%(ZZF—MN4F : 1.6% %
2.0%) ' WEFRZFHRBHB DR A22K
F13KR(ZZF—UEF : 200K &23K) °

BAERTPBERAMZRITEGFTRRSE
® 124,084,000 L ( —= T — W F : H#&
113,434,000t ) E B A8 & b SN E & HHH E -
Bt - WEEFTESEHELREAM - &
SAE B B EAE TR E 2 A AR
B A o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

31 BNRY - BARE - FARERE

RER
The Group The Company
REH RAFE

2015 2014 2015

—E-hF — PO —E-HE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T BT T
Trade creditors and bills payable & 5 E BRI N B =i 249,154 213,510 = -
Deposits received EH&ZT?\EZ% 649,585 391,113 24 24
Retention payables JERRBB AR 113,679 106,039 - -
Accrued contract costs FBIRA ,%’szak 84,221 121,544 - -
Other creditors and accruals Hib MR L TBIRE A 360,058 382,363 3,359 5,330
1,456,697 1,214,569 3,383 5,354

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade creditors and bills payable is as
follows:

R EE 5N R RN R RS
mF -

0-60 days 0-60X
- 90 days 61 -90X
Over 90 days #90K

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable are
denominated in the following currencies:

223,334 193,294
9,502 4,944
16,318 15,272
249,154 213,510

AEE 7 EFHRNRRRENE R REE
TIATINEE BB

Hong Kong dollar B
Macau Pataca SERPYHE
US dollar EViv
Others Efth

The carrying amounts of retention payables and other creditors as at 31
March 2015 and 2014 were denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The carrying amounts of creditors and payables as at 31 March 2015 and
2014 approximated their fair values.

Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals are the Group's
share of liabilities of HK$776,000 (2014: HK$547,000) in relation to joint
operation.

2015

—E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
204,141 162,125
9,963 18,068
21,124 20,100
13,926 13,217
249,154 213,510

R-E—AFER-_T-—NFEF=ZA=1+—8H"
FEHRBRIE R E A B BR R 2 BREE S
BB -

RZE—RAFR=F =A=+—8"
%ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁmﬁZ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&f@ﬁ

= o

AR ERNEE  TARSRBIRER
NE BEAET776,000L(ZF—UF : B
547,00070) AR EE G BEE L EME 2
BfE -
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)

B RS R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2015

E/tT

32

—hF=A=t—HLLFE

OUTSTANDING INSURANCE CLAIMS

Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually settled

32 RRREBRE

TOEBERN 2RBRRE-—RTE—FRLE

within one year: B

- Employee compensation — [EBEE

- Motor third party liability - AEFE=HEAME
—  Public liability - RAREE

The claims development, net of reinsurance, are disclosed as follows:

2009
“REAE

HK$'000
AR

2011

—E—-&
HK$'000
/Em:FE

fREER(IGRERR)EENT

2012
-8z

HK$'000
BRFL

2014
=e-ng
HK$'000
#8T7

Estimate of cumulative claims {3t 251 R (E
At end of accident year BINFRLER 88,767 39,675 57,615 87,099 131,582 155,800 175,730 161,549
One year later —&% 84,866 50,541 57,145 54,009 105,091 122,921 139,004 -
Two years later M 55,268 45,852 52,207 67,192 113384 137,083 - -
Three years later =Fi 44,324 40,146 46,556 63,648 91,456 - - -
Four years later Mm% 44418 38,954 43356 62,724 - - - -
Five years later hE% 45,708 39,814 42,636 - - - - -
Six years later NEf% 46,140 40,427 - - - - - -
Seven years later 5% 46,952 - - - - - - -
Cumulative claims ZEHEE 46,952 40427 42,636 62,724 91456 137,083 139,004 161,549 721,801
Less: Cumulative payments 5, : Z3tEHZE (45572) (38675 (40755  (53436)  (66,281)  (57.268)  (31.214) (12552 (345,753
Claims outstanding at RZE-1F
31 March 2015 =A=t-Hz
FRRE 1,380 1,752 1,881 9,288 25,175 79,785 107,790 148,997 376,048
Claims outstanding at etk
31 March 2014 ZA=t-Hz
ARZE 1427 1,723 3,499 24,062 66,507 90,756 180,363 - 368,327
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will 1%?;% WIBT 2R TEEDRREGZR

occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resulting
claim. The principal risk the Group faces under such contracts is that
the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of
insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity
of claims, actual benefits paid which are greater than originally estimated
and subsequent development of long tail claims.

The Group manages its insurance risk through underwriting limits,

CBESBEITREEERREMNALES
Z?%ETFEJ AEBERBLEEEAEE 2
ZRBAERRENBENESEBARREE
BREE - WHREREEE  REKRER
38 *%*ﬁtﬂjﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ{é?@ﬂ%@ﬁ
BREFE

REBBBEGIAREE - BIEESHFER

approval procedures for transactions that involve new products or HBHRBEXHZEHEF uT_LE{E?a
that exceed set limits, pricing guidelines, centralised management of gl « &£ E.ES'@_@{%KA HE R 3 e BE P R REL A
reinsurance and monitoring of emerging issues. EEHERRER

The Group manages the variability of risks by careful selection and the REBEBZEATHREERER S8 T4

implementation of underwriting strategies, arrangements of reinsurance, BEEREHEAREE  THSR - BRERE
strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims as well as REBEAT BT RISBEEZRE
the investigation of possible fraudulent claims. The Group also enforces ANAEE G R $%l7]‘,aﬁ

a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing of claims, in order
to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can
negatively impact the Group.

ﬁ’@ BN BN B IR RAR 2 K - DA
¥T$E@LWTH%%ZTT?E%@9EX§§
EZEH&@"

The Group's underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced REE 2 ERER ABERK—EH B &
portfolio and is based on a large portfolio of similar risks over a number of HEREZLZFREF —EAHRZELURR

years and, as such, reduces the variability of the outcome.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

33 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 33 RITREMER
The Group The Company
rEER RAT
2015 2014 2015
—E—-RfF —ZT—mEF “E-AfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T BT
Bank and other borrowings are RIT R EME K
repayable as follows: BRI
Within one year —FR 589,848 653,968 98,675 52,000
More than 1 year but not —F U HERBBRE
exceeding 2 years 823,266 1,832,176 256,008 1,496,375
More than 2 years but not MELA HETBBAT
exceeding 5 years 1,258,047 748,865 1,146,730 9,000
Exceeding 5 years HBBRF 856,967 832,046 - -

3,628,128 4,067,055 1,501,413 1,657,375

Less: Amount due within one year 5 : fEREN B ERNIRE

disclosed under current WR—FREIH]
liabilities ZER (589,848) (653,968) (98,675) (52,000)
2,938,280 3,413,087 1,402,738 1,605,375
Represented by: 255 :
Secured BHEMA 1,962,295 2,378,120 11,000 13,000
Unsecured A 1,565,833 1,688,935 1,490,413 1,544,375
3,528,128 4,067,055 1,501,413 1,657,375
The carrying values of bank and other borrowings approximate their fair ERBOERTIOFEFREHE - RITRE
values as majority of the borrowings carried interest at floating rate. The MiER s FEEREAAERE - BRITRE
bank and other borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: MERTIA TS E® BB
The Group The Company
rER A TF]
2015 2014 2015 2014
—ET-EfF —ZT M —T-EF —T U
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT BYETT ;
Canadian dollar nEART 22,486 28,347 - -
Hong Kong dollar it 2,534,332 2,919,706 1,501,413 1,557,375
Renminbi ARHE 94,375 162,875 - -
US dollar ETT 876,935 956,127 - -

3,528,128 4,067,055 1,501,413 1,657,375
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RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

33 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 33 RITRAEMWER(E)

R=ZA=+—R  |RITKEGERZERSF
MZWT

The effective interest rates per annum of the bank and other borrowings
as at 31 March were as follows:

The Group The Company
rEER PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RE —T s —E-RF —Z—F
Canadian dollar meXxx 2.3% 2.3% - -
Hong Kong dollar s 2.3% 2.2% 2.8% 2.6%
Renminbi AR 5.9% 5.9% = -
US dollar X7 4.2% 4.5% - -
Bank and other borrowings of HK$1,962,295,000 (2014: HK$2,378,120,000) SR 1T R E Ath {8 308 61,962,295,000 T (= F
were secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes — P4« A ¥2,378,120,0007T) T A AR £ [
14,15, 20, 23, 25, 27 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements. BEEER  RNREMBmEMFE14 15
2023+ 25 2730 o
34 SHARE CAPITAL 34 B

Number of
shares

R EE

Share capital

Ordinary shares of HK$1.25 each
Authorised:

At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and
31 March 2015

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 2014
Issue of shares under scrip dividend schemes

At 31 March 2015

At 1 April 2013
Issue of shares under scrip dividend schemes

At 31 March 2014

SRAESH1.257T 2 EBR
BERA
R-T—=FmA—A -
“ET-mF=ZA=+-ARK
~F-BF=A=t+-A
BRITRARKRAE

RZZE—NFMA—AH
RIE AR B 5B TR D

R-ZZE—hRF=A=+—H
R-ZE—=FmA—H
RARARRA B AT BB TR 1D

R-Z-OFE=A=+—H
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540,000,000 675,000
292,874,003 366,093
7,116,832 8,896
299,990,835 374,989
281,386,811 351,734
11,487,192 14,359
292,874,003 366,093




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

35 RESERVES 35 f&iE

The Group AEE

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARAREREAELRR

Capital Investment Other assets Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation revaluation Hedging Other  fluctuation  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BARE  REET  HftEE AE#

RhEE A4k ffe i EfEE  HMEE  BMER  SERE REE aH
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
AhTn  ESTR ARTn  BRTx RWTR BETn ARTR BRfn ARTR AR

(note)
(=)
At1 April 2014 R-E-mEBA-A 597,284 364,057 8785 57,658 598,351 (364) 1,057 494063 4127247 6,248,138
Profitfor the year ERigA - - - - - - - - 1537062 1537162
Change in fair value of properties & Y2 A EEE)
for own use - - - - (4,144) - - - 4144 -
Exchange difference on HERMNIBLT

translation of operations of BELNRRAELE
overseas subsidiaries, associates 7 EHFEL L

and joint ventures INEHAES S - - - - - - (91617) ) 191617
Change in fair value of avallable-  ATELHE 2 RER)
for-sale investments MrfEES = - - (28365 - - - } - (A

Impairment loss on availablefor- &L HE 2 RE

sale investments transferred to ~ #)EEE

consolidated income statement  EEZR4

WEE - - - 44,685 - o = - - 44,685

Fairvalue adjustments on the  #EE AR 4R Hine

derivative financialinstruments (7B TAEH

designated as cash flowhedge |4

inrespect of interest rate swap 7 BB

contracts - - - - - (1431) - - = (1437)
Total comprehensive FEE2ENEEE
income for the year - - - 16,320 (4,144) (1,437) - (91,617) 1541306 1,460,428
Dividends paid BfifRE - = = = - - - - (d9171)  (49770)
Issue of shares under scrip REBRR S5
dividend schemes Bkl 82,930 - - - - - - - - 82,930
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAA - - - - (27,496) - - - - (27,49)
Deemed disposals of interests in B BHEE I
subsidiaries DAl R - 39 - - - - - - - 39
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1F
=A=t-H 680,214 364,096 8,785 13978 566,711 (1,801) 1,057 402446 5418776 7514262
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RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

35 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 35 #E(E)
The Group (continued) REBE(E)

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
ArIRERE AR

Capital  Investment ~ Other assets Exchange
Share Capital ~ redemption  revaluation  revaluation Hedging Other  fluctuation Retained
premium reserve Tesere reserve feserve reserve reserve reserve

I ik
E EAGHE : i B HRGE At RE RZEM
HKS! 000 i [ HK$'000 { HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 & ‘ BB i ; BETT BETT BETTL BETTL

At April 2013 RIT-ZENA-B 453832 363,480 8,785 2,718 210890 4 - 510462 3897817 5469,085

Profitfor the year EFER - - - - - - - - 4039 470369
Fair value surplus of properties ~ EAZRENER
upon transfer to investment M%7 AAfE

propertes B% - - - - 33,540 - - - - 33540
Fair value surplus of properties  BEIE A ERS

for own use - - - - 349,790 - - - - 349,790
Release upon disposal of a RHE-EERNFEA

property for own use #h - - - - (123 - - - 123
Share of reserves of an Frit—TsE TR

associate Gﬂ% - - - - 4,254 (1 ,446) 1 ,057 - - 3,865
Exchange difference on HERIHELR

translation of operations of 5%%’2\ Méﬁ%

overseas subsidiaries, LERFELINE

associates and joint ventures  HEESE - - - - - - - (16:399) - (16.3%9)
Change in fair value of available- P HE & 747H)

for-sale investments MEZE - - - 23,348 - - - - - 2338

Impaiment loss on available-or- A4 HE 7474H)

sale invesiments transferred o~ JHEBEEER

consolidated income statement  £2A MR - - - 10532 - - - - - 10532
Fairvalue adjustmentsonthe £ AB &SRt

derivative financial instruments (7B TAEH

designated as cash flow hedge 7|34 4

in respect of interest rate swap ~ Af {EFE

contracts - - - - - 1,041 - B N 1041

Total comprehensive income ~~ FE2ANGER

for the year - - - 33,880 387,461 (405) 1,057 (16,399) 470,369 875,963
Dividends paid EffiRE - - - - - - - - (240939) (240,939
Issue of shares underscrip ~ IRIEMRIEEEE

dividend schemes BRG 143452 - - - - - - - - 143,452
Deemed disposals of interestsin 8 A EFEHE

subsidiaries NEZER - 577 - - - - - - - 577
At 31 March 2014 RZF-ME

=A=t-A 597,284 364,057 8,785 57,658 598,351 (364) 1,057 494063 4127247 6248138
Note: Bff3E
The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the past including GEHRTITERABREZEEERHETE  BFEART
redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation of group entities. Bt SFECEZDFRELEIL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

35 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 35 fRfE(E)
The Company NN

Capital  Investment
Share  Contributed  redemption  revaluation Hedging Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve profits

R BABE EARORE REEHRE it RERA

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it T — it T ST —

ST BETTT BETT T BETT BETT
(note)

At 1 April 2014 R-S-RENA—H 597,284 95,413 8,799 75,023 1,082 696,547 1,474,148
Profit for the year (note 13) FERER(HF13) - - - - - 548,721 548,721
Change in fair value of availablefor- ~ AJEEHEZRENDAE

sale investments 25 - - - (21518) - - (21,518)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A E ZRA R FERE

investments transferred to BREREE

income statement - - - 17,600 - - 17,600
Fair value adjustments on the ETAReRELM

derivative financial instruments BT AAH

designated as cash flow hedge FEBHANN

in respect of interest rate swap AnEAR

contracts - - - - (1,437) - (1,437)
Total comprehensive income FErANEESE

for the year - - - (3,918) (1,437) 548,721 543,366
Dividends paid BfkE - - - - - (249,777) (249,777)
Issue of share under scrip dividend ~ RIELAIRM 851 21871/

schemes 82,930 - - - - - 82,930
At 31 March 2015 R-E-R5=A=1-H 680,214 95,413 8,799 71,105 (355) 995,491 1,850,667
At 1 April 2013 WZE-=FMA—H 453,832 95,413 8,799 25,212 41 623,714 1,207,011
Profit for the year (note 13) Eelinak)) - - - - - 313,772 313,772
Change in fair value of availablefor- ~ AIEEHEZRENRAE

sale investments 2% - - - 39,603 - - 39,603
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A E 2 KA MRERR

investments transferred to BREhak

income statement - - - 10,208 - - 10,208
Fair value adjustments on the EEARERELM

derivative financial instruments ITERBIAEH

designated as cash flow hedge ME=RAH00

in respect of interest rate swap DERE

contracts - - - - 1,041 - 1,04
Total comprehensive income FEEANGEE

for the year - - - 49,811 1,041 313,772 364,624
Dividends paid BfRE - - - - - (240,939) (240,939)
Issue of share under scrip dividend 1R IELARRIL B EIETR G

schemes 143 452 - - - - - 143 452
At 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=+-B 597,284 95,413 8,799 75,023 1,082 696,547 1,474,148
Note: BT -
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net assets of YARBTRERFAWENB AR 2 EEFEEEE
subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for BT AQN RNz AERBZZ5E - REARE
their acquisition. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed (C—RAN—FREPE) KRB ZEARBTIAI D
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders. TRAER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

36 DEFERRED TAXATION 36 ELRKE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised TXFEIAERFENBEERFEER
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years: ZEBEERBEE (BE)REEE
Amortisation
Accelerated  of goodwill
tax and Revaluation of
depreciation  trademarks properties Tax losses Others Total
MEHE  BEHER
HE BE S HEER Hith B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2014 RZT—-EEMA—A 49,662 22,999 203,190 (44,553) (2,733) 228 565
Exchange realignment R A 85 (26) 265 37 235 596
Charged to consolidated EERHFANRRNR
income statement for the year (Fz£10)
(note 10) 2,479 13,194 8,118 3,448 4,052 31,291
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited HERBIBERAR
(note 45(b)i)) (PZE45(0)()) (13,49) = = = = (13,496)
At31 March 2015 W-F-RFZA=1-8 38,730 36,167 211573 (41,068) 1554 246,956
At 1 April 2013 RZE—-=FMA—-H 45,665 8,353 124,174 (22,023 3,018 159,187
Exchange realignment RS 92 - 877 - 159 1,128
Charged/(credited) to consolidated EEERANER
income statement for the year B/ (GEA) (10
(note 10) 3,905 14,646 9,019 (22,530) (5,910) (870)
Charged to other comprehensive EFEEM2EIGEGR
income for the year - - 69,120 - - 69,120
At 31 March 2014 RZE-WF=A=1+—H 49,662 22,999 203,190 (44,553) (2,733) 228,565
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial position
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

36 ELEHE (&)

REGHEEFBHINRZBINIGTNA  HETE
ERAEERBERLCIFERE - BEHIAS
MIEMIEHRER B Z 0T

Deferred tax liabilities FEERTEA &
Deferred tax assets RIER A E

The Group had unused tax losses of HK$2,340,045,000 (2014:
HK$2,234,287,000) available for offset against future taxable profits. A
deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect of HK$160,722,000
(2014: HK$172,450,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset had
been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$2,179,323,000 (2014:
HK$2,061,837,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in tax losses were losses of HK$5,039,000, HK$70,347,000
and HK$115,920,000 (2014: HK$16,192,000, HK$65,833,000 and
HK$76,109,000) of subsidiaries in Macau, Mainland China and the United
States of America ("US") that will gradually expire until December 2017,
December 2019 and March 2035 respectively; the remaining tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$24,081,000 (2014: HK$20,834,000) had
not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unappropriated earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such amounts were
expected to be reinvested.

The Group had unrecognised deductible temporary differences of
HK$75,587,000 (2014: HK$53,218,000). No deferred tax asset had been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is
not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

2015 2014
—E-RE —T—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI
263,211 262,421
(16,255) (33,856)
246,956 228,565

AEBAHBZHEBEBEBRBBEE
2,340,045,000 7T ( — & — PO F : B K
2,234,287,0007T) + A FAYEIK SH A5 2R 2 FE R
TR F o HARB#160,722,0007T( —Z —
F 1 B#172,450,00070) 2 FIEE B R
BIEERIEEE - BARK & FHATER - i
WENG T 2 HIEE BB % 2,179,323,000
JL(ZZ— 4 : #12,061,837,0007T ) &
REBEEHBEE - MEBBEIERM -
B A & EF R A BB ([ ) B A a1
AnRE-_Z—+tF+=-A  —T—h#F
+- AR -—E=RF=H2%¥5,039,000
I 78 # 70,347,000 7T & % # 115,920,000
JTL(ZZ—PO4F : 5%16,192,0007C * B
65,833,0007T )8 #76,109,0007T) : MR T
2 BTEE B i AT SR IR A A e o

KAERETH B AR A2 IKEF Al e+
2 AP HERIEE T TE & (5751 24,081,000
JL(ZZ—PU4 : B1%20,834,0007T) @ FEH
HEFESAERRE -

ARBZAERTMALHEZRBBE
76,687,0007T (= F —PU4F : B#63,218,000
L) ° FERTFE AR KA B 2 50 2 FERR B )i K1 DA 7
EEEAR IR EREER - MR
RAARE 2 FERELEHBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-—Z-AF-A=T—ALFEE

37 SEGMENT INFORMATION 37 pEER

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Directors, the chief operating decision-maker,
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Directors consider the
business from a product/service perspective. Principal activities of the
segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering work for
aluminium building materials and curtain walls, building construction,
electrical and mechanical, lift and escalator, pipe technology and
environmental contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft,
aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment in securities.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and logistics, senior housing and hotel operations.

Food and beverage: Restaurant and bar.

Others: Sale and servicing of information technology equipment and
business machines, retailing, trading and servicing of motor vehicles,
grocery trading and fresh produce supply.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement, except that it also includes the Group's
share of revenue of associates and joint ventures on a proportionate
consolidated basis. The sales from associates and joint ventures to the
Group and sales between individual associates and joint ventures are not
eliminated.

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results. This measurement includes
the Group’s share of results of associates and joint ventures on a
proportionate consolidated basis. Unallocated corporate expenses,
finance income and costs, income tax expenses and other major items
that are isolated and non-recurring in nature are not included in segment
results.

Segment assets mainly consist of current assets and non-current assets
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except
prepaid tax, unallocated bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and
other unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
except current income tax liabilities, bank and other borrowings, deferred
tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and results

For the year ended 31 March 2015

REVENUE
Total revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Group revenue

Share of revenue of associates and
joint ventures

Proportionate revenue from
ajoint venture eliminated

Segment revenue

RESULTS
Segment profit/(loss)

Included in segment profit/(loss) are:

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Depreciation and amortisation,
net of capitalisation

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on amounts due from
associates

Impairment loss on amounts due from
joint ventures

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Unrealised (loss)/gain on derivative
financial instruments

Unrealised gain on investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Write (down)/back of inventories to net
realisable value, net

Impairment loss on trade and
other debtors

37 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

B2-2-1f=R=1-H
LLERE

WA

FTON

HEZABA

EEHA
FriEBERRRAELERA

BHERE-RAEhEY
RPN

AERA

ES |
2EER/ (B8

HRE/ (BR)BE:
NS
iR etREs
RANEZARERM

REREN  MREAL

NE  BERREAE
BR
RUHE AR RE
B
EYRELEEN RE
B
AEHEZRENAE
BR
THEBIAZARER
(B8) ez
BRAABIINBREREL
BERARSR NS
(He) / BEFEE
ERFE R
B LEMERER 2
REER

Construction
and
engineering
BER
BRIE
HK$'000
BETT

Insurance
and
investment

RERRE
HK$'000

BRI

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HE-ZT-—HAF=ZA=1+—HILLFE

37 2 RER(E)

LONSES

Property

LIES
HK$'000
BT

Food and
beverage

£8
HK$'000
BT

Others

Hth
HK$'000
BT

Total

#am
HK$'000
BET T

2,545,134 174,076 1,098,156 605,346 669,965 5,092,677
- (19,906) (48,126) - (11,994 (80,026)
2,545,134 154,170 1,050,030 605,346 657,971 5,012,651
2,154,243 - 60,512 95,026 2,235,519 4,545,300
(15,545) = - = = (15,545)
4,683,832 154,170 1,110,542 700,372 2,893,490 9,542,406
317,805 50,261 1,576,473 25,771 (139,823) 1,830,487
124,214 - 156 7,980 117,056 249,406
242 - (28,995) - - (28,753)

- - 193,312 - - 193,312

(6,656) (180) (71,690) (29,435) (6,205) (114,166)

- - - (3,452) - (3,452)

- - (39) (307) (66,485) (66,831)

- - (153,874) - - (153,874)

- (17,639) - - (192,747) (210,386)

(77) (4,320) = 2,073 (2,802) (5,126)

- 17,213 - - - 17,213

(308) - - - 2,434 2,126
(3,156) (65) (7,857) (282) (20,475) (31,835)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

37 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 37 7 EER(E)

LONSES ¢ )

Revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE-Z-NF=-R=1—H

Construction
and

sHTE
HK$'000
BT

Insurance
and
investment

Property

Food and
beverage

Others

At
HK$'000
BRI

Total

4%
HK$'000
BT

IHFE

REVENUE KA
Total revenue B 1,606,628 363,623 973,252 572,114 704,539 4,220,156
Inter-segment revenue v ON - (45,446) (47,962) - (13,367) (106,775)
Group revenue SEUA 1,606,628 318,177 925,290 572,114 691,172 4,113,381
Share of revenue of associates and FEBE AR REEBEMA

joint ventures 2,120,165 - 118,217 86,698 2,252,686 4,577,766
Proportionate revenue from BHERE-MeEtEL

ajoint venture eliminated BB (30,424) - - - - (30,424)
Segment revenue AEBA 3,696,369 318,177 1,043,507 658,812 2,943,858 8,660,723
RESULTS ES
Segment profit/(loss) AEER/(F8) 292,536 61,730 407,300 22,276 (41,569) 742,273
Included in segment profit/(loss) are: PERR/(BR)BE:
Share of results of associates FiEBE AREE 119,419 - 363 (2,745) (37,661) 79,376
Share of results of joint ventures it BrEEE 514 - (9,547) - - (9,033)
Increase in fair value of investment REMEZ AR EEM

properties - - 201,510 - - 201,510
Depreciation and amortisation, FEREHE  MBRELNM

net of capitalisation (6,339) (1,315) (61,451) (28,783) (7,279) (105,167)
Impairment loss on amount due from B —RIBE D ARTZRE

an associate BiE - - - (908) - (908)
Impairment loss on amount due from  E—HAL A ERERZRE

ajoint venture BiE - - (14,087) - - (14,087)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ez REREEEE

investments - (10,532) - - - (10,532)
Unrealised (Ioss)/gain on derivative TTAERBIAZAER

financial instruments (Bi#8)/ Wz 2) 5,842 - 5,685 (1,011) 10,514
Unrealised loss on investments at BAREIINBRRELZ

fair value through profit or loss RENAZBER - (863) - - - (863)
Write down of inventories to WRFEZERTE 38

net realisable value, net ) - - - 971) (974)
Impairment loss written back/(recognised) E1% /(%) E 5 R A

on trade and other debtors IR REEE 1,541 (118) (4,120) - 8 (2,689)
Impairment loss written back on retention Bl EWREZIE Y

receivables REEE 25 - - - - 25

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management
with reference to market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Revenue and results (continued)

Total segment revenue are reconciled to the Group's revenue in the

consolidated income statement as follows:

ma

PR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

37 2 RER(E)

Total segment revenue

Add: Proportionate revenue from
a joint venture eliminated

Less: Share of revenue of associates and
joint ventures
Construction and installation contracts
Fresh produce supply
Sale of motor vehicles and others

Provision of maintenance and other services

Food and beverage
Hotel operations
Sales and leasing of properties

Total revenue in the consolidated income
statement (note 5)

e EHERE—RABREZ

B PTEBE R R R A E R

i

=
VIR

RELBIBA

LN
BERZELRY
iR
EREAMHE
RURE R A MRS
HER
G 8
MEHEMHEE

Bl 2 WA (FFE5)

Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before taxation is provided as

follows:

WA REEE)
BEHBWAEREBRNGEE KRGS RAZ WA
HERWAT ¢
2015
—ZE—FF
HK$’000
BT T
9,542,406 8,660,723
15,545 30,424
1,766,890 1,759,390
1,131,515 1,344,964
1,103,482 907,307
388,041 361,436
95,026 86,698
30,456 35,985
29,890 81,986
4,545,300 4,677,766
5,012,651 4,113,381

DR N BRI AT RN 2 BRI T

Segment profit

Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

DEREN
ROBEEX M
U
MBER

A A A

2015
—E-—FHEF
HK$'000
BRET T
1,830,487 742,273
(24,698) (29,165)
19,315 14,365
(114,626) (117,012)
1,710,478 610,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

37 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Assets and liabilities

37 2 RER(E)

BEEREE

Construction Insurance
and EL Food and
engineering  investment Property beverage Others
BER

BRI GRRERE L/ £8 Hetr

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BETT BETT BETT
At 31 March 2015 R-E-EF=A=+-H
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PREE 1,551,076 1,308,137 10,822,428 332,455 809,834 14,823,930
Included in segment assets are: NEEERE:
Interests in associates ﬁﬁ NG 2 454,787 - 30,732 44,722 468,239 998,480
Interests in joint ventures i A%ﬁ%ﬂ&m 11,696 - 1,498,436 - - 1,510,132
Amounts due from associates FENHE AR 10,102 - 915 - 281 11,298
Amounts due from joint ventures el A%ﬁigﬁ o 50 - - - - 50
Additions to non-current assets (note)  REIERBEE () 15,055 97 100,858 41,604 5,194 162,808
LIABILITIES =t
Segment liabilities 2EEE 1,424,080 629,723 845,603 82,222 71,018 3,052,646
Included in segment liabilities is: NEARRE:
Amounts due to associates JERE 2D AR - - 29,400 285 - 29,685
At 31 March 2014 N\ZE-FE=/=+—H
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PEEE 1,246,655 1,182,600 9,678,653 329,720 1161916 13,499,544
Included in segment assets are: NEEERE:
Interests in associates Il AN 423,806 - 30,627 41553 253,825 749,811
Interests in joint ventures FiitaetE ks 11,454 - 1,495,879 - - 1,507,333
Amounts due from associates FEIRTE &N BIBRR 14,593 - 38 20,222 283,269 318,122
Amounts due from joint ventures At ERR 64 - 128,735 - - 128,799
Additions to non-current assets (note) A EIEREEE (M) 8,209 % 158,685 13,126 7372 187,488
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities FEEE 1,003,350 655,327 608,506 98,467 64,514 2,430,164
Included in segment liabilities is: DEBERE:
Amount due to an associate il EVNSIE SN - - 29,372 - - 29,372
Note: PtsE -

In this analysis, the non-current assets exclude financial instruments (including
interests in associates and joint ventures) and deferred tax assets.

EADIF  ERBEETBENE TA(BIEME
BERAR LA SRR L) REEHIREE

PEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Assets and liabilities (continued)
Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and
liabilities is provided as follows:

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

37 2 RER(E)

BEEREEGE)
DHREERAREBEERABIHEDT

Segment assets DEAE

Prepaid tax TR #iE

Unallocated bank balances and cash ROMRITHEF MRS
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE &=

Other unallocated assets HEfbRDELEE

Total assets WERE

2015
—E-RF
HK$'000
BETT
14,823,930 13,499,544
6,492 6,282
473,574 383,115
16,255 33,856
8,929 2,629
15,329,180 13,925,426

Segment liabilities nEAE
Current income tax liabilities EHMGHAaE
Bank and other borrowings RIT R E MR
Deferred tax liabilities FIERTEE &
Other unallocated liabilities EfbRDELBE
Total liabilities wmarfE

Geographical information

The Group's operations in construction and engineering business are
mainly located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and Australia.
Insurance and investment business is mainly conducted in Hong Kong.
Property business is mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China,
US, Canada and Singapore. Food and beverage business is carried out
in Hong Kong, Macau and Australia. Other businesses are mainly carried
out in Hong Kong, US, Canada and Thailand.

The associates’ and joint ventures' operations in construction and
engineering business are mainly located in Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Macau and Singapore. Property business is mainly carried out in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Food and beverage business is carried out
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Other businesses are carried out in
Mainland China and Australia.

3,052,646 2,430,164
60,808 53,691
3,528,128 4,067,055
263,211 262,421
25,638 35,396
6,930,431 6,848,627

hEE R
REBMBENBRIBEREETZEEHS - P
B A~ SBPIRORINEE o (R RIS E TS
FEEEBEF MEXEBETEEEH - F
B A« B - A RFTINBEE - B
EBERE  BPICBMEE - XIS
FEEES  ZR - MEARFTHEE-

BERARERCEZEEREM TRRR
TBEEEL  PEAM  ORPI R INEE
- MEEBTEEDTERFEAMEE -
BEREBERBRTEAMERF - HEH
BIFE R B A RO -

HtEBREEERAT | F8/ 2015 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

37 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 37 7 EER(E)

EER ()

Geographical information (continued)

Segment revenue by geographical areas

REBES ZHERA
Company  Associates Company  Associates
and and and and
subsidiaries jointventures 2015 Total subsidiaries  joint ventures
KRR BELFR  C%-If KRR
WEAH RELE e WEAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L BETT  BETx BB
Hong Kong B 2,411,245 413,802' 2,825,047 30 2213545 486,850" 2,700,395 31
Mainland China HE R 73887 2593846 2,667,733 28 64,505 2,365,031 2,429,536 28
Macau il 1,267,832 67,101 1,334,933 14 570,681 47,402 618,083 7
Australia B 164,653 1,131,515 1,296,168 13 175,991 1,344,964 1,520,955 17
UsS %H 620,784 - 620,784 6 587,943 - 587,943 7
Canada mex 397473 - 397,473 4 396,526 - 396,526 5
Singapore AR 13,318 322,954 336,272 4 12,880 302,552 315,432 4
Thailand ZE 53,455 - 53,455 1 72,442 - 72,442 1
Others b 10,004 537 10,541 - 18,868 543 19411 -
5,012,651 4,529,755 9,542,406 100 4,113,381 4,547,342 8,660,723 100

' The proportionate revenue from a joint venture is eliminated. 1

KE—RMaEbE 2R FIRAT KL -

The Group maintains a healthy and balanced portfolio of customers. For REERBEEELRTEZ2EFRPHAA - #HZE
the year ended 31 March 2015, revenue of HK$668,198,000 was derived T E-RAF-A=t+—HLEFE B

from a single external customer in construction and engineering segment
and accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue of the Group. For
the year ended 31 March 2014, no customer accounted for 10% or more
of the total revenue of the Group.

668,198,000 7T HY Ut A 2R B 32 28 M i i T 72
DHENBE—IIBEFE  EAEEZBRAN
10%A L - BE-_T—NF=ZA=+—HI
FE - BERTFPEAEEZBHBANI0%K
BAE ©

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-current assets
other than financial instruments (including interests in associates and
joint ventures) and deferred tax assets analysed by geographical areas:

AT RBEHBTA(BEMEBERTREE
EZER) MRENIAEENIMRRE D

Hong Kong
Mainland China
us

Singapore
Canada

Macau
Australia
Others

BB
PEIAH
ESE
0
IEFN
RFT
ol
HAh
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ZIEMENVEEREEST -
Non-current assets
FERBEE

2015 2014
—E-RF —T—E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
3,610,900 3,655,977
1,653,968 1,596,188
1,278,834 1,298,459
481,684 523,946
172,022 163,826
22,828 25,645
10,584 11,749
19,838 20,095
7,250,658 7,295,885




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

38 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER 38 BERAMELEE ZRENR
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business BETRENS  REBAHEBEAZAZ
combinations, licenses, trademarks, favourable leases and others are MR . EiZ - R EREM RS
allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from IETEHEHZETNEEDPTE RS E
such intangible assets. The respective carrying amounts as at 31 March HEBEN RZE—HEFER-_ZT—WNFE=A
2015 and 2014 had been allocated as follows: =+—H FEZEAECRESRAT -
Favourable
Goodwill License  Trademark leases Others
mE BR e BREE Ht
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BET T BT T BT
Cost A
Construction and engineering B AN TR
- roads, drainage and waterworks ~ — B - B RKETZ - 26,534 - = -
Insurance and investment RERIEE - - = = 4,663
Property bIES
—cold storage and public bonded ~ —ARAERAZIERAE
warehouse (note a) (BfsEa) 66,027 3,000 = = =
— senior housing (note b) — =& (Mizb) 568,372 - - - 5,193
Food and beverage B
— restaurant and bar (note c) —BENEE () 193,054 - 18,094 11,855 -
Others Hh = = = - 4,530
827,453 29,534 18,094 11,855 14,386
Accumulated amortisation/ Rt REEE
impairment loss
Construction and engineering BEREMIRE
- roads, drainage and waterworks ~ — &% « RIERKK IR = (26,534) - - -
Insurance and investment R RIZE - - - - (4,663)
Property b/ES
- cold storage and public bonded ~ —AEABERAZREA
warehouse (note a) (BfsEa) (1,461) (3,000) - = =
— senior housing (note b) —ZEbE (fizkb) - - - - (3,068)
Food and beverages B
— restaurant and bar (note c) — BB SRR (FifsEc) (135,808) - (5,610) (11,855) -
Others Hih - - - - (1,904)
(137269)  (29,534) (5,610  (11855) (9,635)
Net book value at 31 March 2015 R=—Z—-F&=HF=+—H
ZEREFE 690,184 - 12,484 = 4,751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

38 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

38 BMERHEMEREE ZRER(R)

Favourable
leases Others
BHHEE HAh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T

Goodwill License Trademark

HERR Az

HK$'000
BEFT

Cost A
Construction and engineering EE N TR

—roads, drainage and waterworks ~ — ik - RERKK TR - 26,5634 - - -
Insurance and investment R RIZE - - - - 5,215
Property IES

—cold storage and public bonded ~ —ARAERAZIRRE

warehouse (note a) (FfEa) 66,027 3,000 - - -

— senior housing (note b) — & & (Hizb) 569,105 - - - 5,199
Food and beverage ER

— restaurant and bar (note c) — B REE (i) 183,880 - 23,776 11,855 -
Others Hth - - - - 4,530

819,012 29,634 23,776 11,855 14,944
Accumulated amortisation/ Rty REES

impairment loss
Construction and engineering HEREMIRE

—roads, drainage and waterworks ~ — B « RIERKK TR - (26,534) - - -
Insurance and investment RERIEE - - - - (5,200)
Property LIES

- cold storage and public bonded ~ —AEABERARRNA

warehouse (note a) (Fiizka) (1,461) (3,000) - - -

— senior housing (note b) —ZEbE (MizEb) - - - - (1,339)
Food and beverages -3

— restaurant and bar (note c) — BB NOFE (i Ec) (135,808) - (6,298) (9,633) -
Others Hith - - - - (1,901)

(137,269) (29,534) (6,298) (9,633) (8,445)
Net book value at 31 March 2014 R=-—ZE—-WE=F=+—H
ZIREFE 681,743 - 17,478 2,222 6,499
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if
there are indications that they might be impaired.

The Group tests other intangible assets for impairment whenever there is
an indication that they might be impaired.

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired
require estimations of the higher of the value in use or fair value less cost
to sell. Both approaches require the entity to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from CGUs and suitable discount rates in order
to calculate present value.

The recoverable amount of CGUs in restaurant and bar business are
determined from fair value less cost to sell approach while recoverable
amounts of CGUs for other businesses are determined from value-in-use
calculations approach.

The key assumptions for both approaches requires the entity to estimate
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs. Management estimates appropriate discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs.

Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market. Management determined
budgeted growth rates and gross margins based on past performance
and market expectation. The discount rates reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant CGUs.

(a) Cold storage and public bonded warehouse business
Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$64,566,000 (2014:
HK$64,566,000) is allocated to the Group's cold storage and public
bonded warehouse business. The estimated recoverable amount is
determined based on value-in-use approach. The calculation uses
post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the
period are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate per annum and a 9%
discount rate per annum.

(b) Senior housing business
Goodwill of HK$568,372,000 (2014: HK$569,105,000) and lease-in-
place, after amortisation, of HK$2,125,000 (2014: HK$3,860,000)
are allocated to the Group's senior housing business. The estimated
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-in-use
approach. The calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering three to
four-year period. Cash flows beyond the period are extrapolated using
a 4% growth rate per annum and a 10.5% discount rate per annum.

(¢) Restaurant and bar business

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$57,246,000 (2014:
HK$48,072,000), trademarks, after amortisation, of HK$12,484,000
(2014: HK$17,478,000) and favourable leases, after amortisation, of
nil (2014: HK$2,222,000) are allocated to the Group's restaurant and
bar business. The estimated recoverable amounts are determined
based on fair value less cost to sell approach. The calculation uses
post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the
period are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate per annum up to
the fifth year and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth year to
fifteenth year and a 15% discount rate per annum.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BHE-ZT-—RAF=A=+—HILFE

38 BMEREMEREE ZRENR(R)

REBESFEHEISAPFELSHERE =%
E‘Ejﬁdﬁl@ﬁ%ﬁj ﬁEﬁE }Eﬂ-/mﬁ

ASER A A B LR A w88 R E D
KEETRERR

ErEELEMBEFEAERSRERME
AHREBEXAABIREEN A RSE °
e R ERTE AR - ZEEFMHFTZER
CEABNEAZARRREREREERR
o AGTEHERE -

BEREMECEBZREGELSM 2 ATKES
BMIERAABHAREERATELEE £
MEMEBZRESELSBN ZAIKOISET)
REMAPEBEAEELETE -

ZMEFEE s TR2MRBFRLEMR
&R RERLEBEAERKANZARE

EHREMGTERMBATISHEYE 2 KREE
BERRSESEMNSARARZ GEAERE -

MEBREERAZZLAREBEIEG &
H iR R R S I - BB IR A
ARBAMBEHETCHEERRERETR
Ko MIRENMEEFRSCELEMMS R
ZEERBR o

(a) REAERLARRBALS

SRETE B 1£64,566,0007T ( — B —PH4E :
75 164,566,0007T) 2 BEW DI EARE
E2RERERABRUBER - fh5t
Al Bl SENIEFERPEELET - A
B:tEERREEEBI &R —FHH
BEEZBRERBESRETEN - BB
RZIRERERBETFI%EREKLI%
BRIRFREH -

(b) REREBEE

7 568,372,000 L ( —Z — O £ -
%%w%mwﬂZﬁ@&ﬁ%&
2125000 T ( — & — W F : B
3,860,0007T) v B IFHEW DI ELRE
BErREREER - Al kS
ZERREBEELET - EHTEFEAR
BEEEBMRZ ZENFHEKEE Y
BREARSRETEN - BRHRZES
REFATFINIERER105%3RF
THEH o

(c) BENEEER
SEE 18 78 557,246,000 T ( = ZF — Y
£ 148,072,00070 ) 2 EE - HEY
1% 75 #12,484,000t (ZF — 0 4F : &
#17,478,0007T) 2 1R R B & RE
BAZENHE(ZZT—NF : B
2,220,00070) WA EREE 2 BB &
RS - et kB €| MR AR E
MBREERAEET - BRFTEFEAR
BEBEIZ —FHUIEEE 2R
?éiﬁimu%iﬁ E'J tiﬂ/ﬁﬂﬁﬁziﬁimu;
FREFI%EEREZTFAFIHMENS
§§%+£¢2§%E$&W%%ﬁ¢
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HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

39 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

39 EENEREEAEZHME

Directors’ emoluments EEMSE
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows: PR RENTES ST :
2015
—E—FF
Retirement
Salaries and scheme
Directors’ fee other benefits contribution Total
Hek BIRGTEIZ
E=Me Hit @5 it wmE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BET T
Executive Directors HITES
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) AIE(EE) - 15,412 = 15,412
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and 2884 (2] X fE 3 E B4842)

Managing Director) - 11,800 585 12,385
Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Z 28 (2l E E A48 )

Director) - 9,900 398 10,298
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JEMEIE - 4,000 300 4,300
Ho Chung Leung fAlTRER - 2,900 180 3,080
Ma Chi Wing BELE - 3,200 195 3,395
Lily Chow ISESIES] - 1,600 120 1,720
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph# JE1RR 250 - - 250
Sun Kai Dah, George* R E 250 - - 250
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* o iEs 300 - - 300
Poon Chung Kwong# R 250 - - 250
Ko Chan Gock, William SEB 100 - - 100

1,150 48,812 1,778 51,740

Executive Directors

Chow Yei Ching (Chairman)

Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and
Managing Director)

Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing
Director)

Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar

Ho Chung Leung

Ma Chi Wing

Lily Chow

Non-Executive Directors
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph#
Sun Kai Dah, George*

Yang Chuen Liang, Charles*
Poon Chung Kwong*

Ko Chan Gock, William

PTES
BT (ER)
HEE(BIERRESBLHE)

BEK(BERRE)
JE#EIE

AR
B
AT

FUTES
JERAfE
ez
HEs
TR

REE

# Independent Non-Executive Director
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Retirement
Salaries and scheme
Directors’ fee other benefits contribution
Fek @ EBIRGEZ
EFHS BER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  OBMTIT  AETE

- 11,930 - 11,930

- 14,838 522 15,360

- 12,353 351 12,704

- 4,200 240 4,440

- 2,700 158 2,858

- 3,000 150 3,150

- 1,500 113 1,613

200 - - 200

200 - - 200

250 - - 250

200 - - 200

100 - - 100

950 50,521 1,534 53,005

#  BAUIFTES
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40

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 39
(CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals include four (2014: four) Directors,
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments
paid to the remaining one (2014: one) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

ESREREEAEZHE ()

EEME
TEmEeHMATEENE (=T —MmF : [
FEF  REZHEHBEHINML -
FTHH-R(ZZ-0F : —R)HKSFHA
TZEEHMA

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REMET
Performance-based bonus BRABR L
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRET &2 R

The emoluments of the remaining one (2014: one) highest paid
individuals fall within the following bands.

2015
—E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
2,571 2,183
3,944 3,706
18 57
6,533 5,946

Hp—2 (22 —NF : —2)RaFHzA
TR EE N A TIIAR -

HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 78#£5,000,0017T — 7#%6,000,0007T - 1
HK$6,000,001 — HK$7,000,000 756,000,001 7T —78%7,000,0007T 1 -

The above emoluments paid and payable to Directors and employees
also represent only benefits paid to the Group's key management during
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees issued for
utilised borrowings in relation to:

FitmEEREE BN REMSZ S RN
HE_Z-RAFER-_ZT-—NE=/A=+—H
IEFERREEFEEREL N o E—EF -

FAREE

AEBFREE BB ERMER 2 EROIA
BER:

Banking facilities granted to associates BFBERBZRITEE

Banking facilities granted to a joint venture Ry —HEELEZRITEE

Banking facilities granted to a joint venture partner BT —Z 8L 0B RITEE

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities 4 FERITHR TFWENETERZ
granted to certain buyers of properties HIBIE ERER

2015 2014
—E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
23,320 98,818
154,939 136,235
142,800 168,300
316,025 158,313
637,084 561,666
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 40 RARBE(E)
The Company had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees issued AEERERECEBRERMEL 2 EHRAOHA
for utilised borrowings in relation to: BEA:
2015
—ZE—HF
HK$'000
BT T
Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries BRTHBRBIZIRITEE 1,305,414 1,650,401
Banking facilities granted to associates BTSN ZIRITEE 23,320 98,818
Banking facilities granted to a joint venture BT EAECEZRITEER 154,939 136,235
Banking facilities granted to a joint venture partner ¥ F—Z & & CERHZFEITEE 142,800 168,300
Performance bonds and demand bonds of MBS A RIIRIEE T 64 2 BAVRE &
subsidiaries under certain contracts RERE 220,378 84,963
1,846,851 2,138,717
The Group's share of contingent liabilities of its joint ventures was as AEBEBMREAECEZSARBENT ¢
follows:

M

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities 45 FIRITRIR TAEEY

granted to certain buyers of the joint ventures’ MENETERZIRE

properties EERER 6,408 25,318
COMMITMENT 41 &Ik
The Group had commitment as follows: REBZAENT -

2015 2014
=Z-8F —TmF

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Contracted but not provided for in the consolidated 5t 5118 B B 2 5] & 4B R ELE S B1T%

financial statements in respect of WRAFHE 2 FE
— acquisition of plant and equipment — B ARE K& 5,277 1,797
— a property development project —— (A ERRIEE 255,272 346,477
260,549 348,274
Authorised but not contracted for in respect of m—EAYEEREEE CHERRERE]
a property development project BH) 2 EIE 1,633,096 1,757,417
1,893,645 2,105,691
The Group's share of commitment of its joint ventures was as follows: AEBMEEAEREZAENT ¢

Contracted but not provided for BERABRETE 515,698 113,875
Authorised but not contracted for BHVEBRELD 370,611 430,971
886,309 544,846
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

42 OPERATING LEASES 42 EEHE
The Group as lessee EEBERFREA
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under AREBREFHERBEITRE L ERE
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which MARARS Mz HEHEESLTE  HAOEM
fall due as follows: HANT -
2015 2014
—E-EF —Z—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETT BRI
Within one year —&FR 108,132 85,280
In the second to fifth year inclusive FERAFHN(BEEREMNE) 122,209 97,156
Over five years HFEMUE 19,784 27,999
250,125 210,435
The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic LA EREEREESNHESEE U8
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental payable FBEINEMHES (RS (WE) Z&E -
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by LHEREIMIE —MERRRHEEZBRED
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less the basic RS HEsEAXHeMER - Bt Trlge
rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in FRBTREINMES 2 FHEE

advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor REBERHBEA
Investment properties and properties for sale with carrying values of NEEHELNH 2 REMERTEME
HK$3,608,868,000 and HK$26,962,000 (2014: HK$3,565,053,000 and 2 B B 9 5l &% ¥ 3,608,868,000 7T
HK$37,403,000) respectively were rented out under operating leases. 7 526,962,000 L (Z T —HF - B
These properties have committed tenants within the next five years. 3,565,053,000 7T M /8 # 37,403,0007T ) ° it
The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Group under SYERARFRBENRRAEFAER - A&
non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods is as ER T3S HERB I HEc2EHREM
follows: RARER HERESTENOT -
2014
—E—F
HK$'000
BT
Within one year —FR 100,017 123,547
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZRFRN(BIEEEMSF) 25,504 74,026
125,521 197,573
43 RETIREMENT BENEFITS 43 BAKEF
The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the NEEATELEIMEE Y IBHRT S IEE
benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas. KiEHEE o
In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution B - AN E 2 E B R R 2NEH))
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement S Rk ([ AR )RR
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident SETE+ - ARCGERHIEAE S 2Em)
Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes") established under the Mandatory By YR ARSI R ([BmELEta ) o
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The ORSO BABeHe EERASESAKES
Schemes are funded by monthly contributions from both employees and EHC5%E75%5H%%E  BEESNA
the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee's basic EHYEETE AEBEARBEIE K
salary, depending on the length of service with the Group. For members 8 REESEBEEAALY%NE(HBE
of the MPF Schemes, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll E-RE-A=t+—-HIEERERARS A
costs per employee, at a maximum of HK$1,500 per month during the PR 00T ) FRERTE S St RIVEH 2R Btk
year ended 31 March 2015, to the mandatory contribution of the MPF
Schemes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

43

44
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is required
to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage
or sum of the monthly payroll.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. As at 31 March
2015 and 2014, there were no forfeited contributions, which arose
upon employees leaving the ORSO Schemes and which would be
available to reduce the contributions payable in future years. No forfeited
contributions utilised in this manner during the year end 31 March 2015
(2014: nil). As at 31 March 2015, contributions of HK$2,818,000 (2014:
HK$2,527,000) due in respect of the reporting period were paid over to
various schemes in April 2015.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with
related parties are as follows:

43

44

EINER (&)

REE T2 AN ERE R 2 BFK MR
ZEERAKEEE - REEERILEHHH
ZETADLLRBBFEZ SRIEFERK -

=

o

HAAEBAE BB EMERZ
AR _T-NF=ZA=1+—
W ERAEESREATESHETRAKRE
MREMERMERER 2= —1
FZAZ+BLFEYEANFEABHZ
BRI (ZE—mF - &)  c RZZT—F
F=ZA=+—8  BRSHEENS 2SS
B AEE2,818,0007T (— T —MUF : B
2,527,0007T) BN - B—HEMA LA »

RHEALZXS
RAFEREMEAL 2 EEXSRIBEMT -

HEENEREHEBAREAESTE
N}
/X 7

m 3 (U
SEe=

o
=
o

Contract income from a joint venture
Contract services fee to an associate

Management fee income from associates (note 6)

Management fee income from joint ventures
(note 6)
Maintenance fee to an associate
Management fee to an associate
Building management fee income from
an associate
Rental income from an associate
Rental expenses to an associate
Sales and marketing services income from
an associate (note 6)
Secondment fee income from an associate
Sales of food and beverage to associates
Insurance premium from associates
Interest income from an associate (note 6)

KE-HEEREZAHEA

BT —RMBERRZAKRBER
REEE ARz ERBEWRA(MES)
KEAEhRZERBWA(HIES)

AT RHBERRZREEM

LY —EBEARZEREEM

RE—HBE AR ZETERE
LON

ke —MEEE LR ZES A

AT A NR 2SI

KB~ E R B ZHE RIS HEER

TEURA (PTE6)
RE—HBE AR ZERHBRA
HE THE DB ZER
REBERRZIRRE

RE—EEE A B2 B A (FHEEe)

The above transactions were entered at terms mutually agreed between
all parties involved.

The emoluments of the Directors, who are also considered to be key
management of the Group, during the year is set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2015
—ZE—_FF
HK$°000
BT T
30,935 60,419
(1,181) (812)
24,503 30,022
1,812 3,426
(5,419) (5,678)
(361) (370)
1,074 1,122
20,810 20,917
(165) (145)
24,651 23,538
1,063 1,135
3,206 6,282
6,405 6,230
37,866 -

AEEEE(RETRERARETEEEE
BXR) 2 #BE A AR & B I R E39 o
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R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

45 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

45 GERERERME

FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REEEZRS
2015
—E—RF
HK$°000
BYETT
Profit before taxation BRF A S 1,710,478 610,451
Adjustments for: FEE -
Share of results of associates FriGEe & R el E4E (249,406) (79,376)
Share of results of joint ventures Friha &S 28,753 9,033
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF R EF B U (19,315) (14,355)
Interest income from an associate D= ik d= NI IFSRE /N (37.,866) -
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and IRITE X RIRTT R B A AR
bank and other borrowings FBXH 114,626 117,012
Dividend income from investments RERE ZRBMBA (32,731) (32,360)
Depreciation E 108,894 98,090
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEAb A E 5,272 7,077
Increase in fair value of investment properties & & Y% 7 A EIE N (193,312) (201,510)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—TERE Y 2 Was (642) -
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plantand  HE&EWE - FE L&E 2 EE/
equipment (Yezx) 368 (9,010)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of HEUT ARz (), B8
— Peak Gain Limited —BEIBRAT (1,247,689) -
— other subsidiaries —HiMEB AR (16,819) 787
Loss/(gain) on disposals of available-for-sales HERHHE 2 RENEER
investments (Yez) 49 (42)
Gain on investments at fair value through WARBEHIANIBTRIE ZIE WS
profit or loss (19,547) (22,551)
Gain on derivative financial instruments PTEMBIAZWE (15,977) (14,161)
Write (back)/down of inventories to net (B, &= AT IR R E -
realisable value, net peit- (2,126) 974
Impairment loss on property, plant and YIE - B KRR 2 RERE
equipment 3,452 -
Impairment loss on amounts due from e HE & A RIBR I 2 VB RS 18
associates 66,831 908
Impairment loss on amounts due from joint JEN A S ERR BB
ventures 153,874 14,087
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A E 2R E 2R EEE
investments 210,386 10,532
Impairment loss on trade and other debtors B 5 REM BRI 2 REEE 31,835 2,689
Impairment loss written back on retention BERKRE SRIEZ RERE
receivables - (25)
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEHPRIZLERERE
working capital 599,388 498,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

45 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (CONTINUED)

45 GERTRERME(H)

REEEZRE (M)

(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a)

2015
—E-AfF

HK$°000
BETT

Changes in working capital LB ESEE)

JE U E PR Rk 25 AR AR AL D

Increase in amounts due from non-controlling

interests (13,519) (20,406)
(Increase)/decrease in investments at BARBIABREEZIRE

fair value through profit or loss (3%EHn) R (24,055) 107,513
Decrease in inventories FERD 17,406 24,886
Decrease in properties for sale FEMERD 10,441 2,579
Increase in properties under development RPN (238,151) (229,217)
Increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments  JEWBRZR « 17 HHIE 4 R FE FIBIEMN (266,047) (112,121)
Decrease in amounts due from customers for ~ FAL TRERT WY

contract work RIBR D 40,213 4,984
Increase/(decrease) in derivative financial ITHEB T AR, CRY) » F58

instruments, net 57,987 (4,788)
Decrease in amount due to a non-controlling JE B — IR AR AE R BR TR

interest (2,016) (490)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to REHNIRERARPISZ5E

customers for contract work a1, i) 401,976 (33,116)
Increase in creditors, bills payable, deposits and JEfJBEFX « FEFT 2 - FAKRS K&

accruals TEIRE AN 263,139 300,352
(Decrease)/increase in unearned insurance FIEIRR B KRB H RS e

premiums and unexpired risk reserves CRi), /1 (45,800) 81,018
Increase in outstanding insurance claims FORMRIEREIL AN 7,721 91,396
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income TEIEWAIE I, CRid) 2,249 (378)
Exchange difference [EH Z%E 22,910 (2,899)
Cash generated from operations wEEE RS 833,842 707,563

(b) Acquisitions and disposals of businesses (b) WERHEEK

(i) Disposal of Peak Gain Limited (i) HERBBRAFR
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Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 11
December 2014, the Group disposed of Peak Gain Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to an independent
third party on 31 March 2015, at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$1,413,127,000. Peak Gain Limited is
principally engaged in investment holding and its material asset
is a property located at New Kowloon Inland Lot. No. 5972.

Pursuant to the tenancy agreement dated 31 March 2015,
the independent third party had also agreed to lease the
property back to the Group for a period of three years from the
completion date at a monthly rental of HK$2,100,000 for the
first year and HK$3,200,000 for each of the second and third
years. Management considered the monthly rental under lease
was determined based on arm’s length transaction with the
new buyer and with reference to prevailing market rental of
similar properties nearby.

RE-ZFT—NF+-_A+—HZE
B AEER-_ZT—RHF=
A=Zt+—Bm—&BUFEF=Fd
ERBBRAB(ARFIZ—EE
BEHEAR)  REAEXOABE
1,413,127,0007T ° HKAIBR AR =
DREBRELR EXBEEAN
RIS A ERBI725% 2 W% -

BE-_ZT-AFE=A=+—H2MH
i xBBUE=ZHNRAEM
Bz FAREER  FHOMBHATTR
AHRAAR=F F—F2&
A4 A7#1%2100,0007T © & &
ZREZEZERATEESESABE
3,200,0007T - ERERA - L2
FAMESEMEREDEZE
BTSHS BB S AFREEET



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

45 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 45 FERERERM T (H)

FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisitions and disposals of businesses (continued) (b) WERHEXEKE)
(i) Disposal of Peak Gain Limited (continued) (i) HEKRAERAT(E)
HK$'000
BT T
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZEZNAFR
Cash received [EAeEEn 1,413,127
Less: Professional fees and expenses B EEBRARY W (14,015)
1,399,112
Less: Net assets disposed of W HEUTRIBY BESE
Investment properties (note 14) EWE(KE14) 121,296
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) WE - BB K EE (FIE15) 70,518
Deposits and prepayments Fiike RIEHIE 138
Deferred tax liabilities (note 36) IRIERITE B E (KIzE36) (13,496)
Other assets revaluation reserve release upon HERER 2 M EESGFHE
disposal (27,033)
151,423
Gain on disposal (note 7) 2 s (fE7) 1,247,689
HK$'000
BETT
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEZRSRAFE :
Cash consideration received BYEERE 1,413,127
Professional fees and expenses HEEBRARSH (14,015)
1,399,112
(ii) Acquisition of 51% equity interest in WPGCs (ii) WEBRWPGCsZ251%MHE
On 30 December 2013, CL Holdings Limited (“CL Holdings”, RZE—=%F+=-A=+H" CL
a 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company) received a six- Holdingsi_imited(f(iL\!—loldingsJ '
month notice from World Pointer Limited, an independent EN/NET B ] 60% w2 B A
third party, in exercising its put option to sell its 51% equity 7)) &Y L 5 = J World Pointer
interest in Eastech Limited, Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited and Limitedﬂ’ﬂ/_\fﬂ WA KRB E
Grand Concept (Hong Kong) Limited (collectively, “WPGCs") Eﬁ%i?—_@iﬂ—:ﬁ] ::T:—EZ
to CL Holdings pursuant to an option agreement dated 21 H b Tﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%)ﬁ%ﬁ% ' ﬁ’%
December 2010. On 4 July 2014, CL Holdings completed the Eﬁé‘%%ﬁ[ﬁ@ﬁj CBF(EE)
acquisition of this remaining 51% equity interest in WPGCs at a BRAREER(EE) ﬁﬁ%@ A
cash consideration of HK$25,000,000 and WPGCs had become (%8I WPGCs]) 2 51% ik # FCL
60%-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Holdings e ® = Z — &+ A Y

H -+ CL Holdings 52 A% Y B WPGCs
BTB1% 2’ - BeRERBE
25,000,0007T X WPGCsf A7 A A
HE0% S 2 B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

45 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

45 GEVERERMTE ()

FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Acquisitions and disposals of businesses (continued) (b) WERHEXEK(E)
(iii) Acquisition of senior housing business (i) WIBZERESER
Pursuant to the agreements dated 4 June 2013 and 1 July 2013, BE-_ZTZ—=ZFANAE=Z
the Group acquired two businesses operating senior housing —=FtA—B2zHE AEERA
communities separately in North Carolina, US from independent BULE=HFBEMESBMNNER
third parties at cash considerations of US$4,500,000 and It RBRWNINGEE 2 D EREE
US$4,150,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$34,875,000 and 7% WK E D R AE4,500,000%
HK$32,163,000) respectively. The acquisitions were completed JC 54,150,000 % 7T (FH & R #) B
on 12 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 respectively. 34,875,000 7T & /& ¥ 32,163,000
7L) c WIEEEH IR —E—=F~
At+-BR-_Z—=F+A—H%
B o
HK$'000
PEMET T
Purchase consideration satisfied by: WEEREBZ AR -
Cash paid BRS 67,038
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired o PTEAEEFEARE
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Y% - BB R (MRE15) 61,845
Intangible assets (note 17) mREE(M17) 5,193
67,038
Goodwill arising from the acquisition Wi ETEEE 28 -
Acquisition-related expenses (included in IR ABRA ST I (T AT )
administrative expenses) 4,613

HK$'000
BT

Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition:
Cash consideration paid

Wi 2 R FE

BRBESRE 67,038

(iv) Disposal of 20% equity interest in Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited
Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement dated 7 July 2010,
the Group had a put option in relation to the disposal of its
20% equity interest in Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited at an
exercise price of HK$81,660,000. The Group had exercised its
put option and the transaction was completed on 11 June 2013.
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(iv) H & R Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited 2 20%#% f&
BE-ZZT-—TFLtALAZKRRE
W AN EH S H R Pacific
Coffee (Holdings) Limited 2 20%
REEERLEE - TEERBE
81,660,0007T - AEBBEITEEAR
HEIRE  REERZZT—=FA
+—B%K -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Acquisitions and disposals of businesses (continued)
(v) Share subscriptions in CAAM Limited (“CAAM")

The Group subscribed 5,000,000 ordinary shares (of which 500
and 4,999,500 ordinary shares were allotted on 12 October
2012 and 8 April 2013 respectively, in total representing
approximately 38.46% of all the issued ordinary shares) and
29,471,104 preference shares (of which 28,143,000 and
1,328,104 preference shares were allotted on 8 April 2013
and 16 April 2013, in total representing 100% of all the issued
preference shares) of CAAM at aggregated cash considerations
of AUD5,000,000 and AUD29,471,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$40,450,000 and HK$238,421,000)
respectively. The preference shares are convertible into ordinary
shares of CAAM on a 1:1 basis.

CAAM also completed its acquisition of 70% equity interest in
Moraitis Group Pty Limited (together with its subsidiaries, being
a fruit and vegetable grower-aggregator and a fresh produce
supplier in Australia) from independent third parties on 8 April
20183.

The ordinary shares in CAAM are accounted for as interest in an
associate and the convertible preference shares in CAAM are
accounted for as available-for-sale investments.

46 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dolce Field Limited
(“Dolce Field”)

Pursuant to the agreements dated 20 March 2015, the Group agreed
to purchase 100% equity interest in Dolce Field, the immediate
holding company of 51% equity interest in Chengdu Chevalier
Property Development Company Limited (“CCPD", FX&BE + Fh
ER AR /AR, at a consideration of approximately HK$0.4 billion,
which represents the cost of share capital and amount due to the
Group. CCPD was a company established in the Mainland China and
owned as 49% joint venture by the Group as of 31 March 2015. The
transaction was completed in April 2015 and Dolce Field became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since then.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
management is in the process of obtaining professional valuation to
determine the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired.

Acquisition of 11% equity interest in Mass Harvest Limited
(“Mass Harvest”)

Pursuant to the agreements dated 20 March 2015, the Group agreed
to purchase 11% equity interest in Mass Harvest, the immediate
holding company of Chengdu Century Jinjiang International
Hotel Company Limited (A&t R EBTRHEIA/E AR AE]) at a
consideration of approximately HK$0.1 billion, which represents the
cost of share capital and amount due to the Group. Mass Harvest
was a company established in the British Virgin Islands and owned
as 49% joint venture by the Group as of 31 March 2015. The
transaction was completed in April 2015 and Mass Harvest remained
as a joint venture of the Group.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
management is in the process of obtaining professional valuation to
determine the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired.

R BB IRARIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-T-RF=A=t+-ALFE

45 GERTRERME(H)

(b)

WEREE£KE)

(v) 32 i CAAM Limited ([ CAAM )
B4
AN E D R CAAMAI5,000,000 %
TER(DRIN—E——F+A+=
BR-ZE—=FA/\BCER
500 % K 4,999,500 f& L@ AR © &
HIEFTBEE BT EBARA38.46% )
129,471,104 B (A B =
Z—=ZFPMANBR_ZE—=FMN
A -+75 BB #E #28,143,000 0% &
1,328, 104X B 5Th% - & Hh2IE
BITEAR)  BHESRES R A
5,000,000 8 JT F 29,471,000 8 JT
(A& R 4B 40,450,0007C KB H
238,421,0007T) ° ZEE AR AR
1551 B 5 A CAAMEY IR A% -

RZZ—=FWANH ' CAAMTK
2 TRk M 78 3 5 = 75 Y B Moraitis
Group Pty Limited (& [F E [} B &
A A—ERMEREEESERS
RS RVEYMEIER ) 2 70% AR -

A CAAMA] & 38 B A BR 3 T (b Bt =
N2 - KRR CAAMEA] R] B R
BEBRARRAIELEZRE

46 MEHEREEIE

(a)

(b)

WEEERARA T ([# 2B 1) 2100%MKE

BE_ZT-RF=A-+BzHE &~
SEREBEERD Z2100%H - HRK
METEMERRERAA([REBEL
FHLE |) 251% Bz ERER AR -
REYRBEAET  HERBRARRA K
SRR EARFR - REPE LEHER S
BARYL  RZB-—HEF=A=+—
B RASEHEBEO%WEZE AED
¥ -RGR-_FT-RFMATHK MBI
BURARAARZ —HE2EMB AR -

REENFGEAFBHMERAM  BEE
EETHEEFENEEMBBEERA
BZRE -

BWREEERAT(RE ) 211%KE

BE-_Z-AE=A_-+AZH# "
EEREBRERE 2 1M%EE  EAK
HHERBITEBEEGRAR 2 EEE
BAR REYEBEIEL  HER
PRARAR A R JE AR EBR R - RE R
BHEBREEKY W_Z—RHE=A
=+—H  AFRSEHBO%ERZE
BHE RGN _T—RAFMNAREMK
REMAREEY —MEERE -

REENSGEA M BHERAM - BEE
EETHEEFENEECMBEBEERA
B2 RARE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RAF=FA=+—RHIFE

47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Name of company

Cafe Deco Franchise Limited

Cafe Deco Holdings Limited

Cafe Deco Limited

Cafe Deco Macau Limited

APEREERRAT

Changchun New Star Universe
Sheng Chi Real Estate
Development Co. Ltd. (note a)

RENETEHRNERY
ERETA (i)

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering)
Hong Kong Limited
Ht(BTR)AAERAT

Chevalier (Aluminium Engingering)
Limited (note b)
HL(BTR)ARAA(MED)

Chevalier Automohiles Inc.

Chevalier (Building Supplies &
Engineering) Limited (note b)
(B TR)ERAA(M)
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Place or country of
incorporation or
registration/operation

A
LESi Bl

Hong Kong
(3

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
AREMRES/BE

Hong Kong
B
Macau
A

Mainland China
PER

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&

Canada

mex

Hong Kong
&

Issued and paid
up share capital/
registered capital

Class of
shares held

BRIRMR

FsR AR B#/ERRA

Ordinary HK$100
£ 100
Ordinary US$1,000
Lh 1,000%7
Ordinary HK§100
i EE100T
Ordinary MOP25,000
i3 JRFI%25,0007
N/A RMB675,000,000

0 li AR675,000,0007

Ordinary HK$2
La BT
Ordinary HK$100
T 1001
Deferred HKS2
Bt LY
Common CADS$101
] 101X
Ordinary HK$100
T AB100T
Deferred HKS2
Bt LY

Number
of shares

100

1,000

100

100

200

100

Effective percentage of
issued share capital/
registered capital held
by the Company

ARIRHERT

A/ fRAz
LUER

Directly Indirectly
Bi B

0/ A
% %

47 FEHWB AT

Percentage of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital held by
non-controlling
interests
FERRREE
BRfTRE/
iRA
AR

40

40

40

40

Principal activities

Restaurant and bar and
restaurant franchising

SERECREEREE

Investment holding

Restaurant and bar

REREL

Restaurant and bar

REREL

Property development

e

Supply and installation of
aluminium windows and
curtain walls

RERRRAERRR

Supply and installation of
aluminium windows and
curtain walls

RERRRHERTE

Sale and servicing of
automobiles

NEHEREERT

Supply and installation of
building materials

RENHIEERZE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-TZ-—RF=A=t—RHILFE

47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 47 TEMBE AT (E)

Name of company

Place or country of
incorporation or
registration/operation

Issued and paid
up share capital/
registered capital

Class of
shares held

BRARAR

FrisRER B/

Number
of shares

Effective percentage of
issued share capital/
registered capital held
by the Company

ARARBERT
B/ ERRAL
LUER
Indirectly

Directly
Bl i

o
% %

Percentage of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital held by
non-controlling
interests
FEREERE
BRfTRE/
A
2Bl

Principal activities

Chevalier Cali Holding (Cal Inc. US Common 1S84,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 - Grocery trading
*8 iR 4,012,000%7 EEES
Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment Mainland China NA RMB250,000,000 NA - 100 - Investment holding and
Management Limited note ¢} PERH, NER ARE250,0000007T TEH provision of management
HH (A REERERAT serice
(Mzte) RERRRREERRS
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common CAD101 200 - 100 - Sale and servicing of
nex B 1011EAT automobiles
FEHERAERT
Chevalier Cold Storage and Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 75 25 Operation of a cold storage
Logistics Limited A La et Yo warehouse and logistic
HEARIRERLA business
FERREERTITER
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 99.67 033 Building construction and
Company Limited a5 £H 760,500,007 maintenance
HE(BE)ARRA BRREnRE
Chevalier Construction (Hong Kongl ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 - 100 - Building construction
Limited (note ) (35 iR 71,0007 s
ETRE(RR)ARARIk0) Deferred HK$10,000 1,000 - 100 -
it 710,000
Chevalier (Corporate Management) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Provision of corporate
Limited Bk A o management service
ET(0REE)ERAR RUCEERRE
Chevalier Development (S) Pte. Ltd. ~ Singapore Ordinary 5$2,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 - Property investment
g iR 2,500,00037 1% 70 VESE
Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 - Installation of electrical and
Limited BE Bl 769,200,000 mechanical equipment

E+(KETR)ARAA

and provision of project

management service
REEERERIL

AEERRE
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 47 TENB AR (E)

Percentage of
issued share
capital/
Effective percentage of registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/  capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held  non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities

FEREERE
ARIRBERT  BREORK
NV BETRER BA/ERRAZ AR
EXUAIER FisRHEH B/ ERRA UER 2Bl
Directly Indirectly
B B

0 0
0 70

Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Philippines Common Pes08,750,000 87,500 - 100 - Waste disposal treatment
FEE it 8,750,000 EZ L E services
BERNRRES
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 - Environmental engineering
EL(RARIARAR EE e 757148,600,0000 RRIE
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - - Insurance brokerage
Limited ) i 771,000,000 REER
AT (RBER)ERAA
Chevalier Insurance Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - - Insurance underwriting
Limited Bk La 7200,00000070 RBEH
ELRBERRA
Chevalier iTech Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 - Trading and servicing of
ETRHTRERAA EE i BT computers and busingss
machines
ERRAEREE S L
Chevalier iTech Thai Limited (note d) ~~ Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 - Trading of computers and
(Hizta) 58 i3 1898000054 busingss machings
Preference BAHT1,020,000 10,200 - 100 - BRREEMEES
Ex 1,020,005k
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 4 - 100 - Building construction
(M) ERAT il L JRFT%100,0000 and instalation of air
conditioning systems and
aluminum windows and
curtain walls
BRRERTERRZNR
RERERE
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Network systems and
Limited Bk T BT solution services
HL(BERB)ERAA BRZG MRS
Chevalier Network Solutions Thai Thaland Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 - Trading of telecommunication
Limited 7 LA 15,000,005k equipment
EfERES
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 47 FEHMBE AT (E)
Percentage of
issued share
capital/
Effective percentage of registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/  capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held  non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation  shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities
o
FOTREERG  ERfEA/
E%ﬁ&ﬁﬂ A /A2 A
FrEREER /B ERAAM 2Bl
Directly Indirectly
Ef i
% %
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 - Trading of computers and
EH(ERZ0)ERAR BE LE 100,007 office equipment
ERRIAEREES
Chevalier Portland Laurelhurst, LLC -~ US NA US$2,000,000 NA - 100 - Operation of senior housing
B NER 2,000,000%7 TR yie
Chevalier Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 - Property development and
Limited note b 5 Bl 7%360,000,00070 investment
HIMEERERAA (M) Deferred HKS51 51 - 100 - DEERRRE
Bt BB
Chevalier Property Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 - Property management and
Limited (note b} BE A AB100T security services
ELERNFERARNA(MED) Deferred HK$1,002 1,002 - 100 - DEERRRZERE
it 71,0027
CIH (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 1 100 - - Investment holding
ABERRRE i3 7 REER
CPC Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$253,500,200 2,535,002 - 100 - General construction and
Limited note b &5 LA 7953 500,200 trading business
ETEEERERA (D) Deferred HK$25,936,200 259,362 - - - —REERESER
it 725,936,200
Food Square Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 306 694 Food processing and trading
FEEAERLR B B AR1007 RRNIRES
Full Ascent Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 25 Property investment
BRERERAR 7 i3 AT ESE
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 49 51 - Property investment
SIRRERRAA B i3 1007 ESE
Kwai Hei Investments No.1 Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 1 - 75 25 Property investment
(35 i3 A ESE
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 47 TENB AR (E)

Percentage of
issued share
capital/
Effective percentage of registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/  capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held  non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities

FEREERE
ARIRBERT  BREORK
NV BETRER BA/ERRAZ AR
EXUAIER FisRHEH B/ ERRA UER 2Bl
Directly Indirectly
B B

0 0
0 70

Lac Kar Investment Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 - Property investment
Limited & 3] 3,600,0007 nERE
NIMEXERAR
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common CAD101,100 10,100 - 100 - Investment holding of
nex i 101,100M& AT property investment and

hotel operation

MEREREEEER A

AR

Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common CAD1,000 1,000 - 100 - Propertyinvestment
mex ] 1,000/EAT ESE

Marson Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 10 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar

KEERARAA B 3 el EEREE

Matterhorn Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USs$1 1 - 100 - Property investment
ABGARES 3 1% ESE

NC4 Albemarle, LLC Us NA 588,218,038 NA - %86 14 Operation of senior housing
A NER 8218038%T R Bazzhe

NC4 Covington, LLC Us NA 1S§3,674,305 NA - %86 14 Operation of senior housing
A NER 3574305% 0 R Bazzhe

NC4 Kingsoridge, LLC Us NA 1S§3,116,288 NA - %86 14 Operation of senior housing
A NER 3116.288%C R Bazzhe

NC4 Magereek, LLC Us NA US8§2,825,617 N/A - %86 14 Operation of senior housing
A NER 28056175 R Bazzhe

NC4 Magnolia, LLC Us NA 15§3,937,168 NA - %86 14 Operation of senior housing
A NER 3937,168%C R Bazhe

NC4 Oliver, LLC Us NA 1US§2,705,943 NA - %86 14 Operation of senior housing
A NER 2705 043% 7 NER Bazzhe

NC4 Wellington, LLC Us NA US8§2,.852,617 N/A - %86 14 Operation of senior housing
A NER 2852617 R Bahe
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Name of company

OR3 Beaverton, LLC (formerly known
as OR4 Beaverton, LLC)

OR3 Beaverton, LLC (#1784
OR4 Beaverton, LLC)

Orient Talent (Hong Kong) Limited
B (5%)8RAT

Peak Restaurants Limited

Proud Rich Limited note b)
FRERAR(HiD)

Quality King Investments Limited

Restaurants Management (Hong Kong)
Limited

Shanghai Chevalier Property
Management Co., Ltd (note c)

LEEINEERERAR i)

Shanghai Chevalier Trading Co,, Ltd.
[note c)

LEELEZARAA (Hikc)

Shanghai Chonmain Real Estate
Development Co. Ltd. note a)

LeERERRARAA
iRz)

Success Well (H.K) Limited
HE(EE)ERRA

Place or country of
incorporation or
registration/operation

ALaR/
T

Us
32

Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
REEAREE

Hong Kong
é:

Mainland China
A

Mainland China
PR

Mainland China
PR

Hong Kong
(3

47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Issued and paid
up share capital/
registered capital

Class of
shares held

BRARAR

FrisRER B/

NA 15$500,000
TER 500 000570
Ordlinary HKS2
L ety
Ordlinary HK$100
3 BEI007
Ordlinary HKS20
L BT
Deferred HK$20
i BT
Ordinary US$1
i 9
Ordinary HKS$1
i BRI
NA 1S$3,650,000
NER 3650, 000% 7T
NA 1S86,500,000
Wil 6,500,000%7
NA 1S$18,000,000
Wil 18,000,000%7
Ordinary HK$10,000
i 10,0007

Number
of shares

N
TR

100

N/A
TER

NA
AER

N/A
AER

10,000

Effective percentage of
issued share capital/
registered capital held

Directly
Bl

0
%

by the Company

ARARBERT
B/ ERRAL
LUER
Indirectly

i

%

100

60
60

100

100

60

100

100

80

60

47 T EMBLT(E)

Percentage of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital held by
non-controlling
interests
FEREERE
BRfTRE/
A
2Bl

40

40

40

20

40

HE-ZT-—HAF=ZA=1+—HILLFE

Principal activities

Operation of senior housing

fERzhz

Restaurant and bar

£ERAEL

Restaurant and bar

£EREL

Property investment

UESES

Investment holding

Restaurants management
REEE

Property management
and providing property
management consultation

eSS

Trading of lits, escalators,
electrical and mechanical
equipment

e SHRBRESHES
5

Property development and
investment

NEERRAE

Restaurant and bar

EEREL
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 47 TENB AR (E)

Percentage of
issued share
capital/
Effective percentage of registered
Place or country of Issued and paid issued share capital/  capital held by
incorporation or Class of up share capital/ Number registered capital held  non-controlling
Name of company registration/operation shares held registered capital of shares by the Company interests  Principal activities

FEREERE
ARIRBERT  BREORK
NV BETRER BA/ERRAZ AR
EXUAIER FisRHEH B/ ERRA UER 2Bl
Directly Indirectly
B B

0 0
0 70

Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 - Property investment
#E 3] 15,000 00052k ELE
Super Target (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$100 100 - 60 40 Restaurant and bar
EE(ER)ERAT EE LE A1007 ZERER
Tai Tung Industrial Equipment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 30,000,000 - 815 125 Logistics services
Limited & iR 730,000,000 ki
AAIZREERRA
Talent Luck Limited (note b Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 - Property development and
HERAZARAT (M) % L 7%1270,0000007 investment
Defered HK$51 51 - 100 - DEERRRE
jiila BT
Winfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 - Property investment
RAERERAR &% i BT MERE
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Co. Ltd. Mainland China NA RMBB5,000,000 N/A - 0 30 Hotel operation
(note o HERH, TR AR55,00000010 ER BEBERE
ERETRBEERAR (i)
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common CAD10 10 - 100 - Property investment
nex i 10MEAT VES
Notes: Bf5E
(a)  Established in Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint ventures. (@)  LAFRINEEDERNARBEAMKT
(b)  All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to participate (b) FIBEEERNEEREE  MERLINEERE
in any distribution upon winding up. NEERFEFSEIMIIK
(c) Established in Mainland China as wholly-foreign owned enterprises. () VAINEDERPRBAMAK
(d) Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference shares (d) BERAEIZRT10%  MiZA a2 BN EL
of this company carry one vote. fesE — R -
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48 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 48 FEBENT
Effective percentage
of issued share
capital/ registered
Place or country of capital held
incorporation or by the Company Measurement
Name of associate registration/operation Class of shares held indirectly ~Principal activities method
, FRABEEE
RIS BRIRE/
BEARER EXHEHER FrsR 8R! dMRECEREIL  TEXR
%
CAAM Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 3846 Fresh produce grower-aggregator Equity
AEABRES g MEREMEREEER 4
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Marketing, installation and Equity
E+(BR)ARAR 0 Bl maintenance of lifts and escalators 125
B RERREARBRERS
Toshiba Elevator (China) Co., Ltd. Mainland China N/A 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation, Equity
REBR(PE)ERAR HRE N, TER repair and maintenance of lifts %
and escalators
& HE TR BERRE
FEERERS
Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.  Mainland China N/A 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation, Equity
REBBER) BRAR HRE N, Tam repair and maintenance of lifts i
and escalators
& HE TR BERRE
FEERERS
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 25 Manufacturing and provision of Equity
BARRLERAR X B concrete Ea
RETEEREE
LAt ERERERAR) Mainland China N/A 1229 Trading of food and beverage Equity
FER TER 2HES 1
m)|EE5 S EE BERAR Mainland China N/A 40 Trading of motor vehicles and Equity
HER, TEm provision of maintenance services 4
EE S RERRERE
KANGERLREHE Mainland China N/A 2133 Trading of motor vehicles and Equity
BEERAT R, TEm provision of maintenance services &
HEESRRARERS
Note: B -
The Group's entitlement to share of the profit or loss in these associates is in AREEIREBAER I EEFEIE AT
proportion to its ownership interest. S S o
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HE-ZT—RAF=-A=+—HILFE

49 PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES

Place or country of
incorporation or
registration/operation

Name of joint venture Class of shares held

RELEER iEs ik g

Effective percentage
of issued share
capital/ registered
share capital held

by the Company
indirectly

NG 32
BRIRE/
EfRAERA AL

o
70

Principal activities

Measurement
Method

HERE

Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50 Civilengineering Equity
HBRBEERAR) 7 B TAIE 4
Rosy Value Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50 Property development Equity
EEARRA X g NEER 5
I RBIREREEREER AR Mainland China N/A 44 Property development Equity

RENL, TER NEER #
KA+ EHERRERAR Mainland China N/A 49 Property development Equity

RENL, TER NEER s
Note: B &E -

REEZE GG 2 WOGTEEMEAEREL
wAMER -

The Group's entitlement to share of the profit or loss in these joint ventures is in
proportion to its ownership interest.
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